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"Safe Harbor" Statement Under Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Certain statements contained in Bancorp's public statements, including this one, and in particular in
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," may be forward
looking and subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties. These factors include, but are not limited to; (1)
changes in prevailing interest rates which would affect the interest earned on Bancorp's interest earning assets
and the interest paid on its interest bearing liabilities; (2) the timing of repricing of Bancorp's interest earning
assets and interest bearing liabilities; (3) the effect of changes in governmental monetary policy; (4) the effect
of changes in regulations applicable to Bancorp and the Bank and the conduct of its business; (5) changes in
competition among financial service companies, including possible further encroachment of non-banks on
services traditionally provided by banks; (6) the ability of competitors that are larger than Bancorp to provide
products and services which it is impracticable for Bancorp to provide; (7) the state of the economy and real
estate values in Bancorp's market areas, and the consequent effect on the quality of Bancorp's loans, (8) recent
governmental initiatives that are expected to have a profound effect on the financial services industry and could
dramatically change the competitive environment of the Company, (9) other legislative or regulatory changes,
including those related to residential mortgages, changes in accounting standards, and Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") premiums that may adversely affect the Company; (10) the application of
generallyaccepted accounting principles, consistently applied, (11) the fact that one period of reported results
maynot be indicative of futureperiods, (12) the state of the economyin the greaterNew York metropolitan area
and its particular effect on the Company's customers, vendors and communities and other such factors,
includingrisk factors, as may be described in Bancorp'sother filings with the SEC.

Although Bancorp believes that it offers the loan and deposit products and has the resources needed for
continued success, future revenues and interest spreads and yields cannot be reliably predicted. These trends
may cause Bancorp to adjust its operations in the future. Because of the foregoing and other factors, recent
trendsshouldnot be consideredreliable indicators of future financial results or stock prices.



PART 1

ITEM 1. Business

Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. ("Bancorp or Company"), a Connecticut corporation, is a one-bank holding
company for Patriot National Bank, a national banking association headquartered in Stamford, Fairfield County,
Connecticut (the "Bank"). The Bank received its charter and commenced operations as a national bank on
August 31, 1994. The Bank currently has eight branch offices in Connecticut. The Bank also has branch
offices in Bedford and Scarsdale, both located in Westchester County, New York.

On March 11, 2003, Bancorp formed Patriot National Statutory Trust I (the "Trust") for the sole purpose of
issuing trust preferred securities and investing the proceeds in subordinated debentures issued by Bancorp.
Bancorp primarily invested the funds from the issuance of the debt in the Bank. The Bank in turn used the
proceeds to fund general operations.

On April 1, 2008, the Bank acquired a 20% interest in a de novo insurance agency. The impact on the Bank's
operations in 2011, 2012 and 2013 had been minimal. During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Bank sold its
interest in the de novo insurance agency.

On October 15, 2010, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "Securities Purchase Agreement"), the
Company issued and sold to PNBK Holdings LLC ("Holdings"), an investment limited liability company
controlled by Michael Carrazza, 3.36 million shares of its common stock at a purchase price of $15.00 per share
(adjusted for a l-for-10 reverse stock split discussed below) for an aggregate purchase price of $50.4 million.
The shares sold to Holdings represented 87.6% of the Company's then issued and outstanding common stock.
The par value of the common stock was changed to $0.01 per share. Also in connection with that sale, certain
directors and officers of both the Company and the Bank resigned and were replaced with nominees of
Holdings and Michael Carrazza became Chairman ol the Board of the Company.

As of the dale hereof, the only business of Bancorp is its ownership of all of the issued and outstanding capital
stock of the Bank and the Trust. Except as specifically noted otherwise herein, the balance of the description of
Bancorp's business is a description of the Bank's business.

On February 26, 2013, the Company announced the appointment of Kenneth T. Neilson as President and Chief
Executive Officer of both the Company and the Bank effective March 18, 2013. This was following the
departure of Christopher Maher, who resigned as President, CEO and director for personal reasons. Mr.
Neilson had served as a director of Patriot since 2010. He is the retired President, Chairman and CEO of
Hudson United Bank and Hudson United Bancorp where he served for 23 years.

On March 4, 2015, the Company affected a l-for-10 reverse stock split. All common stock and per share data
included in these financial statements have been restated to give effect to the reverse stock split.



Business Operations

The Bank conducts business at its main office located in Stamford, Connecticut and at other Connecticut branch
offices located in Darien, Fairfield, Greenwich, Milford, Norwalk, Trumbull, and Westport. In New York State,
the Bank conducts business at branch offices located in Bedford and Scarsdale. The Bank also operates a loan
origination office at 1177 Summer Street in Stamford, Connecticut.

The Bank offers commercial real estate loans, commercial business loans, and a variety of consumer loans with
an emphasis on serving the needs of individuals, small and medium-sized businesses and professionals. The
Bank previously had offered loans on residential real estate, but discontinued doing so during 2013. The
Bank's lending activities are conducted principally in Fairfield and New Haven Counties in Connecticut and
Westchester County in New York, although the Bank's loan business is not necessarily limited to these areas.

Consumer and commercial deposit accounts offered include: checking, interest-bearing "NOW", money market,
time certificates of deposit, savings, CDARS, Individual Retirement Accounts ("IRAs") and Health Savings
Accounts ("HSAs"). Other services offered by the Bank include ACH transfers, lockbox, internet banking, bill
paying, remote deposit capture, debit cards, money orders, traveler's checks and ATMs. In addition, the Bank
may in the future offer other financial services.

The Bank's employees perform most routine day-to-day banking transactions. The Bank has entered into a
number of arrangements with third parties for banking services such as correspondent banking, check clearing,
data processing services, credit card processing and armored car carrier service.

In the normal course of business and subject to applicable government regulations, the Bank invests a portion of
its assets in investment securities, which may include government securities. An objective of the Bank's
investment policy is to maintain a balance of high quality diversified investments to minimize risk while
maintaining adequate levels of liquidity and limiting its exposure to interest rate movements and credit risk.
Government agency issues currently comprise the majority of the Bank's investment portfolio.

Employees

As of December31,2014, Bancorp had 83 full-time employees and 9 part-time employees. None of the
employees of Bancorp are covered by a collective bargainingagreement.

Competition

The Bank competes with a variety of financial institutions for loans and deposits in its market area. These
include larger financial institutions with greater financial resources, larger branch systems and higher lending
limits as well as the ability to conduct larger advertising campaigns to attract business. The larger institutions
may also offer additional services such as trust and international banking which the Bank is not equipped to
offer directly. When the need arises, arrangements are made with correspondent institutions to provide such
services. To attract business in this competitive environment, the Bank relies on local promotional activities,
personal contact by officers and directors, customer referrals and on its ability to distinguish itself by offering
personalized and responsive banking service.

The customer base of the Bank generally is meant to be diversified so that there is not a concentration of either
loans or deposits within a single industry, a group of industries, a single person or groups of people. The Bank
is not dependent on one or a few major customers for its lending or deposit activities, the loss of any one of
which would have a material adverse effect on the business of the Bank.

Residents andbusinesses in Stamford, Greenwich, Norwalk, Darien, Fairfield, Trumbull,Westport, andMilford
Connecticut provide the majority of the Bank's deposits. The Bank has expanded its footprint by establishing



branch offices in the Westchester County, New York towns of Bedford and Scarsdale. The Bank has focused
its attention on serving the segments of its market area historically served by community banks. The Bank
competes in its market by providing a high level of personalized and responsive banking service for which the
Bank believes there is a need.

The Bank's loan customers extend beyond the towns and cities in which the Bank has branch offices, including
nearby towns in Fairfield and New Haven Counties in Connecticut, and Westchester County and New York
City in New York, although the Bank's loan business is not necessarily limited to these areas. While the Bank
does not currently hold or intend to attract significant deposit or loan business from major corporations with
headquarters in its market area, the Bank believes that the service industries, professionals and related busi
nesses which have been attracted to this area, as well as the individuals that reside in this area, represent current
and potential customers of the Bank.

In recent years, intense market demands, economic pressures and significant legislative and regulatory actions
have eroded banking industry classifications which were once clearly defined and have increased competition
among banks, as well as other financial institutions including non-bank competitors. This increase in
competition has caused banks and other financial service institutions to diversify their services and become
more cost effective. The impact on banks and other financial institutions of market dynamics and legislative
and regulatory changes has been increased customer awareness of product and service differences among
competitors and increased merger activity.

Supervision and Regulation

As a bank holding company, Bancorp's operations are subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Board (the "Federal Reserve Board"). The Federal Reserve Board
has established capital adequacy guidelines for bank holding companies that are similar of the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency ("OCC") capital guidelines applicable to the Bank. The Bank Holding Company
Act of 1956, as amended (the "BHC Act"), limits the types of companies that a bank holding company may
acquire or organize and the activities in which it or they mayengage. In general, bank holding companies and
their subsidiaries are only permitted to engage in, or acquire direct control of, any company engaged in banking
or in a business so closely related to bankingas to be a proper incident thereto. Federal legislation enacted in
1999 authorizes certain entities to register as financial holding companies. Registered financial holding
companies are permitted to engage in businesses, including securities and investment banking businesses, which
are prohibited to bank holding companies. The creation of financial holding companies has had no significant
impact on Bancorp.

Under the BHC Act, Bancorp is required to file quarterly with the Federal Reserve Board a report of its
operations. Bancorp, the Bank and any other subsidiaries are subject to examination by the Federal Reserve
Board. In addition, Bancorp will be required to obtain the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board to
acquire, with certain exceptions, more than 5% of the outstanding voting stock of any bank or bank holding
company, to acquire all or substantially all of the assets of a bank or to merge or consolidate with another bank
holding company. Moreover, Bancorp, the Bank and any other subsidiaries are prohibited from engaging in
certain tying arrangements in connection with any extension of credit or provision of any property or services.
The Bank is also subject to certain restrictions imposed by the Federal Reserve Act on issuing any extension of
credit to Bancorp or any of its subsidiaries or making any investments in the stock or other securities thereof
and on the takingof such stock or securities as collateral for loans to any borrower. If Bancorp wants to engage
in businesses permitted to financial holding companies but not to bank holding companies, it would need to
register with the Federal Reserve Boardas a financial holdingcompany.

The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement on the payment of cash dividends by bank holding
companies, which expresses its view that a bank holding company should pay cash dividends only to the extent



that the bank holding company's net income for the past year is sufficient to cover both the cash dividend and a
rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the bank holding company's capital needs, asset quality and
overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve Board has also indicated that it would be inappropriate for a
company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds to pay dividends. Furthermore, under the
prompt corrective action regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal Reserve Board may
prohibit a bank holding company from paying any dividends if its bank subsidiary is classified as
"undercapitalized."

A bank holding company is required to give the Federal Reserve Board prior written notice of any purchase or
redemption of its outstanding equity securities if the gross consideration for the purchase or redemption, when
combinedwith the net consideration paid for all such purchases or redemptionsduring the preceding 12 months,
is equal to 10% or more of its consolidatedretained earnings. The Federal Reserve Board may disapprove such
a purchase or redemption if it determines that the proposal would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice or
would violate any law, regulation, Federal Reserve Board order, or any condition imposed by, or written
agreement with, the Federal Reserve Board.

Bancorp is subject to capital adequacy rules and guidelines issued by the Federal Reserve Board and the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FD/C"), and the Bank is subject to capital adequacy rules and guidelines
issued by the OCC. These substantially identical rules and guidelines require Bancorp to maintain certain
minimum ratios of capital to adjusted total assets and/or risk-weighted assets. Under the provisions of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvements Act of 1991, the Federal regulatory agencies are required
to implement and enforce these rules in a stringent manner. Bancorp is also subject to applicable provisions of
Connecticut law insofaras they do not conflict with, or are not otherwisepreemptedby, Federal banking law.

Bancorp is subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and, in accordance with the Exchange Act, files periodic reports, proxy statements and other
information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). The Bank's operations are subject to
regulation,supervision and examination by the OCC and the FDIC.

Federal and state banking regulations govern, among other things, the scope of the business of a bank, a bank
holding company or a financial holding company, the investments a bank may make, deposit reserves a bank
must maintain, the establishment of branches and the activities of a bank with respect to mergers and
acquisitions. The Bank is a member of the Federal Reserve System and as such, is subject to applicable
provisions of the Federal Reserve Act and regulations there-under. The Bank is subject to the federal
regulations promulgated pursuant to the Financial Institutions Supervisory Act to prevent banks from engaging
in unsafe and unsound practices, as well as various other federal and state laws and consumer protection laws.
The Bank is also subject to the comprehensive provisions of the National Bank Act.

The OCC regulates the numberand locations of branch offices of a national bank. The OCC may only permit a
national bank to maintain branches in locations andunder the conditions imposedby state law upon state banks.
At this time, applicable Connecticut banking laws do not impose any material restrictions on the establishment
of branches by Connecticut banks throughout Connecticut. New York State law is similar; however, the Bank
cannot establish a branch in a town with a population of less than 50,000 if another bankis headquartered in the
town.

The earnings and growth of Bancorp, the Bank and the bankingindustryareaffected by the monetaryand fiscal
policies of the United States Government and its agencies, particularly the Federal Reserve Board. The Open
Market Committee of the Federal Reserve Board implements national monetary policy to curb inflation and
combat recession. The Federal Reserve Board uses its power to adjust interest rates in United States
Government securities, the Discount Rate and deposit reserve retention rates. The actions of the Federal
Reserve Board influence the growth of bank loans, investments and deposits. They also affect interest rates



charged on loans and paid on deposits. The nature and impact of any future changes in monetary policies
cannot be predicted.

In addition to other laws and regulations, Bancorp and the Bank are subject to the Community Reinvestment
Act ("CRA"), which requires the federal bank regulatory agencies, when considering certain applications
involving Bancorp or the Bank, to consider Bancorp's and the Bank's record of helping to meet the credit needs
of its entire community, including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. The CRA was originally enacted
because of concern over unfair treatment of prospective borrowers by banks and over unwarranted geographic
differences in lending patterns. Existing banks have sought to comply with CRA in various ways; some banks
have made use of more flexible lending criteria for certain types of loans and borrowers (consistent with the
requirement to conduct safe and sound operations), while other banks have increased their efforts to make loans
to help meet identified credit needs within the consumer community, such as those for home mortgages, home
improvements and small business loans. Compliance may also include participation in various government
insured lending programs, such as Federal Housing Administration insured or Veterans Administration
guaranteed mortgage loans, Small Business Administration loans, and participation in other types of lending
programs such as high loan-to-value ratio conventional mortgage loans with private mortgage insurance. To
date, the market area from which the Bank draws much of its business is in the towns and cities in which the
Bank has branch offices, which are characterized by a very diverse ethnic, economic and racial cross-section of
the population. As the Bank expands further, the market areas served by the Bank will continue to evolve.
Bancorp and the Bank have not and will not adopt any policies or practices, which discourage credit
applications from, or unlawfully discriminate against, individuals or segments of the communities served by the
Bank.

On October 26, 2001, the United and Strengthening America by Providing Tools Required to Intercept and
Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001, or the USA Patriot Act, was enacted to further strengthen domestic security
following the September 11, 2001 attacks. This Act amended various federal banking laws, particularly the
Bank Secrecy Act, with the intent to curtail money laundering and other activities that might be undertaken to
finance terrorist actions. The Act also requires that financial institutions in the United States enhance already
established anti-money laundering policies, procedures and audit functions and ensure that controls are
reasonably designed to detect instances of money laundering through certain correspondent or private banking
accounts. Verification of customer identification, maintenance of said verification records and cross checking
names of new customers against government lists of known or suspected terrorists is also required. The Patriot
Act was reauthorized and modified with the enactment of The USA Patriot Act Improvement and
Reauthorization Act of2005.

On July 20, 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was enacted, the primary purpose of which is to protect
investors through improved corporate governance and responsibilities of, and disclosures by, public companies.
The Act contains provisions for the limitations of services that external auditors may provide as well as
requirements for the credentials of Audit Committee members. In addition, the principal executive and
principal financial officers are required to certify in quarterly and annual reports that they have reviewed the
report; and based on the officers' knowledge, the reports accurately present the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company and contain no untrue statement or omission of material fact. The officers also
certify their responsibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls, which insure that all
material information is made known to the officers; this certification also includes the evaluation of the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures and their impact upon financial reporting. Section 404 of
the Act, entitled Management Assessment of Internal Controls, requires that each annual report include an
internal control report which states that it is the responsibility of management for establishing and maintaining
an adequate internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting, as well as an assessment by
management of the effectiveness of the internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. This
section further requires that the external auditors attest to, and report on, the Company's internal controls over
financial reporting. The Dodd-FrankWall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act enacted an exemption



to the attestation and the reporting on the Company's internal controls over financial reporting by the external
auditors for non-accelerated filers, those with public float of less than $75 million.

Recent Legislative Developments

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the "Act") was signed into law on
July 21,2010 and has had a major impact on the financial services industry, including the organization,
financial condition and operations ofbanks and bank holding companies. Many of the provisions of the Act are
aimed at financial institutions that are significantly larger than the Company and the Bank. Notwithstanding
this, there are many other provisions that the Company and the Bank are subject to and have to comply with,
including any applicable rules promulgated by the Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection. As rules and
regulations are promulgated by the agencies responsible for implementing and enforcing the Act, the Company
and the Bank will have to address each to ensure compliance with applicable provisions of the Act and
compliance costs are expected to increase.

The Dodd-Frank Act broadened the base for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance assessments.
Under rules issued by the FDIC in February 2011, the base for insurance assessments changed from domestic
deposits to consolidated assets less tangible equity. Assessment rates are calculated using formulas that take
into account the risks of the institution being assessed. The rule was effective beginning April 1, 2011. This
did not have a material impact on the Company.

On June 28, 2011, the Federal Reserve Board approved a final debit-card interchange rule. This primarily
impacts larger banks and did not have a material impact on the Company.

It is difficult to predict at this time what specific impact yet to be implemented Dodd-Frank Act rules and
regulations will have on the Company. Financial reform legislation and any implementing rules that are
ultimately issued could have adverse implications on the financial industry, the competitive environment, and
our ability to conduct business. Management will have to apply resources to ensure compliance with all
applicable provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act and any implementing rules, which may increase our costs of
operations and adversely impact our earnings.

In July 2013, the FRB, the OCC and the FDIC approved final rules (the "New Capital Rules") establishing a
new comprehensive capital framework for U.S. Banking organizations. The New Capital Rules generally
implement the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision's (the "Basel Committee") December 2010 final
capital framework referred to as "Basel III" for strengthening international capital standards. The New Capital
Rules substantially revise the risk-based capital requirements applicable to BHC's and their depository
institution subsidiaries, including the Company and the Bank, as compared to the current U.S. general risk-
based capital rules. The New Capital Rules revise the definitions and the components of regulatory capital, as
well as address other issues affecting the numerator in banking institutions' regulatory capital ratios. The New
Capital Rules also address asset risk weights and other matters affecting the denominator in banking
institutions' regulatory capital ratios and replace the existing general risk-weighting approach with a more risk-
sensitive approach based, in part, on the "standardized approach" in the Basel Committee's 2004 capital
accords. In addition, the New Capital Rules implement certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. The New
Capital Rules became effective for the Company on January 1, 2015. The Company does not foresee any
difficulties in complying with these new regulations.

Recent Developments with Regulators

In September 2014, the Bank's formal written agreement (the "Agreement") with the Office of the Comptroller
of the Currency which had been entered into in February 2009 was terminated. The Agreement required the
Bank to review, adopt and implement a number of policies and programs related to credit and operational
issues.



Available Information

Our website address is http://www.pnbdirectonline.com; however, information found on, or that can be
accessed through, our website is not incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K. Bancorp makes available
free of charge on our website (under the links entitled "For Investors", then "SEC filings" and then
"Documents"), our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterlyreportson Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-
K, information statements on Schedule 14C, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as practicable after we electronically file such
reports with or furnish these to the SEC. Because Bancorp is an electronic filer, such reports are filed with the
SEC and are also available on their website (http://www.sec.gov). The public may also read and copy any
materials filed with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549.
Information about the Public Reference Room can be obtained by calling 1-800-SEC-0330.



ITEM1A. Risk Factors

The Bank's financial condition and results of operation are subject to various risks inherent to our business,
including those noted below.

The risks involved in Bancorp's commercial real estate loan portfolio are material.

Bancorp's commercial real estate loan portfolio constitutes a material portion of the Bank's assets and generally
has more risk than residential mortgage loans. Commercial real estate loans often involve larger loan balances
concentrated with single borrowers or groups of related borrowers as compared to single-family residential
loans.

Because the repayment of commercial real estate loans depends on the successful management and operation of
the borrower's properties or related businesses, repayments of such loans can be affectedby adverse conditions
in the real estatemarket or local economy. A downturn in the real estate market within Bancorp's market area
may adversely impact the value ofproperties securing these loans..

Real estate lending in Bancorp's core market involves risks related to a decline in value of commercial
and residential real estate.

The market value of real estate can fluctuate significantly in a relatively short period of time as a result of
market conditions in the geographic area in which the real estate is located. A significant portion of Bancorp's
total loan portfolio is secured by real estate located in Fairfield County, Connecticut and Westchester County,
New York, areas historically of high affluence that had been materially impacted by the financial troubles
experienced by large financial service companies on Wall Streetand other companies during the financial crisis.
Since then, credit markets have become tighter and underwriting standards more stringent and the inability of
purchasers of real estate to obtain financing will continue to impact the real estate market. Therefore, these
loans may be subject to changes in grade, classification, accrual status, foreclosure, or loss which could have an
effect on the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

Bancorp's business is subject to various lending and other economic risks that could adversely impact
Bancorp's results of operations and financial condition.

Changes in economic conditions, particularly a continued economic slowdown in Fairfield County, Connecticut
and the New York metropolitan area, could hurt Bancorp's financial performance. A further deterioration in
economic conditions, in particular an economic slowdown within Fairfield County, Connecticut and/or the New
York metropolitan area, could result in the following consequences, any of which may hurt the business of
Bancorp materially:

loan delinquencies may increase
problem assets and foreclosures may increase
demand for the Bank's products and services may decline
assets and collateral associated with the Bank's loans, especially real estate, may decline in
value,therebyreducing a customer's borrowingpower

During the years 2007 through 2009, the general economic conditions and specific business conditions in the
United States, including Fairfield County, Connecticut and the New York metropolitan area, deteriorated,
resulting in increases in loan delinquencies, problem assets and foreclosures and declines in the value and
collateral associated with the Bank's loans. During 2010 through 2014, the economic climate improved
gradually, contributing to decreases in the Bank's non-performing assets. A prolonged period of economic
recession or worsening of these economic conditions may have an adverse effect on our results of operations
and financial condition.



Bancorp's allowance for loan losses may not be adequate to cover actual losses.

Like all financial institutions, the Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses to provide for loan defaults and
non-performance. The allowance for loan losses is based on an evaluation of the risks associated with the
Bank's loans receivable as well as the Bank's prior loss experience. Deterioration in general economic
conditions and unforeseen risks affecting customers could have an adverse effect on borrowers' capacity to
timely repay their obligations before risk grades could reflect those changing conditions. Maintaining the
adequacy of the Bank's allowance for loan losses may require that the Bank make significant and unanticipated
increases in the provision for loan losses, which would materially affect the results of operations and capital
adequacy. The amount of future losses is susceptible to changes in economic, operating and other conditions,
including changes in interest rates that may be beyond the Bank's control and these losses may exceed current
estimates. Although the current economic environment has improved, conditions remain uncertain which may
result in additional risk of loan losses.

Federal regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, review the Bank's loans and assess
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. The regulatory agencies may require us to change classifications
or grades on loans, increase the allowance for loan losses with additional provisions for loan losses and to
recognize further loan charge-offs based upon their judgments, which ma> differ from ours. Any increase in the
allowance for loan losses required by these regulatory agencies could have a negative effect on our results of
operations and financial condition. While management believes that the allowance for loan losses is currently
adequate to cover inherent losses, further loan deterioration could occur and therefore management cannot
assure shareholders that there will not be a need to increase the allowance for loan losses or that the regulators
will not require management to increase this allowance. Either of these occurrences could materially and
adversely affect Bancorp's earnings and profitability.

Bancorp is subject to certain risks with respect to liquidity.

"Liquidity" refers to our ability to generate sufficient cash flows to support our operations and to fulfill our
obligations, including commitments to originate loans, to repay our wholesale borrowings and other liabilities,
and to satisfy the withdrawal of deposits by our customers.

Our primary sources of liquidity are the deposits we acquire organically primarily through our branch network,
borrowed funds, primarily in the form of wholesale borrowings, and the cash flows generated through the
repayment of loans and securities. In addition, depending on current market conditions, we may have the
ability to access the capital markets.

Deposit flows, calls of investment securities and wholesale borrowings, and prepayments of loans and
mortgage-related securities are strongly influenced by such external factors as the direction of interest rates,
whether actual or perceived; local and national economic conditions; and competition for deposits and loans in
the markets we serve. Furthermore, changes to the underwriting guidelines for wholesale borrowings or lending
policies may limit or restrict our ability to borrow, and could therefore have a significant adverse impact on our
liquidity. A decline in available funding could adversely impact our ability to originate loans, invest in
securities, and meet our expenses, or to fulfill such obligations as repaying our borrowings or meeting deposit
withdrawal demands.
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Bancorp's business is subject to interest rate risk and variations in interest rates may negatively affect
Bancorp's financial performance.

Bancorp is unable to predict with certainty, fluctuations of market interest rates, which are affected by many
factors including inflation, recession, a rise in unemployment, a tightening money supply, domestic and
international disorder and instability in domestic and foreign financial markets. Changes in the interest rate
environment may reduce Bancorp's profits. Bancorp realizes income from the differential or "spread" between
the interest earned on loans, securities and other interest-earning assets, and interest paid on deposits,
borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest spreads are affected by the difference between the
maturities and repricing characteristics of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. In addition, an
increase in the general level of interest rates may adversely affect the ability of some borrowers to pay the
interest on andprincipal of theirobligations. Although Bancorp has implemented strategies which are designed
to reduce the potential effects of changes in interest rates on operations, these strategies may not always be
successful. Accordingly, changes in levels of market interest rates could materially and adversely affect
Bancorp's net interest spread, asset quality, levels of prepayments and cash flow as well as the market value of
its securitiesportfolio and overall profitability.

Bancorp's investment portfolio includes securities which are sensitive to interest rates and variations in
interest rates may adversely impact Bancorp's profitability.

Bancorp's security portfolio is mostly classified as available-for-sale, and is comprised primarily of debt and
mortgage-backed securities, which are insured or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies, and corporate
bonds. These securities are sensitive to interest rate fluctuations. Unrealized gains or losses in the available-
for-sale portfolio for securities are reported as a separate component of shareholders' equity. Asa result, future
interest rate fluctuations may impact shareholders' equity, causing material fluctuations from quarter to quarter.
The inability to hold its securities until maturity, or until payments are received on mortgage-backed securities,
oruntil market conditions are favorable for a sale, could adversely affect Bancorp's earnings and profitability.

Bancorp is dependent on its management team and the loss of its senior executive officers or other key
employees could impair its relationship with its customers and adversely affect its business and financial
results.

Bancorp's success is dependent upon the continued services and skills of itsmanagement team. The unexpected
loss of services of one or more of these key personnel, because of their skills, knowledge of Bancorp's market,
years of industry experience and the difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel could have
an adverse impact on Bancorp's business.

Bancorp's success also depends, in part, on its continued ability to attract and retain experienced commercial
lenders and retail bankers, as well as other management personnel. The loss of the services of several of such
key personnel could adversely affect Bancorp's growth and prospects to the extent it is unable to quickly
replace such personnel. Competition for commercial lenders and retail bankers is strong, and Bancorp may not
be successful in retainingor attractingsuch personnel.

A breachof information security could negativelyaffect Bancorp's earnings.

Bancorp increasingly depends upon data processing, communications and information exchange on a variety of
computing platforms and networks, and the internet to conduct its business. Bancorp cannot be certain that all
of its systems are entirely free from vulnerability to attack, despite safeguards it has instituted. In addition,
Bancorp relies on the services of a variety of vendors to meet its dataprocessing and communication needs. If
information security is breached, information can be lostor misappropriated and could result in financial loss or
costs to Bancorpor damages to others. These costs or losses could materially exceed the amount of insurance
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coverage, if any, which would have an adverse effect on Bancorp's result:; of operations and financial condition.
In addition, the Bank's reputation could be harmed, which also could materially affect Bancorp's financial
condition and results of operations.

We are subject to environmental liability risk associated with our lending activities.

A significant portion of our loan portfolio is secured by real property. During the ordinary course of business,
we may foreclose on, and take title to, properties securing certain loans. In doing so, there is a risk that
hazardous or toxic substances could be found on these properties, which may make us liable for remediation
costs, as well as for personal injury and property damage. In addition, we own and operate certain properties
that may be subject to similar environmental liability risks.

Environmental laws may require us to incur substantial expense and may materially reduce the affected
property's value, or limit our ability to use or sell the affected property. In addition, future laws or more
stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing laws may increase our exposure to
environmental liability. Although we have policies and procedures requiring the performance of an
environmental site assessment before loan approval or initiating any foreclosure action on real property,
these assessments may not be sufficient to detect all potential envirormental hazards. The remediation costs
and any other financial liabilities associated with an environmental hazard could have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operations.

We rely on the dividends we receive from our subsidiary.

Bancorp is a separate and distinct legal entity from the Bank, and all of the revenues Bancorp receives consist of
dividends from the Bank. These dividends are the primary funding source for the interest and principal
payinents on our debt. Various federal and state laws and regulations limit the amount ofdividends that a bank
may pay to its parent company. In addition, our right to participate in a distribution of assets upon the
liquidation or reorganization ofa subsidiary may be subject to the prior claims of the subsidiary's creditors. If
the Bank is unable to pay dividends to Bancorp, we may not be able to pay our obligations. The inability to
receive dividends from the Bank could therefore have a material adverse effect on our business, our financial
condition, andour results of operations, as well as ourability to paycash dividends to ourshareholders.

The price of our common stock may fluctuate.

The market price of our common stock could be subject to significant fluctuations due to changes in
sentiment in the market regarding our operations or business prospects. Among other factors, our stock price
may be affected by:

operating results that vary from the expectations of our management or of securities analysts and
investors;
developments in ourbusiness or in the financial services sector generally;
regulatory or legislative changes affecting our industry generally orourbusiness and operations:
operating and securities price performance of companies that investors consider to be comparable to
us;

changes inestimates or recommendations bysecurities analysts or rating agencies;
announcements of strategic developments, acquisitions, dispositions, financings, and other material
events by us or our competitors; and
changes or volatility in global financial markets and economies, general market conditions, interest or
foreign exchange rates, stock, commodity, credit, orasset valuations.
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Difficultmarket conditions have adverselyaffected Bancorp's industry.

Bancorp is exposed to downturns in the U.S. economy, and particularly the local markets in which it operates in
Connecticut and New York. During the financial crisis, declines in the housing market with falling home prices
and increasing foreclosures, unemployment and under-employment, had negatively impacted the credit
performance of mortgage and construction loans and resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by
financial institutions, including government-sponsored enterprises as well as major commercial and investment
banks. These write-downs caused many financial institutions to seek additional capital, to merge with larger
and stronger institutions and, in some cases, to fail. Many lenders and institutional investors reduced or ceased
providing funding to borrowers, including other financial institutions. This market turmoil and the tightening of
credit led to an increased level of commercial and consumer delinquencies, lack of consumer confidence,
increased market volatility and generally widespread reductions in business activity. The resulting economic
pressure on consumers and lack of confidence in the financial markets have adversely affected Bancorp's
business, financial condition and results of operations. A worsening of these conditions would likely exacerbate
the adverse effects of these difficult market conditions on usand other financial institutions. Inparticular:

Economic conditions may continue to affect market confidence levels and may cause adverse changes in
payment patterns, causing increases in delinquencies, which could affect our charge-offs and provision
for loan losses.

The ability to assess the creditworthiness of the Bank's customers or to estimate the values of collateral
for loans may be impaired if the models and approaches we use become less predictive of future
behaviors, valuations, assumptions or estimates dueto theunpredictable economic climate.

Increasing consolidation of financial services companies as a result of current market conditions could
have unexpected adverse effects upon ourability to compete effectively.

We may be required to pay significantly higher FDIC premiums, special assessments, or taxes that could
adversely affect our earnings.

Market developments have significantly impacted the insurance fund of the FDIC. As a result, we may be
required to pay higher premiums or additional special assessments that could adversely affect our earnings.
We are generally unable to control the amount of premiums that we are required to pay for FDIC insurance. If
there are additional banks or financial institution failures, we may be required to pay higher FDIC premiums
than are currently assessed. These increases and any future increases or required prepayments in FDIC
insurance premiums may materially adversely affect ourresults of operations.

We are subject to risks associated with taxation.

The amount of income taxes we are required to pay on our earnings is based on federal and state legislation
and regulations. We provide for current and deferred taxes in ourfinancial statements, based on our results of
operations, business activity, legal structure, interpretation of tax statutes, assessment of risk of adjustment
upon audit, and application of financial accounting standards. We may take tax return filing positions for
which the final determination of tax is uncertain. Our net income and earnings per share may be reduced if a
federal, state, or local authority assesses additional taxes that have not been provided for in our consolidated
financial statements. There can be no assurance that we will achieve our anticipated effective tax rate either
due to a change in a tax law, a change in regulatory or judicial guidance, or an audit assessment which denies
previously recognized tax benefits.
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Risks associated with changes in technology.

Financial products and services have become increasingly technology-driven. Our ability to meet the needs of
our customers competitively, and in a cost-efficient manner, is dependent on our ability to keep pace with
technological advances and to invest in new technology as it becomes available. Many of our competitors
have greater resources to invest in technology than we do and may be better equipped to market new
technology-driven products and services. The ability to keep pace with technological change is important,
and the failure to do so on our part could have a material adverse impacton our business and therefore on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Strong competition within Bancorp's market area may limit the growth and profitability of the
Company.

Competition in the banking and financial services industry is intense. The Fairfield County, Connecticut and
the New York Citymetropolitan areas have a high concentration of financial institutions including large money
center and regional banks, community banks and credit unions. Some of Bancorp's competitors offer products
and services that the Bank currently does not offer, such as private banking and trust services. Many of these
competitors have substantially greater resources and lending limits than Bancorp and may offer certain services
that Bancorp does not or cannot provide. Price competition for loans and deposits might result in the Bank
earning less on its loans and paying more for deposits, which would reduce net interest income. Bancorp
expects competition to increase in the future as a result of legislative, regulatory and technological changes.
Bancorp's profitability depends upon itscontinued ability tosuccessfully compete in itsmarket area.

Governmentregulation may havean adverse effecton Bancorp's profitability and growth.

Bancorp is subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency as the Bank's chartering authority, bythe FDIC, as insurer of its deposits, and bythe Federal Reserve
Board as regulator of Bancorp. Changes in state and federal banking laws and regulations or in federal
monetary policies could adversely affect the Bank's ability to maintain profitability and continue to grow and,
in light ofrecent economic conditions, such changes are expected but cannot be predicted. For example, new
legislation or regulation could limit the manner in which Bancorp may conduct its business, including the
Bank's ability to obtain financing, attract deposits, make loans and achieve satisfactory interest spreads. The
laws, regulations, interpretations and enforcement policies that apply to Bancorp have been subject to
significant, and sometimes retroactively applied, changes in recent years, and are likely to change significantly
in the future.

Legislation proposing significant structural reforms to the financial services industry considered in the U.S.
Congress has, among other things, created the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, which gives broad
authority to regulate financial service providers and financial products. In addition, the Federal Reserve Bank
has passed guidance on incentive compensation at the banking organizations it regulates and the United States
Department ofthe Treasury and the federal banking regulators have issued statements calling for higher capital
and liquidity requirements for banking organization. Complying with any new legislative or regulatory
requirements, and any programs established thereunder by federal and state governments to address the current
economic crisis, could have an adverse impact on our results of operations and ourability to fill positions with
the most qualifiedcandidates available.

Changing regulation of corporate governance and publicdisclosure.

Laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, SEC regulations and
NASDAQ rules have added to the responsibilities ofcompanies, such as Bancorp. These laws, regulations and
standards are subject to varying interpretations, and as a result, their application in practice may evolve over
time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies, which could make compliance more
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difficult and result in higher costs. Bancorp is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governanceand public disclosure. As a result, Bancorp's efforts to comply with evolving laws, regulations and
standards have resulted in, and are likely to continue to result in, increased general and administrative expenses
and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities.
Bancorp's reputation may be harmed if it does not continue to comply with these laws, regulations and
standards.

The earnings of financial institutions are significantly affected by general business and economic
conditions.

As a financial institution, Bancorp's operations and profitability are impactedby general business and economic
conditions in the United States and abroad. These conditions include short-term and long-term interest rates,
inflation, money supply, political issues, legislative and regulatory changes and the strength of the
U.S. economy and the local economies in which we operate, all of which are beyond Bancorp's control. In
recent years, the banking world has experienced unprecedented upheaval, including the failure of some of the
leading financial institutions in the world. Further deterioration in economic conditions could result in an
increase in loan delinquencies and non-performir.gassets, decreases in loan collateral values and a decrease in
demand for the Bank's products and services, a»nong other things, any of which could have a material adverse
impact on Bancorp's results of operations and financial condition and for which Bancorp cannot currently
predict or implement plans to combat.

We are a "controlled company" within the meaning of the NASDAQ rules and, as a result, we qualify for,
and rely on, exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements.

PNBK Holdings LLC controls a majority of our voting common stock. As a result, we are a "controlled
company" within the meaning of NASDAQ corporate governance standards. Under the Nasdaq rules, a
company of which more than 50% of the voting power is held by an individual, group or another company is a
"controlled company" and we utilize exemptions relating to certain Nasdaq corporate governance requirements,
including:

The requirement that we have a Nominating and Governance Committee that is composed entirely of
independent directors;

The requirement that we have a Compensation Committee that is composed entirely of independent
directors; and

The requirement for an annual performance evaluation of the Nominating and Governance and
Compensation Committees.

As a result of these exemptions, our Nominating and Governance Committee and Compensation Committee do
not consist entirely of independent directors and we are not required to have an annual performance evaluation
of the Nominating and Governance and Compensation Committees. Accordingly, a holder of our common
stock will not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are subject to all of the
NASDAQcorporate governance requirements.
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ITEM IB. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

ITEM 2. Properties

Patriot National Bancorp Inc.'s corporate headquarters and main branch banking office is located at 900
Bedford Street in Stamford, Connecticut. The Bank purchased a building at 999 Bedford Street in November
2014, and intends to move the main branch banking office to this location. The Bank purchased the current
Stamford and Greenwich branch buildings in 2013. During 2014, the Bank purchased the Milford branch
building and also began construction of a new branch facility in Darien and the renovation of a branch office
purchased from another financial institution in Westport. The Bank intends to move from existing branches in
Darien and Westport upon completion of the new facilities. At December 31, 2014 three branches wereowned,
another threeowned buildings were in process of becoming branch facilities, and the Bank's sevenotherbranch
banking offices and additional administrative and operational office space were leased. The Bank also leases
space at its main office for additional parking. Lease commencement dates for office locations range from
April 2003 to July 2012 and lease expiration dates fall between March 2015 and July 2017. Most of the leases
contain rent escalation provisions, as well as renewal options for one or moreperiods.

The Bank has licensed excess space in two of its locations to an attorney and three independent companies. See
also "Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions." For additional information regarding the
Bank's leaseobligations, see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

All leased properties are in good condition.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

Neither Bancorp nor the Bank has any pending legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation
incidental to its business,to which Bancorpor the Bankis a party or any of its property is subject.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity. Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Eauitv Securities

Market Information

Bancorp Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the Symbol "PNBK." On
December31,2014, the last sale price for Bancorp Common Stock on the NASDAQ Global Market was
$16.40.

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of Bancorp Common Stock for the last two fiscal
years of each quarter adjusted for a l-for-10 reverse stock split. No cash dividends were declared during this
time.

2014 2013

Cash Cash

Sales Price Dividends Sales Price Dividends

Quarter Ended High Low Declared High Low Declared

March 31 $ 14.00 $ 9.60 $ - $ 17.20 $ 10.50 $ -
June 30 17.40 12.00 - 16.30 11.70 -

September 30 23.80 13.40 - 14.80 12.90 -

December 31 19.40 15.80 - 13.90 10.10 _

Holders

There were approximately 472 shareholders of record of Bancorp Common Stock as of December 31, 2014.
This number does not reflect the number of persons or entities holding stock in nominee name through banks,
brokerage firms or other nominees.

Dividends

Bancorp's ability to pay dividends is dependent on the Bank's ability to pay dividends to Bancorp. The Bank
can pay dividends to Bancorp only pursuant to a dividend policy requiring compliance with the Bank's OCC-
approved capital program, in compliance with applicable law and with the prior written determination of no
supervisory objection by the Assistant Deputy Comptroller. In addition to the capital program, certain other
restrictions exist regarding the ability of the Bank to transfer funds to Bancorp in the form of cash dividends,
loans or advances. The approval of the OCC is required to pay dividends in excess of the Bank's earnings
retained in the current year plus retained net earnings for the preceding two years. The Bank is also prohibited
from paying dividends that would reduce its capital ratios below minimum regulatory requirements. The
Federal Reserve Bankhas also imposed dividend restrictions on Bancorp.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the fourth quarter of 2014, Bancorp did nothave any sales of unregistered securities.

Purchases of Equity Securities bvthe Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

None.
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Performance Graph

The performance graph compares the yearly percentage change in Bancorp's cumulative total shareholder
return on its common stock over the last five fiscal years to the cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Index
and the NASDAQ Bank Index. Total shareholder return is measured by dividing the sum of the cumulative
amount of dividends for the measurement period (assuming dividend reinvestment) and the difference between
Bancorp's share price at the end and the beginning of the measurement period, by the share price at the
beginning of the measurement period.
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PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP

Total Return Performance

12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014

Period Ending
Index 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014

Patriot National Bank 100 135.5 112.9 80.6 67.1 105.8

Nasdaq Bank Index 100 111.9 98.0 113.5 157.6 162.1

S &P 500 100 112.8 112.8 127.9 165.8 184.6

19



ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

At or for the year ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Balance Sheet Data:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Cash and due from banks 73,258 34,866 70,303 54,716 136,324

Federal funds sold - - - -
10,000

Short-term investments - -
711 710 453

Investment securities 46,818 47,738 51,293 76,185 49,765

Loans, net 471,984 418,148 458,794 501,227 534,531

Total assets (2) 632,624 541,248 617,855 665,816 784,325

Total deposits (1) 443,033 430,204 497,283 544,909 646,809

Total borrowings 128,248 65,248 65,248 65,248 65,248

Total shareholders' equity 58,735 41,841 49,568 50,550 67,172

Operating Data:

Interest and dividend income $ 20,368 $ 21,654 $ 25,216 $ 28,332 $ 35,609

Interest expense 2,970 4,854 7,419 8,510 13,475

Net interest income 17,398 16,800 17,797 19,822 22,134

Provision for loan losses -
970 (2,379) 7,464 7,714

Non-interest income 1,832 2,426 3,274 3,411 2,354

Non-interest expense 18,271 25,884 23,986 31,228 31,948

(Benefit) provision for income taxes (14,750) (339) - -
225

Net income (loss) 15,709 (7,289) (536) (15,459) (15,399)

Per Share Data:

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share (3)

Dividends per share

4.08 (1.90) (0.14) (4.00) (13.00)

Key Performance Ratios:
Return on average assets 2.81% (1.28%) (0.08%) (2.29%) (1.89%)

Return on average equity 32.94% (16.43%) (1.05%) (27.64%) (37.88%)

Dividend payout ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Average equity to average assets 8.53% 7.80% 7.96% 8.28% 4.98%

(1)Includes $24.7 million of deposits held forsaleat December 31,2012.
(2)Includes $88,000 of branch assets held forsaleat December 31,2012.
(3) All common stock and per share data have been restated to give effect to a reverse stock split of l-for-10 effective March 4, 2015.
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and to disclose contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Management has identified accounting for the allowance for loan losses, the analysis and
valuation of its investment securities and the valuation of deferred tax assets, as Bancorp's most critical
accounting policies and estimates in that they are important to the portrayal of Bancorp's financial condition
and results. They require management's most subjective and complex judgment as a result of the need to make
estimates about the effect ofmatters that are inherently uncertain.

Bancorp's significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in this 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Summary

During 2014, the company obtained yearly net income for the first time since 2007 primarily as a result of
balance sheet and operational restructuring initiatives implemented during 2013 and 2014 by new executive
management.

The following were among the Company's notable achievements in 2014:

Net interest margin (NIM) of 3.37%
Recognition of$16.8 million of deferred tax assets ("DTA') in September 2014
Total loan growth of $53.9 million or 12.9% as compared to December 31, 2013
Improved capital ratios
Continued asset quality improvement
Non- interest expense reduction of $7.6 million or 29.4%
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets

Bancorp's total assets increased $91.4 million, or 16.9%, from $541.2 million at December 31, 2013 to $632.6
million at December31, 2014 as generation of income and recognition of the majority of the Bank's deferred
tax asset enabled the Bank to grow capital and assets.

Cash and cash equivalents increased $38.4million primarily due to the Bank's efforts to increase
liquidity.
Loans increased $53.9 million as loan purchases and originations exceeded payments of loan
principal. Loangrowth had beenconstrained by the Bank's capital levelsduring2013.
Cash surrender value of Bank Owned Life Insurance ("BOLL") decreased $22.0 million as the
Bank liquidated the policies in December 2014, and used the proceeds to purchase residential
mortgage loans.
Premises and equipment increased $7.3 million as the Bank purchased a branch it had been
leasing and is in the process of completing three additional branches for future relocation from
current branch sites.

Deferred tax assets of $14.9 millionwere reported at December31, 2014 as the Bank was able to
recognizethe majority of its deferredtax asset in September 2014.

Investments

The following table is a summary of Bancorp's investment portfolio at fair value at December 31 for the years
shown.

(in thousands)

U.S. Government Agencybonds

U.S. Government Agency mortgage-

backed securities

Corporate bonds

Federal Reserve Bank stock

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Other investments

Total Investments

2014 2013 2012

$ 7,409 $ 7,079 $ 7,526

17,337 21,752 25,707

8,936 8,870 8,486

2,058 1,444 1,730

6,628 4,143 4,344

4,450 4,450 3,500

$ 46,818 $ 47,738 $ 51,293

Total investments decreased $920,000, or 1.9%, primarily due to principal payments of $4.5 million on the
government agency mortgage-backed securities, partially offset by Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal
Reserve Bank stock purchases of $2.5 million and $614,000 respectively. In addition, the Bank's unrealized
loss on available for sale securities decreased $734,000 from $1.2 million to $453,000.

22



The following table presents the maturity distribution of available-for-sale investment securities at
December31, 2014 and the weighted average yield of the amortized cost of such securities. The weighted
average yields were calculated on the amortized cost and effective yields to maturity of each security. Actual
maturities of mortgage-backed securities may differ from contractual maturities because the mortgages
underlying the securities may be repaid without any penalties. As mortgage-backed securities are not due at a
singlematuritydate, they are includedin the "No maturity" categoryin the followingmaturity summary.

(dollars in thousands)

One year

or less

Over one

through

five years

Overfive

through

ten years No maturity Total

Weighted

Average

Yield

U. S. Government Agency
bonds

U. S. Government Agency
$ - $ 2,500 $ 5,000 $

- $ 7,500 1.83%

mortgage-backed securit
Corporate bonds

ies

Total

yield

$ - $ 2,500

1.34%

$

9,000

14,000

1.98%

17,635

$

17,635

9,000

34,135

1.97%

2.16%

1.71%

$ 17,635

2.16%

1.97%

Weightedaverage

The following tablepresents a summary of investments for any issuerthat exceeds 10% of shareholders' equity
at December 31,2014:

(in thousands) Amortized Cost Fair Value

Available for sale securities:

U. S. Government Agencymortgage-backedsecurities and bonds $ 25,135 $ 24,746
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Loans

The following tables provide a summary of Bancorp's loan portfolio at December 31 for each of the years
shown:

(in thousands)
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Real Estate

Commercial $ 254,505 $ 222,772 $ 246,998 $ 215,019 $ 228,043

Residential 108,543 106,968 119,864 189,383 188,164

Construction 3,096 260 4,998 12,293 63,837

Construction to permanent 10,627 11,372 4,908 10,018 10,301

Commercial 53,973 35,137 36,436 31,810 14,597

Consumer home equity 41,631 44,315 49,436 49,912 43,007

Consumer installment 4,533 3,005 2,169 2,177 1,956

Total Loans 476,908 423,829 464,809 510,612 549,905

Allowance for loan losses (4,924) (5,681) (6,016) (9,385) (15,374)

Loans receivable, net $ 471,984 $ 418,148 $ 458,793 $ 501,227 $ 534,531

Bancorp's net loan portfolio increased $53.9 million, or 12.9%, to $472.0 million at December 31, 2014 from
$418.1 million at December 31,2013 as a result of loan purchases and originations in excess of loan payoffs.
Significant increases in the portfolio included a$31.7 million increase in commercial real estate loans, and an
$18.9 million increase in commercial loans.

The allowance for loan losses decreased by $757,000, primarily due to the charge-off of loans which were
specifically reserved for in the allowance, and to continued improvement in asset quality.

At December 31,2014, the net loan to deposit ratio was 107% and the net loan to asset ratio was 75%. At
December 31,2013, the netloan todeposit ratio was 97%, and the net loan toasset ratio was 77%.

Loan Concentrations

The Bank has no concentrations of loans other than those disclosed in the summary below. Commercial real
estate plus construction represents 56.2% of total loans, up from 55.4% at December 31,2013.
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Maturities and Sensitivities of Loans to Changes in Interest Rates

The following table presents the maturities of loans in Bancorp's portfolio at December 31,2014, by type of
loan:

Due after

Due in one year

one year through Due after

(in thousands) or less five years

$ 56,185

five years

$ 174,724

Total

Commercial real estate $ 23,596 $ 254,505
Residential real estate - - 108,543 108,543

Construction loans 2,557 539 - 3,096

Construction to permanent loans - 3,963 6,664 10,627

Commercial loans 18,557 22,298 13,118 53,973

Consumerhome equity - 80 41,551 41,631

Consumer installment 3 1,969 2,561 4,533
Total $ 44,713 $ 85,034 $ 347,161 $ 476,908

Fixed rate loans $ 23,585 $ 53,948 $ 31,836 $ 109,369
Variable rate bans 21,128 31,086 315,325 367,539

Total $ 44,713 $ 85,034 $ 347,161 $ 476,908
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses decreased $757,000 from December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2014 primarily
due to charge-offs of loans which had specific reserves. Improved credit quality of the loan portfolio, including
reduction of non-accrual, impaired and delinquent loans, resulted in a calculated allowance that was sufficient
despite the growth in the portfolio. Based upon the overall assessment and evaluation of the loan portfolio at
December31,2014, management believes the allowance for loan losses of $4.9 million, which represents
1.03% of gross loans outstanding, is adequate to absorb existing losses in the loan portfolio.
At December 31,2013, the allowance for loan losses was $5.7 million, or 1.34%, of gross loans outstanding.

Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(in thousands)

Balance at beginning ofperiod $ 5,681 $ 6,016 $ 9,385 $ 15,374 $ 15,794
Charge-ofls:

Commercial real estate

Residential real estate

Construction

Commercial

Consumer

Total charge-ofls
Recoveries

Net charge-ofls
Additions charged to operations
Transferred to held-for-sale

Balance at end ofperiod

(297) (403) (50) (2,941) (2,560)

(195) (919) (85) (1,458) (600)

(260) (205) (101) (3,305) (4,726)

(49) (63) (48) (375) (396)

(66) (78) (786) (174) (88)

(867)

110

(1,668)

363

(1,070)

80

(8,253)

854

(8,370)

236

(757) (1,305) (990) (7,399) (8,134)

- 970 (2,379) 7,464

(6,054)

7,714

$ 4,924 $ 5,681 $ 6,016 $ 9,385 $ 15,374

Ratio ofnet charge-ofls
during the period to average loans
outstanding during the period 0.18% 0.29% 0.20% 1.52% 1.32%

Ratio ofALLL / Gross Loans 1.03% 1.34% 1.29% 1.84% 2.80%
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Allocation ofthe Allowance for Loan Losses

(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Allowance Allowance Allowance Allowance Allowance

for loan %of for loan %of for loan %of for loan %of for loan %of

losses loans losses loans losses loans losses loans losses loans

Real Estate:

Commercial $ 1,419 53.4% $ 1,585 52.6% $ 3,509 53.1% $ 4,019 42.1% $ 7,633 41.5%

Residential 831 22.8 795 25.2 897 25.8 2,551 37.1 2364 34.2

Construction 63 0.6 260 0.1 311 1.1 867 2.4 3,478 11.6

Construction to permanent 215 2.2 25 2.7 19 1.1 547 2.0 492 1.9

Commercial 1,918 11.3 2,285 8.3 942 7.8 882 6.2 441 2.7

Consumer 478 9.7 534 11.2 217 11.1 459 10.2 578 8.2

Unallocated
- N/A 197 N/A 121 N/A 60 N/A 388 N/A

Total $ 4,924 100.0% $ 5,681 100.0% $ 6,016 100.0% $ 9^85 100.0% $ 15374 100.0%

Non-Accrual. Past Due and Restructured Loans

The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days past due for payment unless the
loan is well-secured and in process of collection. Consumer installment loans are typically charged off no later
than 180 dayspast due. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed
on non-accrual status or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.
All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual status or charged off is reversed
against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis method until qualifying
for return to accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts
contractually due are brought current, future payments are reasonably assured, and there is 6 months of
performance. Management considers all non-accrual loans and troubled debt restructurings to be impaired. In
most cases, loan payments that are past due less than 90 days, based on contractual terms, are considered
collection delays and the related loans are not considered to be impaired. The Bank considers consumer
installment loans to be pools of smaller balance homogeneous loans, which are collectively evaluated for
impairment.
The following table is a summary of non-accrual and accruing loans which were past due by over 90 days at the
end ofeach of the last five years.

(dollars in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Loanspast due over 90 days $ 279 $ 866 $ 2,234 $ 9,461 $ 3,374

still accruing
N on accrual loans 866 12,337 23,810 20,683 89,150

Total $ 1,145 $ 13,203 $ 26,044 $ 30,144 $ 92,524

% ofTotal Loans 0.24% 3.12% 5.60% 5.90% 16.83%

% ofTotal Assets 0.18% 2.44% 4.22% 4.53% 11.80%

Additional income on non-accrual loans $

ifrecognized on an accrual basis
23 $ 545 $ 1,172 $ 2,275 $ 6,618

Non-accrual loans decreased from $12.3 million at December 31, 2013 to $0.9 million at December 31, 2014.
The $0.9millionofnon-performing loans was comprisedof 4 borrowersat December31, 2014, comparedto 15
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borrowers at December 31, 2013. Included in non-accruingloans were loans of $138,000 and $7.8 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively that were current within 30 days as to payments. One loan of $0.3
million which had been non-accrual at December 31, 2014 subsequently paid off in February 2015.

Non-performing loans peaked at $137.9 million at September 30, 2009. The decrease in the number of non-
performing loans represents the Bank's continuous focus on asset quality.

Loans past due ninetydays or more, and still accruing interest were $279,000 and $866,000 at December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Loans over 90 days past due were comprised of four commercial
and industrial loans at December 31, 2014. All four loans were mature lines of credit with acceptable risk
ratings awaiting renewal. These loans were past maturity dates and were current within 60 days as to interest
payments. Loans over 90 days past due were comprised of two loans at December 31, 2013; one loan for
$841,000 was current and a $25,000 loan was current within 60 days as to interest payments. Both loans were
past theloans maturity dates and were in the process of being renewed.

At December 31, 2014, there was one loan totaling $1.1 million that was considered a troubled debt
restructuring, as compared to 2 loans totaling $2.2 million that were considered troubled debt restructurings at
December 31, 2013, all of which were considered impaired loans. Loan modifications, which resulted in these
loans being considered troubled debt restructurings, were primarily in the form of rate concessions or term
extensions. There were no commitments to advance additional funds under modified terms for these loans.

Other Real Estate Owned

There was no real estate owned at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. During the twelve months
ended December 31, 2014, one OREO property was foreclosed, and subsequently sold. During the year ended
December 31, 2013, the Bank did not acquire any properties and two properties were sold with an aggregate
carryingvalue of$5.0 million.

Deferred Taxes

The determinationof the amount of deferred tax assets which are more likely than not to be realized is primarily
dependent on projections of future earnings, which are subject to uncertainty and estimates that may change
given economic conditions and other factors. A valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets is required
when it is considered more likely than not that all or part of the benefit related to such assets will not be
realized. The valuation allowance is analyzed quarterly for changes affecting the deferred tax asset. In
September 2014, the Company released $16.8 million, or 96.7%, of the valuation allowance previously
recorded on its net deferred tax asset.

Afterweighing all the evidence Management determined that it was more likely than not that the Bank would
be able to realize substantially all of its deferred tax asset and, therefore, the valuation allowance on that portion
was no longer required.

The positive evidence that outweighed the negative evidence in Management's assessment included, but was
not limited to, the following:

Strongpositive trend in financial performance over the last four quarters
Forecasted taxable income for 2015 and future periods
Net operating losscarry-forwards thatdo not beginto expireuntil 2029
A significantimprovement in the qualityof the loanportfolio
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Favorable changes in operations which permanently reduce operating expenses.

The Company will continue to evaluate its ability to realize its net deferred tax asset. If future evidence
suggests that it is more likely than not that a portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized, the valuation
allowance may be increased.

Other Assets

During the fourth quarter of 2014, Bancorp's Bank Owned Life Insurance ("BOLI") policy of $22.4 million was
liquidated and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans were purchased with the proceeds. The loans
purchased had a composite yield of approximately 300basis points higher than the existing crediting rate on the
BOLI policy. In addition, the tax-exempt feature of the BOLI held no value for Bancorp due to the significant
amountofnet operatingloss ("NOL") carry forwards in the Company's deferred tax assets.

Premises and equipment increased $7.3 million from $15.1 million at December 31, 2013 to $22.4 million at
December 31, 2014. This increase was primarily due to purchases totaling $8.3 million which was partially
offset by depreciation of $1.1 million. All facility purchase transactions were undertaken after careful cost/
benefit analysis showed a clearbenefitto the Company in owning ratherthan leasing the subjectproperties.

Deposits

Thefollowing table is a summary ofBancorp'sdeposits at December 31 for eachof the yearsshown:

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Non-interest bearing $ 63,398 $ 55,358 $ 65,176

Interestbearing

NOW 26,269 28,618 30,191

Savings 93,790 80,983 77,761

Money market 24,650 29,310 42,402

Time certificates, less than $100,000 106,340 129,548 160,611

Time certificates, $100,000 or more 97,876 106,387 121,142

BrokeredDeposits 30,710

379,635

- -

Totalinterestbearing 374,846 432,107

TotalDeposits (1) $ 443,033 $ 430,204 $ 497,283

(1) Included in total deposits are $24.7 million ofdeposits held for sale at December 31,2012.

Total deposits increased $12.8 million, or 3.0%, to $443.0 million at December 31, 2014.

Non-interest bearing deposits increased $8.0 million, or 14.5%, to $63.4 million.

Interest bearing deposits increased $4.8 million, or 1.3%, to $379.6 million primarily due to increases in
brokered deposits of $30.7 million and savings accounts of $12.8 million partially offset by a decrease in
certificates of deposit of $31.7 million, or 13.4% when compared to last year. Brokered deposits of
approximately $30.0 million were obtained in December2014 to ftind anticipated loan growth. The increase in
savings balances was primarilydue to promotional rates and shift in balances from other deposit products. The
decrease in time deposits was primarily the result of strategic pricing initiatives intended to reduce higher cost
deposits.
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As ofDecember 31,2014, the Bank's maturities of time deposits were:

Less than $100,000

$100,000 or more Totals

(in thousands )

Three months or less $ 47,878 $ 35,079 $ 82,957

Four to six months 39,925 18,259 58,184

Seven months to one year 37,657 32,240 69,897

Over one year 11,590 12,298 23,888

Total $ 137,050 $ 97,876 $ 234,926

Borrowings

Borrowings increased to $128.2 million at December 31, 2014 as compared to $65.2 million at
December 31, 2013. Borrowings at December 31, 2014 were comprised of $120.0 million in Federal Home
Loan Bank Advances and $8.2 million in junior subordinated debentures. Borrowings at December 31, 2013
were comprised of $57.0 million in Federal Home Loan Bank Advances, and $8.2 million in junior
subordinated debentures.

The increase in FHLB borrowings of $63.0 million in 2014 was primarily due to a strategic business decision
made to increase profitability in future periods. Mangement took advantage of the low cost funding provided
through the FHLB Bank Advances program toenter into a loan participation ofapproximately $50.0 million.

AllFHLB borrowings at December 31,2014 andDecember 31,2013hadmaturities of less than oneyear.

Shareholders' Equity

Shareholders' equity increased $16.9 million from $41.8 million at December 31, 2013 to $58.7 million at
December 31, 2014. This is primarily the result of net income of $15.7 million, and an increase in accumulated
other comprehensiveincome of $910,000.
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Average Balances

The following table presents average balance sheets (daily averages), interest income, interest expense and the
corresponding yieldsearned and rates paid:

Average Balance Sheet

Net Interest income-Rate andVolume Variance Analysis

2014 2013 2012

Interest Interest Interest

(dollars in thousands) Average Income/ Average Average Income/ Average Average Income/ Average
Balance Expense Rate Balance 1Expense Rate Balance 1Expense Rate

Interest earningassets:

Loans $ 427,032 $ 19,601 4.59% $ 454,849 $ 20,706 4.55% $ 494,333 $ 23,482 4.75%

Cash equivalents 42,405 67 0.16% 32,022 60 0.19% 55,638 98 0.18%

Investments 46,544 700 1.50% 49,070 888 1.81% 60,799 1,636 2.69%

Total interestearningassets $ 515,981 $ 20,368 3.95% $ 535,941 $ 21,654 4.04% $ 610,770 $ 25,216 4.13%

Cash and due from banks 1,863 3,337 4,660
Allowance for loan losses (5,277) (5,813) (7,771)
Other assets 46,636 35,328 32,206

Total Assets $ 559,203 $ 568,793 $ 639,865

Interest bearing liabilities:

Time certificates $ 221,659 $ 2,016 0.91% $ 253,714 $ 3,422 1.35% $ 313,693 $ 4,932 1.57%

Savings accounts 88,008 330 0.37% 87,676 350 0.40% 66,137 331 0.50%

Money market accounts 27,144 14 0.05% 35,268 41 0.11% 46,944 72 0.15%

NOW accounts 26,226 4 0.02% 29337 9 0.03% 25,617 16 0.06%

Borrowings 79,216 181 0.23% 45,678 748 1.64% 61,320 1,768 2.88%

Subordinated debt 8,248 425 5.15% 8,248 284 3.44% 8,248 300 3.64%

Total interest bearing liabilities $ 450,501 $ 2,970 0.66% $ 459,921 $ 4,854 1.06% $ 521,959 $ 7,419 1.42%

Demand deposits 57,850 59,892 61,586

Other liabilities 3,158 4,606 5,370

Shareholder's equity 47,694 44,374 50,950

Total liabilities and equity $ 559,203 $ 568,793 $ 639,865

Net interest income $ 17^98 $ 16,800 $ 17,797

Interest margin 3.37% 3.13%

2.98%

2.91%

Interest spread 3.29% 2.71%



The following table presents the dollar amount ofchanges in interest income and interest expense for the major
categories of our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities:

2014 vs. 2013 2013 VS. 2012

Increase (Decrease) Total Increase (Decrease) Total

due to Increase due to Increase

(dollars in thousands) Volume Rate (decrease) Volume 1Hate (decrease)

Interest earning assets:

Loans $ (1,256) $ 151 $ (1,105) $ (1,817) $ (959) $ (2,776)

Cash equivalents 17 (10) 7 (42) 4 (38)

Investments (44) (144) (188) (278) (470) (748)

Total interest earning assets (1,283) (3) 0,286) (2,137) (1,425) (3,562)

Interest bearing liabilities:

Time certificates $ (393) $ (1,013) $ (1,406) $ (872) $ (638) $ (1,510)

Savings accounts 1 (21) (20) 94 (75) 19

Money market accounts (8) (19) (27) (15) (16) (3D

NOW accounts (1) (4) (5) 2 (9) (7)

Borrowings 332 (899) (567) (471) (549) (1,020)

Subordinated debt

bilities

-
141 141

(U62)

(16)

(1,303)

(16)

Total interest bearing Ha (69) (1,815) (1,884) (2,565)
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparisonof Results of Operations for the years 2014and 2013

For the year ended December 31, 2014, Bancorp recorded net income of $15.7 million ($4.08 per share)
compared to a net loss of $7.3 million ($1.90 per share) forthe yearended December 31,2013.

Income before income tax expense was $1.0 milllion, an increase of $8.6 million compared to a loss before
income tax expense of $7.6 million in 2013.

Net interest income increased $0.6 million

Provision for loan losses decreased $ 1.0 million

Non-interest income decreased $0.6 million

Non-interest expense decreased $7.6 million

The positive results for 2014 were Bancorp's first year ofnet profitability since 2007 and were primarily due to
balance sheet and operational restructuring initiatives implemented during 2013 and 2014 by new executive
management. These initiatives included:

Prepayment of high costborrowings andreplacement with borrowings at significantly lower rates.
Strategic repricing of deposits coupled with the borrowing initiative to substantially reduce the cost of
funds.

Streamlining of branch and back office operations and exit from the Residential Lending business,
resulting in non-interest expense reductions.
Obtaining vendor price concessions
Purchasing three branch buildings where the cost ofthe leases exceeded the cost to own the properties.

Bancorp's improved earnings and balance sheet resulting from the initiatives noted and continued efficiencies
created during 2014 enabled the Company torecognize a $16.8 million income tax benefit inthe third quarter of
2014 via reversal of most of the valuation allowance against itsDeferred Tax Asset ("DTA"). Recognition of
theDTA also increased regulatory capital, enabling Bancorp to increase its assetbase.

Net interest Income

Net interest income is the difference between interest income on interest earning assets and interest expense on
interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income depends on the relative amounts of interest earning assets and
interest bearing liabilities andthe interest rates earned or paid on them, respectively.

Net interest income increased $0.6million from $16.8 million for the yearendedDecember 31, 2013 to $17.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Total interest and dividend income decreased $1.3 million, or 6.0%, primarily as a result of lower
average loanbalances. Increased yields on loans were offset by loweryields on investments.

o Average loan balances were $27.8 million lower in 2014 than in 2013, including a decrease in
the average residential real estate loan balance of $27.7 million. The decrease in average loan
balances resulted in lower interest income of $1.3 million.

o Average yields on loans increased to 4.59% from 4.55% in 2013. This benefitted interest income
by $151,000 and was largely derived from loan mix as lower yielding residential loans
constituteda smaller portion of the average loan portfolio in 2014.
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o Average yields on investments decreased to 1.50% from 1.81% in 2013 resulting in lower
interest income of $144,000. The decrease in yields was primarily due to bonds repricing lower
during 2013, in addition to increased prepayments and resulting premium amortization on
mortgage-backed-securities.

Total interest expense decreased $1.9 million from $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
to $3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 as average deposit and borrowing rates were
significantlylower in 2014.

o Deposit expense decreased $1.5 million primarily due to strategic pricing initiatives which
reduced dependence upon high cost term deposits as a funding source. The average rate on
interest bearing deposits decreased from 0.94% to 0.65% in 2014, resulting in a $1.1 million
decrease in interest expense. The remaining $0.4 million reduction in deposit expense was
primarily due to shift in funding mix from higher rate time deposits to FHLB borrowings.
Average time deposits were $32.1 million lower than in 2013. Average borrowings increased
$33.5 million from 2013.

o Interest expense on borrowings decreased $0.6 million from 2014. The average rate on
borrowings decreased from 1.64% to 0.23% in 2014, resulting in a $0.9 million decrease in
interest expense. Higher average balances due to the previously noted shift from time deposits
resulted in incrementalexpense of$0.3 million.

o Interest expense on subordinated debt increased $141,000 from 2013, primarily due to
incremental expense of $117,000 related todeferred interest payments from prior years.

Management regularly reviews loan and deposit rates and strives to price Bancorp's products competitively.
The Company tracks its mix of asset and liability maturities and manages its balance sheet in an effort to
maintain a reasonable match.

Provisionfor loan losses

During 2014, Bancorp did not make any additional provisions for loan losses due to continued improvement in
asset quality. During 2013 Bancorp recorded aprovision of$1.0 million as aspecific reserve for one impaired
loan. Net charge-offs decreased to $757,000 as compared to $1.3 million in 2013. In addition, criticized assets
decreased by $15.2 million to $13.0 million at December 31, 2014 from $28.2 million at December 31, 2013.
Bancorp continues to maintain conservative underwriting standards including minimum loan to value ratios.

During the fourth quarter of 2014 management implemented changes to the methodology for calculating the
allowance for the loan losses by updating our study of the Loss Emergence Period ("LEP"). A more detailed
description of the change is presented under the discussion entitled "Allowance for Loan Losses"("ALL")
within the significant accounting policies section of Note 1tothe consolidated financial statements.
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Non-interest income

Non-interest income decreased by $594,000, or 24.5%, from $2.4 million in 2013 to $1.8 million in 2014. Non-
interest income for 2014 included a $455,000 loss on disposition of the Bank's BOLI policy. Excluding this
lossnon-interest incomewas $139,000, or 5.7%, lowerthan in 2013. Othersignificant reductions included:

Lower mortgage banking fees of $231,000 primarily due to the decision during 2013 to discontinue
originatingand selling residential mortgage loans
No branch or portfolio loan sales in 2014 as compared to combined proceeds of $79,000 for both in
2013.

Decrease in BOLI income of$84,000 primarily due to lowercrediting rates during 2014

Partially offsetting the noted reductions were increased loans and deposit fees totaling $118,000 and
incremental rental income ofapproximately$275,000.

Non-interest expense

Non-interest expense decreased $7.6 million, or 29.4%, from $25.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 to $18.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. Non-interest expense in 2013 included
prepayment penalties on borrowings of $4.1 million and restructuring charges of $522,000. Non-interest
expense in 2014 included expense of $437,000 related to disposition of the BOLI policy. Excluding these non
recurring expenses, non-interest expense decreased by $3.4 million, or 16.1%, and included the following
differences:

Salaries and benefits werereduced by $1.6 million, primarily dueto savings from employment
reductions in addition to reduced expenseresulting from changing health benefit providers.
Occupancy andequipment expensedecreased $354,000 primarily due to purchasing threebranches from
May 2013to June2014 which had formerly been leased, in addition to closing a branchin 2013.
Professional and other outside services decreased $524,000 primarily due to lower legal fees resulting
from improved asset quality, renegotiation of several vendor contracts and reduced consultant usage.
Regulatory assessments reduction of$281,000 primarily due to rating upgrades received.
Other real estate operations ("OREO") reduction of$200,000.
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Comparison of Results of Operations for the years 2013 and 2012

Forthe year ended December 31, 2013, Bancorp recorded a net loss of $7.3 million ($1.90 per share) compared
to a net loss of$536,000 ($0.14 per share) for the year ended December31,2012.

Net interest income decreased $1.0 million from $17.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 to $16.8
million for the year ended December 31,2013.

Total interest and dividend income decreased $3.6 million, or 14.1%, as a result of lower outstanding
average earning assets, payoffs on loans carrying interest rates higher than current market rates and new
loanoriginations at rates lowerthanmaintained in theportfolios in 2012.
Total interest expense decreased $2.5 million from $7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012
to $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 as a result of a decrease in the level of
outstanding average interest bearing deposits, reduced dependence upon high cost term deposits as a
funding source, and expense reduction due to the prepayment of high cost FHLB borrowings during
2013and the subsequent obtainment of newborrowings at significantly lowerrates.

Noninterest income was $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to $3.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease was caused primarily from the gain on the sale of investment
securities in 2012 of $911,000.

Total non-interest expense of$25.9 million for2013 was $1.9 million higher than the$24.0 million recorded for
2012. Excluding prepayment penalties on borrowings of $4.1 million in 2013 and restructuring charges of
$522,000, as compared to $939,000 in 2012, non-interest expense was $1.8 million lower than in 2012. Salaries
and benefits, occupancy and equipment and insurance expense all showed significant reductions as a result of
restructuring initiatives implemented in 2013. Regulatory assessments decreased $565,000 as a result of an
upgrade received from the Bank's regulators in 2013.

Net interest income

Bancorp's net interest income of$16.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $1.0 million, or5.6%
less than the $17.8 million recorded for the year ended December 31,2012.

Total interest and dividend income of $21.7 million was $3.4 million, or 14.1%, lower than the $25.2
million recorded in 2012. Average interest earning assets decreased from $610.8 million in 2012 to
$535.9 million in 2013. Average loans outstanding decreased from $494.3 million to $454.8 million.
The average yield on the portfolio decreased from 4.75% in2012 to 4.55% in 2013. The lower yield on
the portfolio was due to the pay offof loans in the portfolio at rates currently higher than market and the
closing of new loans at rates currently lower than the average yield of the portfolio. Average
investments outstanding during the year were $11.8 million lower than the $60.8 million maintained
during 2012 as Bancorp did not want to commit additional funds to longer term investments during this
historically low interest rate environment. The yield on the portfolio declined from 2.69% in 2012 to
1.81% in 2013 due to sales of higher yielding instruments in 2012. Cash equivalents decreased from an
average outstanding of$55.6 million in 2012 to $32.0 million in 2013. The reduction inexcess liquidity
was used to pay offhigher yielding certificates of deposits and high cost borrowings, and therefore, had
a positiveimpacton the net interestmargin.

Total interest expense decreased from $7.4 million in 2012 to $4.9 million in 2013. The decrease was
due to both lower levels of average outstanding interest bearing liabilities and a significant reduction in
the cost of funds for the deposit portfolio and FHLB advances. Total interest expense on certificates of
deposit decreased by $1.5 million, or 31%, from $4.9 million in 2012 to $3.4 million in 2013. The
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portfolio dropped from $313.7 million with a cost of funds of 1.57% to $253.7 million in 2013 at a cost
of 1.35%. Savings accounts increased by $21.5 million during the year based upon the growth in a new
core relationship product with a short term promotional introductory rate. The overall cost of funds for
savings decreased by 10 basis points during the year and interest expense increased by $19,000. Interest
expense on borrowings decreased by $1.0 million, or 54%, as Bancorp restructured high cost advances
in 2013, lowering the average cost of borrowings from 2.88% to 1.64%. Total borrowings remain
unchangedat $57.0 million as ofDecember 31, 2012 and December 31,2013.

Provision for loan losses

During 2013 Bancorp recorded a provision of $1.0 million compared to a credit to the provision of
approximately $2.4 million in 2012. The $1.0 million charge to the provision was a specific reserve for one
impaired loan. The $2.4 million credit to the provision for 2012 was based upon management's evaluation of
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Overall credit quality has improved and recoveries from
previously charged-off loans were $363,000 in 2013 compared to $80,000 in 2012. Total criticized loans
decreased by $39.6 million from $67.8 million at December 31, 2012 to $28.2 million at December 31, 2013.
Bancorp continues to maintain conservative underwriting standards including minimum loan to value ratios. In
addition, the size of the loan portfolio had been reduced with loans receivable of $418.1 million at December
31,2013 being $40.6 million, or 9%, lower thanthe prior yearend.

Non-interest income

Non-interest income decreased by $848,000, or 26%, from $3.3 million in 2012 to $2.4 million in 2013. Gains
on the sale of investment securities and loans were lower by $911,000 and $308,000, respectively, primarily due
to investment sales and bulk loan sales in 2012. Excluding these non-recurring items, non-interest income
increased in 2013. Fees and service charges were lower by $113,000, or 13%, primarily due to a reduction in
average deposit balances. These decreases in non-interest income were more than offsetby an increase in loan
applications, inspection and processing fees of $147,000, an increase in mortgage banking activity of $92,000
and the gain recognized on the saleofbranch assets and deposits of$51,000.

Non-interest expense

Non-interest expense increased $1.9 million, or 8%, from $24.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012
to $25.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Prepayment penalties onthe high cost borrowings were
$4.1 million of the increase, partially offset by lower restructuring charges of $418,000. Excluding these non
recurring expenses, non-interest expense decreased by $1.8 million. Salaries and benefits were reduced by $0.9
million, or 8%, in 2013, occupancy and equipment expense was lower by $509,000, or 12% and regulatory
assessments decreased $565,000. Data processing expense decreased $173,000 primarily due to changes in a
service contract.
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LIQUIDITY

Bancorp's liquidity position was 16% and 13% at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The liquidity
ratio is defined as thepercentage of liquid assets to total assets. The following categories of assets as described
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are considered liquid assets: cash and due from banks, federal
funds sold, short-term investments andavailable-for-sale securities which have not been pledged. Liquidity is a
measure of Bancorp's ability to generate adequate cash to meet financial obligations. The principal cash
requirements of a financial institution are to cover increases in its loan portfolio and downward fluctuations in
deposit accounts. Management believes Bancorp's short-term assets provide sufficient liquidity to satisfy loan
demand, cover potential fluctuations in deposit accounts andto meet other anticipated cash requirements.

At December 31, 2014, cash and cash equivalents and unpledged available-for-sale securities were
$73.3 million and $26.2 million, respectively. In addition to Federal Home Loan Bank advances outstanding at
December 31, 2014, the Bank had the ability to borrow an additional $29.8 million from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston, which included a $2.0million overnight line of credit. At December 31, 2014 the Bank
had $120.0 million in Federal Home Loan Bank advances, none of which were under the overnight line of
credit. The Bank also has the ability to borrow from the Federal ReserveBank.

Thefollowing table presents Bancorp's contractual obligations as of December 31,2014:

Less than One to Three to Overfive

(in thousands) Total one year three years five years years

Certificates ofdeposit $ 204,216 $ 180,327 $ 17,299 $ 6,590
Brokered deposits 30,710 30,710
Junior subordinated debt owed

to unconsolidated trust 8,248 ... 8,248
FHLB Advances 120,000 120,000
Operating lease obligations 3,177 1,363 1,195 295 324

Total contractual obligations $ 366,351 $ 332,400 $ 18,494 $ 6,885 $ 8,572
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The following table presents Bancorp's off-balance sheet commitments as of December 31, 2014. These
commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a
fee by the borrower. Since these commitments could expire without being drawn upon or are contingent upon
the customer adhering to the terms of the agreements, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements.

(in thousands) 2014
*~\ '.A A A A ^ 1".

Commitments to extend credit:

Future loan commorients $ 19,734

Home equity lines ofcredit 23,608

Unused lines ofcredit 33,923

Undisbursed construction loans 6,071

Financial standby letters ofcredit 1,125

$ 84,461

REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The following tables illustrate Bancorp's and the Bank's regulatory capital ratios at December 31, 2014 and
December 31,2013 respectively:

Patriot National Bancorp, Inc.

December31,2014 December31,2013

Tier1 Leverage Capital 9.62% 9.33%
Tier 1 Risk-based Capital 12.98% 12.70%
TotalRisk-based Capital 14.08% 13.95%

Patriot National Bank

December 31,2014 December 31,2013

Tier 1 LeverageCapital 9.63% 9.28%
Tier 1 Risk-based Capital 12.98% 12.61%
TotalRisk-based Capital 14.08% 13.86%

Capital adequacy is one of the most important factors used to determine the safetyand soundness of individual
banks and the banking system. Under the regulatoryframework for prompt correction action, to be considered
"well capitalized," an institution must generally have a leverage capital ratio of at least 9%, a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of at least 10.50% and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 12%. However, the OCC has the
discretion to require increased capital levels.

Management continuously assesses the adequacy of the Bank's capital with the goal to maintain a "well
capitalized" classification.
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk is defined as the sensitivityof income to fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity
prices, commodity prices and othermarket-driven rates or prices. Bancorp's market risk is primarily limited to
interest rate risk.

Bancorp's goal is to maximize long term profitability while minimizing its exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
The first priority is to structure and price Bancorp's assets and liabilities to maintain an acceptable interest rate
spread while reducing the net effect of changes in interest rates. In order to accomplish this, the focus is on
maintaining a proper balance between the timing and volume of assets and liabilities re-pricing within the
balance sheet. One method of achieving this balance is to originate variable rate loans for the portfolio and
purchase short-term investments to offset the increasing short term re-pricing of the liability sideof the balance
sheet. In fact, a number of the interest-bearing deposit products have no contractual maturity. Therefore,
deposit balances may run off unexpectedly due to changing market conditions. Additionally, loans and
investments with longer term rate adjustment frequencies can be matched against longer term deposits and
borrowingsto lock in a desirable spread.

The exposure to interest rate risk is monitored by the Management Asset and Liability Committee consisting of
senior management personnel. The Committee reviews the interrelationships within the balance sheet to
maximize net interest income within acceptable levels of risk. This Committee reports to the Board of
Directors. In addition to the Management Asset and Liability Committee, there is a Board Asset and Liability
Committee ("ALCO"), which meets quarterly. ALCO monitors the interest rate risk analyses, reviews
investment transactions during the periodand determines compliance with Bank, ALCOand Liquidity policies.

Management analyzes Bancorp's interest rate sensitivity position to manage the risk associated with interest rate
movements through the use of interest income simulation and GAP analysis. The matching of assets and
liabilities maybe analyzed by examining the extent to which such assets and liabilities are "interest sensitive."
An asset or liability is said to be interest sensitive within a specific time period if it will mature or reprice within
that time period.

Management's goal is to manage asset and liability positions to moderate the effects of interest rate fluctuations
on net interest income. Interest income simulations are completed quarterly and presented to ALCO. The
simulations provide an estimate of the impact of changes in interest rates on net interest income under a range
of assumptions. Changes to these assumptions can significantly affect the results of the simulations. The
simulation incorporates assumptions regarding the potential timing in the repricing of certain assets and
liabilities whenmarketrates change and the changes in spreads between differentmarketrates.

Simulation analysis is only an estimate of Bancorp's interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time.
Management regularly reviews the potential effect changes in interest rates could have on the repayment of rate
sensitive assetsand funding requirements of rate sensitive liabilities.

Thetable below setsforth examples of changes in estimated net interest income andtheestimated netportfolio
value based onprojected scenarios of interest rate increases and decreases. The analyses indicate therate risk
embedded inBancorp's portfolio at the dates indicated should all interest rates instantaneously rise or fall. The
results of these changes areadded to or subtracted from thebase case; however, there arecertain limitations to
these types ofanalyses. Rate changes are rarely instantaneous and these analyses may also overstate the impact
ofshort-term repricings. As a result of the historically low interest rate environment, the calculated effects of
the 100 and 200 basis point downward shocks cannot absolutely reflect the risk to earnings and equity since the
interest rates on certainbalancesheet itemshave approached their minimums and therefore, it is not possible for
the analyses to fullymeasure the true impactof thesedownward shocks.
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Net Interest Income and Economic Value

Summary Performance

(dollars in thousands)

December 31,2014

Net Interest Income Net Portfolio Value

Projected Interest Estimated $ Change % Change Estimated $ Change % Change
Rate Scenario Value from Base from Base Value from Base from Base

+ 200 19,986 (104) -0.5% 74,830 (8,854) -10.6%

+ 100 20,152 62 0.3% 79,390 (4,294) -5.1%

BASE 20,090 - - 83,684 - -

- 100 20,552 462 2.3% 91,063 7,379 8.8%

-200 20,408 318 1.6% 95,939 12,255 14.6%

December 3 1,2013

Net Portfolio ValuNet Interest Income e

Projected Interest Estimated $ Change % Change Estimated $ Change % Change

Rate Scenario Value from Base from Base Value

59,238

from Base

(11,808)

from Base

+ 200 16,147 (780) -4.6% -16.6%

+ 100 16,656 (271) -1.6% 65,079 (5,967) -8.4%

BASE 16,927 - - 71,046 - -

- 100 17,124 197 1.2% 78,332 7,286 10.3%

-200 16,864 (63) -0.4% 82,687 11,641 16.4%

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

Bancorp's financial statements have been prepared in terms of historical dollars, without considering changes in
relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all
of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a
more significant impact on a financial institution's performance than the effect of general levels of inflation.
Interest rates donotnecessarily move in the same direction or in the same magnitude as the prices of goods and
services. Notwithstanding this, inflation can directly affect the value of loan collateral, in particular, real estate.
Inflation, or disinflation, could significantly affect Bancorp's earnings in future periods.
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ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Financial Statements required by this item are presented in the order shown below, in ITEM 15:

Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended Decemebr 31,2014,2013 and 2012
ConsolidatedStatements ofComprehensive Income for the years ended Decemebr 31, 2014,2013 and 2012
ConsolidatedStatements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended Decemebr 31,2014,2013 and 2012
Consolidated Statements ofCash Flows for the years ended Decemebr 31,2014,2013 and 2012
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The supplementary data required by this item (selected quarterly financial data) is provided below.
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The following tablepresents quarterly results ofoperations (unaudited) to the consolidated financial statements:

First Second Third Fourth

(in thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter (2)

2014:

Interest income $ 4,879 $ 4,856 $ 4,977 $ 5,656

Interest expense 870 722

4,134

691

4,286

687

Net interest income 4,009 4,969

Provision for loan losses - - - -

Non-interest income 593 623 587 29

Non-interest expense 4,283 4,232 4,424 5,332

Income (loss) before income taxes 319 525 449 (334)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes - -

$

(16,812)

17,261 $

2,062

Net income (loss) $ 319 $ 525 (2,396)

Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic and diluted (1) $ 0.08 $ 0.14 $ 4.53 $ (0.67)

First Second Third Fourth

(in thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2013:

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

(Loss) income before income taxes
Benefit for income taxes

Net(loss) income

Net (loss) income per common share:
Basic and diluted (1) $

5,501 $

1,627

3,874

(30)
487

6,369

(1,978)

(21)

(1,957) $

(0.51) $

5,309 $

1,276

4,033

769

8,714

(3,912)

(3,912) $

(1.02)

5,614 $

1,083

4,531

1,000

560

6,461

(2,370)

(2,370)

(0.62) $

5,230

868

4,362

610

4,340

632

(318)

950

0.25

(1) All common stock and per share data has been restated to give effect to the reverse stock split of l-for-10 effective
March 4,2015.

(2) Fourth quarter results were significantly impacted by the liquidation of the Company's BOLI policy. Excluding the
BOLI transaction, the following are the fourth quarter results: net interest income and provision for loan losses-
unchanged; non- interest income-$484; non-interest expense-$4,895; income before taxes-$558; provison for income
taxes-$217 and net income-$341.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on an evaluation of the effectiveness of Bancorp's disclosure controls and procedures performed by
Bancorp's management, with the participation of Bancorp's Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial
Officer as of the end of the period covered by this report, Bancorp's Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that Bancorp's disclosure controls and procedures have been effective.

As used herein, "disclosure controls and procedures" mean controls and other procedures of Bancorp that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by Bancorp in the reports that it files or submits
under the Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the Commission's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by Bancorp in the reports
that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to Bancorp's
management, including its principal executive, and principal financial oflicers, or persons performing similar
functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company's internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed so as to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

The Company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
deployment of the assets of the Company and also provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
in a timely manner to enable the preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and that receipts and disbursements of the Company are
made only in compliance with the authorizations established by management and the directors of the Company,
and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition ofthe Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Due to its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
In addition, projections ofany evaluations ofeffectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
and/or procedures may deteriorate.

During the fourth quarter management identified a material weakness n internal control relating to the
determination of certain quantitative and qualitative factors considered by management in the allowance for
loan loss estimation process. No restatement of prior period financial statements and no change in previously
released financial results were required as a result of this finding. Management remediated this weakness by
enhancing the documentation and controls over the process supporting certain quantitative and qualitative
factors considered in the estimation of the allowance for loan losses. Except for the foregoing, there was no
change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting in the quarter ended December 31, 2014 that
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has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over
financial reporting.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2014, based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission ("COSO") in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992). Based on that
assessment, management concluded that as of December 31,2014, the Company's internal control over
financial reporting is effective based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
(1992).

1TEM9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS,
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our executive officers and directors are as follows:

Name Age

Michael A. Carrazza 49

Kenneth T. Neilson 66

Christina L. Maier 61

Frederick Staudmyer 59

Samuel S. Davis 59

Richard A. Muskus 46

Susan Neilson 57

Edward N. Constantino 68

Raymond B. Smyth 68

Emile Van den Bol 51

Michael Weinbaum 48

Position

Chairman of the Board ofDirectors
President and ChiefExecutive Officer and Director
Executive Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer

Executive Vice President and Secretary
Executive Vice President and ChiefCredit Officer
Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer
Executive Vice President and ChiefOperating Officer
Director

Director

Director

Director

BackgroundofOfficers and Directors

Michael A. Carrazza

Mr. Carrazzahas been Chairmanof the Board of Directorsof the Companysince 2010.Through PNBK Sponsor,Mr. Carrazza
manages PNBK Holdings, the Company's largest shareholder. Mr. Carrazza isalso CEO ofSolaia Capital Advisors, aninvestment
management company. In2012, Mr. Carrazza led the spin-out ofthe Bank ofIreland's U.S. Asset-Based Lending Group, now known
asSiena Capital Finance, and serves as itsChairman. In2004, he co-founded Bard Capital Group where hesponsored several
transactions in the industrial sector. From2001 until2003,he wasprincipal at The Glen RockGroup, a middle market investment firm,
where hestructured andfinanced thebuyout of International Surface Preparation Group. Inc. ("ISPC") from U.S. Filter/Vivendi. He
subsequently worked atISPC as Vice President in the office ofthe Chairman, managing the company's financings, restructure and
subsequent sale.

Kenneth T. Neilson

Mr. Neilson has been President and Chief Executive Officer since March 18, 2013 and has served as a director of Patriot since 2010.
Mr.Neilson is the retired President, Chairman and CEOof Hudson United Bankand Hudson United Bancorp where he served for 23
years. After becoming President and CEO in1989, Mr. Neilson led Hudson United Bancorp from a one state, 15 branch network with
$500 million inassets, toa premiere franchise spanning four states with over 200 branch locations and anasset size of$9billion by
2006when it wassoldto TD Banknorth. Mr. Neilson currently serves as a Board Member of Quinnipiac University.

Christina L. Maier

Ms. Maier has served as Executive Vice President and Chief FinancialOfficer ofPatriot since October 1, 2013. Prior to joining the
Bank, Ms. Maier served as Senior Vice President and Director, U.S. Accounting and Reporting at Brown Brothers Harriman, a
multinational financial services firm shejoinedinOctober 2006. Shewas Senior Vice President andController of Provident New
York Bancorp and served 15 years atHudson United Bancorp, where she was First Senior Vice President, serving incapacities
including Controller and Chief Accounting Officer.

Frederick Staudmyer

Mr. Staudmyer has served asPatriot's Director ofHuman Resources since November 2014. Hehas also served asCorporate Secretary
since January 2015. Mr. Staudmyer was most recently Assistant Dean for Career Management at Cornell University where hedirected
the Career Management Center. Prior tothat hewas the President, ChiefOperating Officer and Managing Partner ofa technology
staffing company and also held positions at Manchester Partners, ZiffPublishing and Chase Manhattan Bank, all ina human resource
capacity.
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Samuel S. Davis

Mr.Davis has servedas Executive Vice President andChiefCreditOfficerof PatriotsinceApril2013 and wasthe Bank's Senior
Lending Officer fromSeptember2011 to April2013. Prior tojoining Patriot in November2009, Mr. Daviswas SeniorVice President
of Lendingat ConnecticutCommunity Bank fromJanuary 2000 to November2009.

Richard A. Muskus

Mr. Muskus has served asExecutive Vice President and ChiefLending Officer ofthe Bank since February of 2014. Prior tojoining
the Bank, Mr. Muskus spent 13 years at Connecticut Community Bank serving as Senior Vice President ofCommercial Lending and,
from 2010, as President of its Greenwich Bank & Trust division.

Susan Neilson

Ms. Neilson hasserved as Executive Vice President andChiefOperating Officer of the Bank since January 2015. Shehadserved asa
consultant to the Bank since March of 2013. Prior to that Ms. Neilson served as Executive Vice President and Head of Retail Banking
and Operations at Hudson United Bank, a $9 billion regional institution. She also led marketing, retail operations and deposit products
for First Fidelity Bank and,earlierin hercareer, headed retail banking, technology andoperations forBank United, a $5 billion Texas-
based thrift.
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Edward N. Constantino

Mr.Constantino hasover40 yearsof audit,advisory and tax experience working for twomajoraccounting firms, ArthurAnderson
LLP and KPMG LLP. Mr. Constantino retired from KPMG in late 2009, where he was an Audit Partner in charge of the Firm's real
estate andassetmanagement businesses. Mr.Constantino is a member of theBoard of Directors of ARC Property Trustanda member
of the AuditCommittee of the New York City HousingAuthority. Mr. Constantino also servesas a consultantfor the law firmof
Skadden Arps. Mr.Constantino's specific skills include auditing national and multinational organizations, internal control and
compliance, financial reporting, regulatory reporting, risk management, asset valuation, accounting andfinance andtransaction
structuring. Heisa licensed CPA, a Member of theAmerican Institute ofCertified Public Accountants anda Member of theNew
York State Society of Public Accountants. He is currently a Member of theBoard ofTrustees andtheAudit Committee Chairman of
St. Francis College.

Raymond Smyth

Mr. Smyth served asourdirector from November 2008 until 2010 and since 2011. Heisa retired partner intheaccounting firm of
Masotti & Masotti. In addition, he is a CPA and a financial expert.

Emile Van den Bol

Mr. VandenBol is currently the ChiefExecutive Officer of Brooklawn Capital, LLC. Brooklawn Capital is an investment
management company which advises and invests inreal estate and securities. Mr. Van den Bol retired in2010 asManaging Director
of theCommercial Real Estate Group of Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc. Mr. VandenBoljoinedDeutsche Bank in2001 as Managing
Director andheldseveral executive positions in theCommercial Real Estate Group including Global Co-Head Structured Finance,
Global HeadCommercial Real EstateCDO Groupand Memberof the Global Commercial RealEstateExecutiveCommittee. Mr. Van
den Bol was from 2005 to 2009 a Governor of the Board of the Commercial Mortgage Securities Association. From 1996 to 2001
Mr. VandenBol was employed by Lehman Brothers where he helda number of positions including Head of Esoteric Principal
Finance Group and Co-Head of Lehman Brothers Franchise Conduit. Mr. Van den Bol was a member of Morgan Stanley's Structured
Finance Group from 1991 to 1996.

Michael J. Weinbaum

Mr. Weinbaum has been the Vice President ofReal Estate Operations for United Capital Corp. for more than twenty years.
Mr. Weinbaum hasextensive experience inreal estate operations and transactions. He isa member of theInternational Council of
Shopping Centers and has been a member ofUnited Capital's Board ofDirectors since 2005. Mr. Weinbaum currently serves onthe
Finance Board and Board ofTrustees for St. Mary's Healthcare for Children.

There arenofamily relationships among ourexecutive officers and directors, other than thatbetween ourCEO and President andour
Executive VicePresident andChiefOperating Officer, who aremarried. None ofourexecutive officers or directors has,during the
past five years:

(a) had any petition under the federal bankruptcy laws orany state insolvency law filed byoragainst, ora receiver, fiscal
agent or similar officer appointed bya court for thebusiness orproperty of,such person, or any partnership in which he
was a general partner ator within two years before thetime ofsuch filing, or any corporation orbusiness association of
which he was an executive officer at or within two years before the time of such filing;

(b) been convicted ina criminal proceeding or subject to a pending criminal proceeding;

(c) been subject toany order, judgment, ordecree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, ofany court of
competent jurisdiction orany federal orstate authority, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or
otherwise limiting his involvement in anytypeof business, securities, futures, commodities or banking activities; or

(d) been found bya court of competent jurisdiction (ina civil action), theSEC or theCommodities Future Trading
Commission to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed,
suspended or vacated.

48



Section 16(a)Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of theSecurities Exchange Actof 1934 requires theCompany's officers, directors andpersons who ownmore than ten
percent of the issued andoutstanding shares of Common Stock to file reports of beneficial ownership andchanges in beneficial
ownership with theSEC andto furnish copies ofallSection 16(a) forms to theCompany. No Form 3 or4 filings areknown to be late
for any of the directors or beneficial owners of more than 10 percent ofanyclass ofequity securities of theCompany in2014. The
following officers of theCompany had one late filing each: Mr. Neilson, Mr. Muskus andMr. Staudmyer. Mr. Davis and Ms. Maier
each had two late filings.

Nominations to the Board of Directors

Stockholders mayrecommend individuals to the Nominating andCorporate Governance Committee of the Boardof Directors for
consideration aspotential director candidates bysubmitting their names, together with appropriate biographical information and
background materials, to theNominating Committee, c/oCorporate Secretary, Patriot National Bancorp, Inc., 900 Bedford Street,
Stamford, Connecticut 06901.

Code of Ethics

We have a Code ofEthics that governs all ofour employees, including our CEO, CFO, principal accounting officer orpersons
performing similar functions. We will provide a copy ofour Code ofEthics free ofcharge toany person upon written request tous at
the followingaddress: 900 Bedford Street, Stamford, Connecticut06901; Attn: ChiefFinancial Officer.

Board of Directors

The Board ofDirectors currently consists ofsix members. Directors serve until their successors are duly elected orappointed. The
Board ofDirectors has designated a Compensation Committee, Audit Committee, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
and Executive Committee ofthe Board. Messrs. Constantino (chairman), and Van den Bol are members of the Compensation
Committee; Messrs. Constantino (chairman), Smyth, and Van den Bol aremembers of theAudit Committee; Messrs. Vanden Bol
(chairman), Carrazza, Constantino and Weinbaum aremembers ofthe Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee; and Messrs
Carrazza (chairman), Constantino, Neilson and Van den Bol are members of the Executive Committee ofthe Board.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our Board ofDirectors has determined that Edward N. Constantino and Raymond Smyth are the financial experts serving on our
Audit Committee.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The tablebelowsets forth, for the last two fiscal years, the compensation earnedby our Chief ExecutiveOfficer, Chief Financial
Officer and the two other executive officers who received the highest annual compensation.

All Other

Annual

Name and Principal Position (s) Year

2014 $

Salary

300,000

Bonus

$ 150,000

Compensation

$

Total

Michael A. Carrazza $ 450,000

Chairman 2013 $ 200,000 $ -
$ - $ 200,000

ChristopherD. Maher (1) 2014 $ - $ - $ - $ -

President and CEO 2013 $ 111,173 $ - $ 3,000 $ 114,173

Kenneth T. Neilson (2) 2014 $ - $ 400,000 $ 539,462 (7) $ 939,462

President and CEO 2013 $ - $ 200,000 $ 481,457 (8) $ 681,457

WilliamC.Gray (3) 2014 $ - $ - $ - $ -

Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 2013 $ 209,269 $ 3,500 $ -
$ 212,769

Christina L. Maier (4) 2014 $ 210,000 $ 25,000 $ - $ 235,000

Executive Vice President & ChiefFinancial Officer 2013 $ 48,462 $ - $ 60,000 (9) $ 108,462

Mark C.Foley (5) 2014 $ - $ - $ - $ -

Executive Vice President & Chief Credit Officer 2013 $ 82,692 $ - $ 2,481 $ 85,173

Samuel Davis (6) 2014 $ 200,000 $ 50,000 $ 10,000 $ 260,000

Executive Vice President & Chief Credit Officer 2013 $ 200,000 $ 25,000 $ 30,000 (10) $ 255,000

(1) Mr. Maherresigned as Presidentand CEO effectiveMarch 18,2013.

(2) Mr.Neilson assumed theposition of President andCEOeffective March 18,2013.

(3) Mr. Gray wasthe ChiefFinancial Officer from December 1,2012 through his retirement onSeptember 30,2013.
(4) Ms. Maier hasbeen employed byPatriot as ChiefFinancial Officer since October 1,2013.

(5) Mr.Foley was theChiefCredit Officer from November 2011 through May2013.

(6) Mr. Davis assumedthe position of ChiefCreditOfficerinApril 2013.

(7) Includes an$18,000 annual automobile allowance, $166,455 housing costs and$55,007 travel reimbursements.

Also includes $300,000 of restricted stock.

(8) Includes a $12,000 annual automobile allowance, $123,800 housing costsand$28,275 travel reimbursements.

Also includes $300,000 of restricted stock.

(9) Includes $60,000 of restrictedstock.

(10) Includes$30,000 of restricted stock.
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401 (k) Plan

The Bank maintains a tax-qualified 401(k) Plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code with a cash or deferred
arrangement under Section 401(k) ofthe Internal Revenue Code. Employees become eligible to make salary reduction contributions to
the 401(k) Plan and to receive any matching or discretionary contributions made to the 401(k) Plan by the Bank on the first day ofthe
quarter coinciding with or next following the date that the employee has attained 21 years ofage and completed at least 1,000 hours of
service in a period ofsix to 12 consecutive calendar months.

Under the 401(k) Plan, participants may elect to have the Bank contribute a portion of their compensation each year, subject to
certain limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. The 401(k) Plan permits the Bank to make discretionary matching and
additional discretionary contributions to the 401(k) Plan. Participants in the 401(k) Plan may direct the investment of their accounts in
several types of investment funds.

Participants are always 100% vested in their elective deferrals, matching and discretionary matching contributions and related
earnings under the 401(k) Plan. Participants are permitted to receive a distribution from the 401(k) Plan only in the form ofa lump
sum payment.

Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan

In 2011, Patriot adopted the Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan. The 2012 Plan is administered by the Compensation
Committee of Patriot's Board of Directors. Grants under the 2012 Plan may be made in the form ofstock options, restricted stock and
phantom stock units. The 2012 Plan authorizes 3,000,000 shares ofPatriot's common stock for issuance. Phantom stock units may be
granted under the 2012 Plan up to 1,000,000 units.

Under the terms ofthe 2012 Plan, only Patriot employees and employees of its subsidiaries may receive stock options. The
exercise price of the stock options shall be not less than the fair market value of the stock on the date ofgrant. The Compensation
Committee shall determine the dates upon which the options may be exercisable, which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant. The options may be exercised on a cashless basis ifapproved by the Compensation Committee.

Under the original plan, only non-employee directors were eligible to receive grants of restricted stock. Those grants generally
vest in quarterly installments over a four year period from the date of grant. In September 2013 an amendment to the Stock Plan was
approved by Patriot's stockholders. The Plan was amended to expand the persons eligible to receive grants of restricted stock under
the 2012 Plan to include officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The vesting ofthese grants generally occurs in annual
installments over a five year period. The vesting of restricted stock awards and options may be accelerated in accordance with terms of
the plan. The Compensation Committee shall make the terms and conditions applicable to the vesting ofrestricted stock awards and
stock options.

Only Patriot's employees and employees of its subsidiaries are eligible to receive phantom stock units under the 2012 Plan. The
phantom stock units entitle the holder to receive upon exercise, in cash or shares of common stock, the appreciation in the value of the
common stock from the date ofgrant. The Plan Committee shall determine the terms and conditions ofeach phantom stock unit
award. Upon a change ofcontrol ofPatriot, the grantee shall be required to redeem all of his or her phantom stock units. In the event
ofa sale ofsubstantially all ofPatriot's assets, all outstanding phantom stock units will be redeemed

Under Patriot's 2012 Stock Plan, 15,216 shares of restricted stock and 85,000 of stock options were awarded in 2012. 32,964
shares of restricted stock were awarded in 2013. During 2014, the Company issued 73,558 shares of restricted stock.
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Director Compensation

The following table details the compensation paid to or accrued for each ofPatriot's non-management directors in 2014:

Name

Edward N. Constantino

Raymond Smyth
Emile Van den Bol

Michael J. Weinbaum

Change in
Pension Value

and

Non-Equity Nonqualified
Fees Earned or Cash Stock Option Incentive Plan Deferred All Other

Paid in Cash Awards Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Compensation Total

($) ($)

-0-

($) ($)

-0

($) Earnings ($) ($)

37,500 10,382 -0- -0- -0- 47,882
35,000 -0- 9,830 -0 -0- -0- -0- 44,830
38,000 -0- 10,382 -0 -0- -0- -0- 48,382

-0- 10,382 -022,500 -0- -0- -0- 32,882

Patriot's directors who are also executive officers do not receive compensation for service on the board ofdirectors or any of its
committees. Non-employeedirectors of Patriot receive$750 for eachboard meetingin which they participateand fees ranging from
$250 to $500 for each committee meeting in which they participate. In addition, non-employee directors who serve as the chair ofa
committee receive additional fees ranging from $2,000 to $6,000 per year.

Our directors are also reimbursed for reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their service
to us, including travel expenses.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The Company has 3,000,000sharesof commonstockauthorized for issuance underthe 2012 StockPlan, of which2,881,745sharesof
stock are available for issuance.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The tablebelowprovidescertaininformation aboutbeneficial ownership of commonstock of the Companyas of April27,2015
with respect to: (i) eachperson, or group of affiliated persons, who is known to theCompany to ownmorethanfive percent (5%)of
Company common stock; (ii) eachof the Company'sdirectors; (iii)eachof the Company'sexecutive officers; and (iv) all of the
Company's directors and executive officers as a group.

Exceptas otherwise noted,to the knowledge of the Company, all persons listedbelowhave sole votingand dispositive power
withrespect to all shares of common stocktheybeneficially own, except to theextent authority is shared by spouses underapplicable
law. Applicable percentage ownership is based on 3,953,947 shares of common stock outstanding. In computing the number of shares
of common stockbeneficiallyownedby a personand applicable percentage ownership of that person, we deemedoutstandingsharesof
common stocksubjectto optionsheld by that personthat are currently exercisable or exercisablewithinsixty(60) days of April27,
2015. We did not deem these shares outstanding, however, for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership ofany other
person.

Unless otherwise indicated, the address ofeach shareholder is in care ofPatriot National Bancorp, Inc., 900 Bedford Street,
Stamford, CT 06901.
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Beneficial Owner

Michael A Carrazza

Kenneth T. Neilson

Christina L. Maier

Frederick Staudmyer

Samuel S. Davis

Richard A Muskus

Susan Neilson

Edward N. Constantino

Raymond Smyth

Emile Van den Bol

Michael J. Weinbaum

All Directors and Executive Officers

Shares of Common Stock

Beneficially Owned

Shares

(1)

Percent ofClass

3,042,150 76.9%

91,027 (2) 2.3%

7,894 (3) *

5,000 (4) *

7,174 (5) *

3,816 (6) *

4,371 (7) *

5,554 (8) *

6,384 (9) *

8.371 (10) *

3,181,741 80.5%

* Less than one percent (1%)
<" Includes 3,035,000 shares held byPNBK Holdings LLC ("Holdings"). Mr. Carrazza is themanager of PNBK Sponsor LLC

("Sponsor"), which is the manager of Holdings; therefore, Mr. Carrazza may bedeemed to indirectly beneficially own the
shares directly owned by Holdings. Holdings has sole voting and dispositive power with regard to all3,035,000 shares; Sponsor
and Carrazza have shared voting andshared dispositive power ofsaid shares. Also includes 5,500 shares held bySolaia Capital
Management Profit Sharing Plan forthebenefit of Mr. Carrazza. Mr. Carrazza hassolevoting anddispositive power with regard
tosuch shares. Does notinclude 325,000 shares with respect to which another party has sole voting anddispositive power.

<2> Includes 5,770 shares held byNeilson Holdings LP("NH"). Mr. Neilson is thegeneral partner of NH;therefore, Mr. Neilson
may bedeemed to indirectly beneficially own theshares held byNH. Also includes 57,599 shares issued pursuant toa
RestrictedStock Agreementwhich have not yet vested.

<3) Includes 4,616 shares issued pursuant to a Restricted Stock Agreement which havenot yet vested.
(4) Includes 5,000 shares issued pursuant to a Restricted Stock Agreement which havenot yet vested.
(5) Includes 2,308 shares issued pursuant to a Restricted Stock Agreement which havenot yet vested.
(6> Includes 3,816shares issued pursuant to a Restricted Stock Agreement which havenot yet vested.
(7> Includes 1,761 shares issued pursuant to a Restricted Stock Agreement which havenot yet vested.
,8» Includes 626shares held inan IRA forthebenefit of Mr. Smyth. Also includes 1,761 shares issued pursuant to a Restricted

Stock Agreement which have not yet vested.
« Includes 2,970shares heldby Brooklawn Capital FundLLC ("Brooklawn"). Mr. Vanden Bol is theChiefExecutive Officer of

Brooklawn; therefore, Mr.Van denBolmay bedeemed to indirectly beneficially own the shares heldby Brooklawn. Also
includes 1,761 shares issued pursuant to a Restricted Stock Agreement which have notyetvested.

(10> Includes 1,761 shares issued pursuant to a Restricted Stock Agreement which have notyetvested.

Item 13. Certain Relationshipsand RelatedTransactions, and DirectorIndependence

Directors and Officers of Patriot

Inthe ordinary course ofbusiness, theBank has made loans toofficers and directors (including loans to members of their immediate
families and loans to companies ofwhich adirector owns 10% ormore). There were no loans to officers and directors outstanding as
ofDecember 31,2014. Inthe opinion of management, allofsuch loans were made inthe ordinary course ofbusiness of the Bank on
substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral requirements, as those then prevailing for comparable transactions
with persons not related to the lender. The Bankbelieves thatat the timeof origination theseloans neither involved more than the
normalrisk ofcollectibility nor presented any other unfavorable features.

Information about transactions involving related persons isassessed byPatriot's independent directors. Related persons include
Patriot's directors and executive officers aswell asimmediate family members ofdirectors and officers. Ifthe independent directors
approveor ratifya material transaction involvinga related person, then the transactionwould be disclosed in accordancewith the SEC
rules. Ifthe related person isa director, ora family member ofa director, then that director would not participate inthose discussions.
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Board Independence

We are subject tothe listing standards ofthe SEC rules pertaining todirector independence, and we believe that Messrs. Constantino,
Smyth, Van den Bol and Weinbaum are "independent" directors asthat term isdefined byapplicable listing standards ofthe Nasdaq
stock market and SEC rules, including the rulesrelating to the independence standards of an auditcommittee andthe non-employee
definitionof Rule 16b-3promulgated under the Exchange Act.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The following table sets forth the principal accounting fees we paid toKPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
with respect toour fiscal years ended December 31,2014 and 2013 for: (i) services rendered for the audit ofour annual financial
statements and thereview ofourquarterly financial statements; (ii)services rendered thatare reasonably related to theperformance of
theauditor reviewof our financial statementsand that are not reported as auditfees;(iii) servicesrenderedin connection with tax
compliance, taxadvice and taxplanning; and(iv)allother services rendered.

Audit fees (1)
Audit-related fees

Tax fees (2)
All other fees

Total fees

(1) Audit fees with respect tothe years ended December 31,2014 and December 31,2013 represent payments made byPatriot to
KPMG LLP forprofessional services. These payments were approved bytheAudit Committee.

(2) Tax fees with respect tothe years ended December 31,2014 and December 31,2013 represent payments made byPatriot to
KPMG LLP for their preparation of Patriot's federal and state income taxreturns, taxadvice and planning. These payments
were approved by the Audit Committee.
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PartIV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

3(i)(C) Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Patriot National Bancorp, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i) to Bancorp's current report Form 8-K dated October
21,2010.

3(ii) Amended and Restated By-laws of Bancorp (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to
Bancorp's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2010 (Commission File No. 000-
29599)).

10(a)(2) 2012 Stock Plan of Bancorp (incorporated by reference from Annex A to the Proxy Statement on
Form 14C filed November 1, 2011.

10(a)(16) Formal Written Agreement between Patriot National Bank and the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(16) to Bancorp's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year endedDecember 31,2010 (Commission FileNo. 000-29599)).

10(a)(17) Financial Services Agreement dated November 8, 2011 of Bancorp (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(a)(20) on the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated November 10, 2011.
(Commission File No. 000-29599)).

10(a)(18) Employment letter between Kenneth T. Neilson, Bancorp and Patriot National Bank dated July
9, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(a)(18) on the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
datedAugust 12,2013(Commission FileNo. 000-29599)).

10(a)(19) Employment agreement, dated as of July 9, 2013, by and among Patriot National Bancorp, Inc.,
Patriot National Bank and Kenneth T. Neilson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on
Bancorp's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 5, 2014 (Commission File No. 000-
29599)).

10(a) (20) Amended Financial Services Agreement, (incorporated byreference to Exhibit 10(a) (20) to
Bancorp'sQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterendedJune 30, 2014(Commission File
No. 000-29599)).
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Exhibit No. Description

14 Code of Conduct for Senior Financial Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 to
Bancorp's Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2004 (Commission
File No. 000-29599)).

21 Subsidiaries of Bancorp (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21 to Bancorp's Annual Reporton
Form 10-KSB for the year endedDecember 31,1999 (Commission File No. 000-29599)).

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP

31(1) Rule 13a-14(a)/l5d-14(a) Certification of ChiefExecutive Officer

31(2) Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of ChiefFinancial Officer

32 Section 1350 Certification

101. INS# XBRL Instance Document

101 .SCH# XBRL Schema Document

101 .CAL# XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document

101 .LAB# XBRL Labels Linkbase Document

101 .PRE# XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

101 .DEF# XBRL Definition Linkbase Document

The exhibits marked with the section symbol (#) are interactivedata files.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board ofDirectors and Shareholders

Patriot National Bancorp, Inc.

Wehave audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary
(the Company) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cashflows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2014. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the
results of theiroperations and theircash flows for eachof the years in the three-year periodendedDecember 31,
2014, in conformitywith U.S. generallyacceptedaccounting principles.

/s/KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
March 31,2015
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PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,2014 and 2013

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks (Note 2):

Noninterestbearingdeposits and cash

Interest bearingdeposits

Total cash and cash equivalents

Securities:

Availablefor sale securities, at fair value (Note 3)

Other Investments

Federal Reserve Bank stock, at cost

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost (Note 8)

Total securities

Loans receivable (netof allowance forloan losses: 2014: $4,924, 2013:$5,681)(Notes4and 17)

Accrued interest and dividends receivable

Premisesand equipment, net (Notes 5 and 9)
Cash surrender value ofbank owned life insurance (Note 11)

Deferred tax asset (Note 10)

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND S HAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities

Deposits (Notes 7 and 17):

Noninterest bearingdeposits

Interest bearingdeposits

Total deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings (Note 8)

Junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trust (Note 8)

Accrued expensesand other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 8,9 and 14)

Shareholders' equity (l)(Notes 12 and 16)

Preferred stock, noparvalue; 1,000,000 sharesauthorized, noshares issued and outstanding

Common stock, $.01 parvalue, 100,000,000 sharesauthorized; 2014:3,952,177 shares issued;
3,951,007 shares outstanding. 2013:3,878,668 shares issued; 3,877,497 shares outstanding

Additional paid-incapital

Accumulated deficit

Less:Treasurystock, at cost: 2014and 2013,1,170 shares

Accumulated other comprehensiveloss

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

SeeAccompanying Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements.

2014 2013

(in thousands, exceptshares)

$ 2,095 $ 1,570

71,163 33,296

73,258 34,866

33,682 37,701

4,450 4,450

2,058 1,444

6,628 4,143

46,818 47,738

471,984 418,148

1,918 1,566

22,357 15,061

-
22,025

14,926 -

1,363 1,844

$ 632,624 $ 541,248

$ 63,398

379,635

$ 55,358

374,846

443,033 430,204

120,000 57,000

8,248 8,248

2,608 3,955

573,889 499,407

395 388

105,752 105,484

(46,975) (62,684)

(160) (160)

(277) (1,187)

58,735 41,841

$ 632,624 $ 541,248

(1) On March 4,2015, the Company affected a 1-for-10 reverse stock split. All common stock data included in these financial statements has been
restatedto give effect to the reversestock split.
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PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012

Interest and Dividend Income

Interest and fees on loans

Interest on investment securities

Dividends on investment securities

Other interest income

Total interest and dividend income

Interest Expense

Interest on deposits

Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings

Interest on subordinated debt

Interest on other borrowings

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for Loan Losses (Note 4)

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

No l-interest Income

Mortgagcbankingactivity
Loan application, inspection and processing fees

Fees and service charges

Gain on sale of loans

Net gainon sale of investment securities

Gain on sale ofbranch assets and deposits

Earningson cash surrender value ofbank owned life insurance

Other income

Total non-interest income

No i-interest Expense

Salaries and benefits (Notes 9,12 and 14)

Occupancy and equipment expense

Data processing expense

Advertising and promotional expense

Professional and other outside services

Loan administration and processing expense

Regulatory assessments

Insurance expense

Other real estate operations (Note 6)

Material and communications

Restructuring charges and asset disposals (Note 20)

Prepayment penalty on borrowings

Other operating expense

Total non-interest expense

Income (loss) before income taxes

Be lefit for Income Taxes (Note 10)

Net income (loss)

Income (loss) per share (1) (Note 13)

Sec Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(1) On March 4, 2015, the Company affected a 1-for-10 reverse stock split. All per share data has been restated to give effect to the reverse stock
split.
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2014 2013 2012

(in thousands, exceptper share amounts)

$ 19,601 $ 20,706 $ 23,482

528 775 1,508

172 113 128

67 60 98

20368 21,654 25,216

2^64 3,822 5,351

181 666 1,459

425 284 300

-
82 309

2,970 4,854 7,419

17398 16,800 17,797

- 970 (2,379)

17398 15,830 20,176

25 255 164

214 249 101

896 744 857

- 28 336

- - 911

- 51 -

439 523 517

258 576 388

1,832 2,426 3,274

8,097 9,702 10,593

3356 3,911 4,419

1,115 1,296 1,469

252 217 86

2312 2,836 2,601

65 220 137

879 1,159 1,724

349 315 471

12 212 (58)

376 397 504

- 522 940

- 4,116 -

1,258 981 1,100

18,271 25,884 23,986

959 (7,628) (536)

(14,750) (339)
-

$ 15,709 $ (7,289) $ (536)

$ 4.08 $ (1.90) S (0.14)



PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC.AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss)(Note 18):

Unrealized holdinggains (losses) on securities, net of taxes:

Less reclassification adjustment for net losses included in net income

Total

Comprehensive income (loss)

See Accompanying Notesto ConsolidatedFinancialStatements.

60

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)

% 15,709 $ (7,289) $ (536)

910

910

(569)

(569)

47

(799)

(752)

S 16,619 $ (7,858) $ (1.288)



PATRIOTNATIONAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012

Accumulated

Additional Oflier

Common Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Comprehensive
Stock Capital Deficit Stock Income (Loss) Total

(In thousands)

Balanceat December 31,2011 $ 384 $ 105,051 $ (54,859) $ (160) $ 134 $ 50,550

Comprehensive loss
Net loss - - (536) - - (536)

Unrealized holding loss on available for
sale securities - ... (752) (752)

Totalcomprehensive loss 0>288)

Share-based compensation expense

Issuance ofrestricted stock

Balance, at December 31,2012

Comprehensive loss

Net loss

Unrealizedholding loss on available for

sale securities

Total comprehensive loss

Share-based compensation expense - 131 - - - 131

Issuanceof restrictedstock 3 (3J ^_

Balance,at December31,2013 $ 388 $ 105,484 $ (62,684) $ (160) $ (1,187) $ 41,841

Comprehensive income

Net income - - 15,709 - - 15,709

Unrealizedholding gain on available for
sale securities - - 910 910

1

306

(1)

"
306

$ 385 $ 105,356 $ (55,395) $ (160) $ (618) $ 49,568

_ (7,289) _ _ (7,289)

for

- " -
(569) (569)

(7,858)

Totalcomprehensive income 16,619

Share-based compensation expense - 275 - - 275

Issuanceofrestricted stock 7 (7) ^_
Balance, at December 31,2014 $ 395 $ 105,752 $ (46,975) $ (160) $ (277) $ 58,735

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012
2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)

$ 15,709 $ (7,289) $ (536)

_ (163) (64)
238 187 311

i (883) 20 11

- 970 (2,379)
- - (911)
- (283) (420)
- (35,647) (5,206)

- 37,429 3,763

- - 16

(439) (523) (517)
22,464 - -

1,085 1,215 1,216

4 (114) (185)
- 127 -

- (51) -

275 131 306

12 (132) 184

(352) 328 559

(14,750) - -

481 737 (160)
(1,347) (1,637) 858

22,497 (4,695) (3,154)

4,515 2,313 24,516

(614) 286 (23)
(2,485) 201 165

- 10,655 99,738

(52,965) 25,462 (60,646)
(264)

- -

260 5,068 3,347

- (80) (HI)
(8,381) (8,279) (616)

(59,934) 35,626 66370

12,829 (52,541) (47,627)

- (14,538) -

63,000 7,000 -

- (7,000) -

75,829 (67,079) (47,627)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (loss):
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Restructuring charges and asset disposals
Amortization ofinvestment premiums, net
Amortizationand accretion ofpurchase loan premiums and discounts, n
Provision for loan losses

Net gain on sale of investment securities
Gain on sale of loans

Originations ofmortgage loans held for sale
Proceeds from sales ofmortgage loans held for sale
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Earnings on cash surrender value of life insurance
Liquidation ofcash surrender value of life insurance
Depreciation and amortization
Loss (gain) on sale ofother real estate owned
Proceeds from sale ofbranch assets and deposits
Gain on sale ofbranch assets and deposits
Share-based compensation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in net deferred loan costs
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest and dividends receivable
Increase in deferred tax asset

Decrease (increase) in other assets
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Principal repayments on available for sale securities

(Purchases) redemptions ofFederal Reserve Bank stock
(Purchases) redemptions ofFederal Home Loan Bank stock
Proceeds from sale of loans

(Increase) decrease in loans
Purchase ofother real estate owned

Proceeds from sale ofother real estate owned

Capital improvements ofother real estate owned
Purchase ofbank premises and equipment, net

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net Increase (decrease) in deposits
Decrease in deposits held for sale
Increase in FHLB borrowings
Decrease in repurchase agreements

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 38,392 (36,148) 15,589

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear
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34,866

73.258 S

71,014 55,425

34.866 $ 71,914



PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMHSTS OFCASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 2014 2013_ 2012
(in thousands)

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash FlowInformation
t . m * 4 191 $ 4,706 $ 7,127Interest paid a> q,iyi j •*,"*»

Income taxes paid $ 3$ 3 $ 10

Supplemental disclosures ofnoncash operating, investing and financing activities:

Unrealized holding gain (loss)on available forsale
securities arising during the period $ 910 $ (569) $ (834)

Transfer ofloans to other real estate owned $ - $ 3'698 $ 6'112

. $ - $ 950Transfer ofother realestate ownedto premises and equipment $ - > *

Reduction in deposits held for sale $ - $ 1(U67 $ 24'705

Reduction inbranchassets held forsale $ " $

SeeAccompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC. ANDSUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
December 31,2014,2013 and 2012

Note 1. Nature of Operationsand Summary of SignificantAccountingPolicies

Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company"), a Connecticut corporation, isa bank holding company that was
organized in 1999. On December 1, 1999, all the issued and outstanding shares of Patriot National Bank (the
"Bank") were converted into Company common stock and the Bank became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Bank is a nationally chartered commercial bank whose deposits are insured under the Bank
Insurance Fund, which is administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Bank provides a full
range of banking services to commercial and consumer customers through its main office in Stamford,
Connecticut, seven other branch offices in Connecticut and two branch offices in New York. The Bank's
customers are concentrated in Fairfield and New Haven Counties in Connecticut and Westchester County in
New York.

On March 11, 2003, the Company formed Patriot National Statutory Trust I (the "Trust") for the purpose of
issuing trust preferred securities and investing the proceeds in subordinated debentures issued by the Company,
and on March 26, 2003, the first series of trust preferred securities were issued. In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Trust is not included in theCompany's consolidated financial statements.

The following is a summary of the Company's significant accounting policies:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and to disclose contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Management has identified accounting for the allowance for loan losses, the analysis and
valuation of its investment securities and the valuation of deferred tax assets, as the Company's most critical
accounting policies and estimates in that they are important to the portrayal of the Company's financial
condition and results. They require management's most subjective and complex judgment as a result of the
need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. These policies as well as the
Company's other significant accounting policies are described below.

Principles ofconsolidation and basis of financial statement presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary,
the Bank, and the Bank's wholly owned subsidiaries, PinPat Acquisition Corporation and ABC HOLD Co,
LLC, and have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and short-term investments are recognized as cash equivalents in
the consolidated balance sheets. Federal funds sold generally mature in one day. For purposes of reporting
cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains amounts due from banks which, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses from such concentrations.
The short-term investments represent an investment in a money market mutual fund. The Company did not
maintain any balances in federal funds soldor short-term investments during2014.
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Investments in debt and marketable equity securities

Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the date individual investment securities
are acquired, and theappropriateness of such classification is reassessed ateach balance sheet date.

The Bank is required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston
("FHLB"), as collateral, in an amount equal to a percentage of itsoutstanding mortgage loans and loans secured
by residential properties, including mortgage-backed securities. The stock is purchased from and redeemed by
the FHLB based upon its $100 par value. The stock is a non-marketable equity security and as such is classified
as restricted stock, carried at cost and evaluated for impairment in accordance with relevant accounting
guidance. In accordance with this guidance, the stock's value is determined by the ultimate recoverability of
the par value rather than by recognizing temporary declines. The determination of whether the par value will
ultimately be recovered is influenced by criteria such as the following: (a) the significance of any decline in net
assets of the FHLB as compared to the capital stock amount and the length of time this situation has persisted;
(b) commitments by the FHLB to make payments required by law or regulation and the level of such payments
in relation to the operating performance; (c) the potential impact of legislative and regulatory changes on the
customer base ofthe FHLB; and (d) the liquidity position of the FHLB.

Management evaluated the stock and concluded that the stock was not impaired for the periods presented
herein. Consideration was given to the long-term prospects for the FHLB. Management also considered that
the FHLB's regulatory capital ratios have increased from the prior year, liquidity appears adequate, and new
shares of FHLB stock continue to exchange hands at $100 parvalue.

The Bank is required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the Federal Reserve Bank ("FRB"), as
collateral, in an amount equal to one percent of six percent of the Bank's total equity capital as per the latest
Report of Condition (Call Report). The stock is purchased from and redeemed by the FRB based upon its $100
par value. The stock is a non-marketable equity security and as such is classified as restricted stock, carried at
cost and evaluated for impairment in accordance with relevant accounting guidance. In accordance with this
guidance, the stock's value is determined by the ultimate recoverability of the par value rather than by
recognizing temporary declines. The determination of whether the par value will ultimately be recovered is
influenced by criteria such as the following: (a) the significance of any decline in net assets of the FRB as
compared to the capital stockamount and the length of time this situation has persisted; (b) the potential impact
of legislative and regulatory changes on the customer base of the FRB; and (c) the liquidity position of the FRB.

Member banks may carry overchanges within a calendar year until the cumulative change exceeds the lesser of
15% or 100 shares of Federal Reserve Bank stock. However, any change required by a member bank's capital
and surplus, as shown in its Report of Condition as of December 31 of each year, must be applied for even if the
change is less than 100 shares of Federal Reserve Bank stock and less than 15% of the Federal Reserve Bank
stock held by the member bank.

Management evaluated the stock and concluded that the stock was not impaired for the periods presented
herein. Consideration was given to the long-term prospects for the FRB. Management also considered that
liquidity appears adequate andnew shares of FRB stockcontinue to exchange hands at the $100par value.

Debt securities, if any, that managementhas the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as
"held to maturity" and are recorded at amortized cost. "Trading" securities, if any, are carried at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses recognized in earnings. Securities classified as"available for sale" are recorded at
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fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income
(loss), net of taxes. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest
method over the contractual lives of the securities.

The Company conducts a quarterly review and evaluation of the securities portfolio to determine if a decline in
the fair value of any security below its cost basis is other-than-temporary. Our evaluation of other-than-
temporary impairment, or OTTI, considers the duration and severity of the impairment, our intent and ability to
hold the securities and our assessments of the reason for the decline in value and the likelihood of a near-term
recovery. If such decline is deemed other-than-temporary, the security is written down to a new cost basis and
the resulting loss is charged to earnings as a component of non-interest income, except for the amount of the
total OTTI for adebt security that does not represent credit losses which is recognized in other comprehensive
income/loss, net ofapplicabletaxes.

Security transactions are recorded on the trade date. Realized gains and losses on the sale of securities are
recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method and reported in non-
interest income.
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Loans held for sale

Loans held for sale, are those loans the Company has the intent to sell in the foreseeable future, and are carried
at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value, less estimated selling costs. Gains and losses on sales of loans are
recognized on the trade dates, and are determined by the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
value of the loans. Once loans are transferred to held for sale, any subsequent impairment in loans held for sale
is recorded in non-interest income.

Loans receivable

Loans that the Company has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity generally
are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for unearned income, the allowance for loan
losses,and any unamortized deferred fees or costs.

Interest income is accrued based on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, and certain direct
origination costs, are deferred and amortized as alevel yield adjustment over the respective term ofthe loan and
reported in interest income.

The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days past due for payment unless the
loan is well-secured and in process of collection. Consumer installment loans are typically charged off no later
than 180 days past due. Past due status is based on contractual terms ofthe loan. In all cases, loans are placed
on nonaccrual status or charged-offat an earlier date if collection ofprincipal or interest isconsidered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual status or charged off are reversed
against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis method until qualifying
for return to accrual status. Upon receipt of cash, the cash received is first applied to satisfy principal and then
applied to interest unless the loan is in a cure period and Management believes there will be a loss. Loans are
returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and
future paymentsarereasonably assured.

The Company's real estate loans are collateralized by real estate located principally in Fairfield and New Haven
Counties in Connecticut and Westchester County, New York, and accordingly, the ultimate collectability of a
substantial portion of the Company's loan portfolio is susceptible to changes in regional real estate market
conditions.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment
status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due.
Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as
impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case
basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the
length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for
commercial and real estate loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent.
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Impaired loans also include loans modified in troubled debt restructurings (TDRs), where concessions have
been granted to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. These concessions could include a reduction in
the interest rate on the loan, payment extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance or other actions intended
to maximize collection. TDRs are normally placed on non-accrual status until the loan qualifies for return to
accrual status. Loans qualify for return to accrual status once they have demonstrated performance with the
restructured term of the loan agreement for a minimum of six months.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly,
the Company does not separately identify individual consumer installment loans for impairment disclosures,'
unless such loans are individually evaluated for impairment due to financial difficulties of theborrower.

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's
periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the
loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of any
underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires
estimates thatare susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The Company's December 31, 2014 allowance calculation included the use of more definitive and distinct Loss
Emergence Periods (LEPs) for each loan segment, allowing the Company to more accurately forecast probable
losses that have already occurred in the loan portfolio, which may not have emerged into "problem loan" status.

The updates and refinements to the allowance methodology did not have a significant impact on the total
Allowance for Loan Losses, but as depicted in the tables in foot note 4, did result in some realignment of
Allowance allocations. Notably, the Residential Mortgage allocation increased, which was primarily the result
of higher NPLs and calculated loss rates, higher qualitative factor adjustments, and a higher LEP. As this
category has incurred the most amount of dollars charged-off each of the past three years and has been a
significant contributor to the Company's non-performing loans, the Company believes the resulting December
31, 2014 Allowance allocation for this portfolio segment was reasonable and appropriate.

The ALL for homogeneous loans is calculated using a systematic methodology with both a quantitative and a
qualitative analysis that is applied on a quarterly basis. The ALL model is comprised of five distinct portfolio
segments:

1) Commercial Real Estate
2) Residential Real Estate
3) Construction
4) Commercial
5) Consumer

Each segment has a distinct set of risk characteristics monitored by management. We further assess and monitor
risk and performance at a more disaggregated level which includes our internal risk rating system for the
commercial segments and type of collateral, lien position and loan-to-value, or LTV, for the consumer
segments.
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We first apply historical loss rates to pools ofloans with similar risk characteristics. Loss rates are calculated by
historical charge-offs that have occurred within each pool ofloans over the loss emergence period, or LEP. The
LEP is an estimate of the average amount of time from the point at which a loss is incurred on a loan to the
point at which the loss is confirmed. In general, the LEP will be shorter in an economic slowdown or recession
and longer during times ofeconomic stability or growth, as customers are better able to delay loss confirmation
aftera potential lossevent hasoccurred.

In conjunction with our annual review of the ALL assumptions, we have updated our study of LEPs for our
commercial portfolio segments using our loan charge-offhistory.

Another key assumption is the look-back period, or LBP, which represents the historical data period utilized to
calculate loss rates. We lengthened the LBP for all segments in order to capture relevant historical data believed
tobe reflective of losses inherent in the portfolios. We usea2- year LBP for portfolio segments.

After consideration of the historic loss calculations, management applies additional qualitative adjustments so
that the ALL is reflective of the inherent losses that exist in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date.
Qualitative adjustments are made based upon changes in economic conditions, loan portfolio and asset quality
data and credit process changes, such as credit policies or underwriting standards. The evaluation of the various
components of the ALL requires considerable judgment in order to estimate inherent loss exposures.

Qualitative adjustments are aggregated into the nine categories described in the Interagency Policy Statement
("Interagency Statement") issued bythe bank regulators. Within the statement, the following qualitative factors
are considered:

1. Changes in our lending policies and procedures, including underwriting standards, collection, charge-off and
recovery practices notconsidered elsewhere in estimating credit losses;

2. Changes in national, regional, and local economic and business conditions and developments that
affect thecollectability of the portfolio, including thecondition ofvarious market segments;

3. Changes in the nature and volume of our loan portfolio and terms of loans;
4. Changes in the experience, ability and depth of our lending management and staff;
5. Changes in the volume and loss severity ofpast due loans, the volume ofnonaccrual loans, and the volume and

loss severity ofadversely classified or graded loans;
6. Changes in the qualityofour loan review system;
7. Changes in the value of theunderlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans;
8. The existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes inthe level of such concentrations; and
9. The effect of other external factors such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements on the level of

estimated credit losses in our current loan portfolio.

The Company provides for loan losses based on the consistent application of our documented allowance for
loan loss methodology. Loan losses are charged to the allowance for loans losses and recoveries are credited to
it. Additions to the allowance for loan losses are provided by charges against income based on various factors
which, in our judgment, deserve current recognition in estimating probable losses. Loan losses are charged-off
in the period the loans, or portion thereof, are deemed uncollectible. Generally, the Company will record a loan
charge-off (including a partial charge-off) to reduce a loan to the estimated fair value of the underlying
collateral, less cost to sell, for collateral dependent loans. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance. The Company regularly reviews the loan portfolio and makes adjustments for loan losses inorder to
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maintain the allowance for loan losses in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The
allowance for loan losses consists primarily of the following two components:

(1) Allowances are established for impaired loans (generally defined by the Company as non-accrual loans,
troubled debt restructured loans and loans that were previously classified as troubled debt restructurings
but have been upgraded). The amount ofimpairment provided for as an allowance is represented by the
deficiency, if any, between the present value ofexpected future cash flows discounted at the original
loan's effective interest rate or the underlying collateral value, less estimated costs to sell, if the loan is
collateral dependent, and the carrying value ofthe loan. Impaired loans that have no impairment losses
are not considered for general valuation allowances described below.

(2) General allowances are established for loan losses on a portfolio basis for loans that do not meet the
definition ofimpaired. The portfolio is grouped into similar risk characteristics, primarily loan type and
loan-to-value if collateral dependent. Management applies an estimated loss rate to each loan group.
The loss rates applied are based on the Company's cumulative prior two year loss experience adjusted,
as appropriate, for the environmental factors discussed above. This evaluation is inherently subjective'
as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant revisions based upon changes in
economic and real estate market conditions. Actual loan losses may be more or less than the allowance
for loan losses management has established, which could have an effect on the Company's financial
results.

In addition, a risk rating system is utilized to evaluate the general component of the allowance for loan
losses. Under this system, management assigns risk ratings between one and eleven. Risk ratings are
assigned based upon the recommendations of the credit analyst and the originating loan officer and
confirmed by the Loan Committee at the initiation of the transactions and are reviewed and changed,
when necessary, during the life of the loan. Loans assigned a risk rating of six or above are monitored
more closely by the credit administration officers and the Loan Committee.

In underwriting a loan secured by real property, we require an appraisal of the property by an independent
licensed appraiser approved by the Company's Board of Directors. All appraisals are reviewed by qualified
parties independent from the firm preparing the appraisals. The appraisal is subject to review by an independent
third party hired by the Company. Management reviews and inspects properties before disbursement of funds
during the term of a construction loan. Generally, management obtains updated appraisals when a loan is
deemed impaired and if a construction loan, within 120 days prior to the scheduled maturity date. These
appraisals may be more limited than those prepared for the underwriting of a new loan.

While the Company uses the best information available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the
allowance may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the information used in making the
evaluations. In addition, as an integral part of their examination process, the OCC will periodically review the
allowance for loan losses. The OCC may require the Company to adjust the allowance based on their analysis
of information available to them at the time of their examination.

Transfers of financial assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered.
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the
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Company - put presumptively beyond the reach ofthe transferor and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other
receivership, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of
that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets and no condition both constrains the transferee from
taking advantage ofthat right and provides more than atrivial benefit for the transferor, and (3) the transferor
does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through either (a) an agreement that both entitles
and obligates the transferor to repurchase or redeem the assets before maturity or (b) the ability to unilaterally
cause the holder toreturn specific assets, other than through acleanup call.

Other real estate owned

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at the lower of
cost or estimated fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. In addition,
when the Company acquires other real estate owned ("OREO"), it obtains acurrent appraisal to substantiate the
net carrying value of the asset. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed bymanagement
and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses
from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in operations. Costs relating to the
development and improvement ofthe property are capitalized, subject to the limit of fair value ofthe collateral.
Gainsor losses areincluded in non-interestexpenses upon disposal.

Write-downs required upon transfer to other real estate owned are charged to the allowance for loan losses.
Thereafter, an allowance for other real estate owned losses is established for any further declines in the
property's value. These losses are included in non-interest expenses in the consolidated statement of
operations.

Premises and equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Leasehold
improvements are capitalized and amortized over the shorter of the terms of the related leases or the estimated
economic lives of the improvements. Depreciation is charged to operations for buildings, furniture, equipment
and software using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets which range
from three to forty years. Gains and losses on dispositions are recognized upon realization. Maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incurred and improvements are capitalized.

Impairment ofassets

Long-lived assets, which are held and used by the Company, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount ofan asset may not be recoverable. Ifimpairment is
indicated by that review, the asset is written down to its estimated fair value through a charge to non-interest
expense.

Cash surrender value ofbank owned life insurance

Cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance ("BOLI") represented life insurance on certain employees
who have consented to allow the Bank to be the beneficiary of those policies. Changes in the cash value of the
policies, as well as insurance proceeds received above the carrying value, were recorded in other non-interest
income and are not subject to income tax. The funds were held in a segregated account and invested in
marketable securities. The Bank liquidated the BOLI policyin December 2014.

71



PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
December31.2014.2013and2012

Income taxes

The Company recognizes income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, net deferred
taxes are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and loss
carry forwards. Deferred tax assets (DTAs) and liabilities (DTLs) are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect on DTAs and DTLs ofa change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

In certain circumstances deferred tax assets are subject to reduction by a valuation allowance. A valuation
allowance is subject to ongoing adjustment based on changes in circumstances that affect management's
judgment about the realizability of the deferred tax asset. Adjustments to increase or decrease the valuation
allowance are charged orcredited to income tax provision (benefit).

The Company recognizes a benefit from its tax positions only if it is more-likely-than-not that the tax position
will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical merits ofthe position. The tax
benefits recognized in the consolidated financial statements from such a position are measured based on the
largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information.

The Company's policy for recording interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions is to record such
items as part of its provision for federal and state income taxes.

The Company had a net deferred tax asset of $14.9 million at December 31, 2014 compared to a net deferred
tax asset of$0 at December 31, 2013. The change in net deferred tax asset of$14.9 million was primarily due
to the release of the valuation allowance.

The Company evaluates its ability to realize its net deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis. In doing so the
Company considers all available evidence, both positive and negative, to determine whether it is more likely
than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. When comparing 2014 to prior periods, management noted
positive evidence which included strong positive trend in financial performance, forecasted 2015 and future
period taxable income, a significant improvement in the quality of the loan portfolio, favorable changes in
operations which permanently reduce operating expenses and net operating loss carry-forwards that do not
begin to expire until 2029. The positive evidence noted above resulted in management's conclusion to release
the valuation allowance against the net deferred tax at September 30, 2014. The positive trend in the Bank's
financial performance continued through the fourth quarter, and management determined that a valuation
allowance against the net deferred tax asset was not necessary at December 31, 2014.

Management will continue to evaluate the bank's ability to realize its net deferred tax asset. Future evidence
may prove that it is more likely than not that a portion of the net deferred tax asset will not be realized at which
point a valuation allowance may be reestablished.

The Company has no unrecognized tax benefits and related interest or penalties at December 31, 2014.
Management does not believe that there is any tax position for which it is reasonably possible that will result in
unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months.
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The Company's returns for tax years 2010 through 2013 are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue
Service ("IRS") for U.S. federal tax purposes, and by its major state tax authority, Connecticut. During 2013,
the IRS had completed its examination of the U.S. federal tax returns of the Company for tax years ended
December 31, 2004 thru 2009. There were no changes made by the IRS to the Company's reported tax. There
are no other on-going audits in other tax jurisdictions.

Related party transactions

Directors and officers of the Company and the Bank and their affiliates have been customers of and have had
transactions with the Bank, and it is expected that such persons and entities will continue to have such
transactions in the future. Management believes that all deposit accounts, loans, services and commitments
comprising such transactions were made in the ordinary course ofbusiness, and on substantially the same terms,
including interest rates and collateral requirements, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions
with other customers who are not directors or officers. In the opinion of management, the transactions with
related parties did not involve more than normal risks of collectability or favored treatment or terms, or present
other unfavorable features. Note 17 contains details regarding related party transactions.

Earningsor loss per share

Basic earnings or loss per share represents income or loss relating to common shareholders and is computed by
dividing net income or loss by the weighted-average number ofcommon shares outstanding. Diluted earnings
or loss per share reflects additional common shares that would have been outstanding if potential dilutive
common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustments to income resulting from the assumed issuance
unless such assumed issuance is anti-dilutive. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company
include any stock options and warrants, and are determined using the treasury stock method. The Company did
not have any potentially dilutive shares outstanding in2013 or 2014.

Treasury shares are not deemed outstanding for income (loss) per share purposes.
Share-based compensation plan

The Company accounts for share-based compensation transactions at fair-value and recognizes the related
expense in theconsolidated statements ofoperations.

The Compensation Committee establishes terms and conditions applicable to the vesting of restricted stock
awards and stock options. Restricted stock grants vest in quarterly or annual installments over a three, four or
five year period from the date ofgrant. The fair value ofstock options granted would be estimated utilizing the
Black-Scholes options pricing modeling. The Company is expensing the grant date fair value of all share-based
compensation over the requisite vesting periods on astraight-line basis.

Comprehensive income (loss)

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net
income (loss). Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on
available for sale securities, are reported as a separate component of shareholders' equity in the consolidated
balance sheets, such items, along withnetincome, are components of comprehensive income.

73



PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
December31.2014.2013and2012

Segment reporting

The Company's only business segment is Community Banking. During the years ended 2014, 2013 and 2012,
this segment represented all the revenues and income of the consolidated group and, therefore, is the only
reported segment.

Fair value

The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and to determine
fair value disclosures. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined
based upon quoted market prices. However, in certain instances, there are no quoted market prices for certain
assets or liabilities. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates
using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the
assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value
estimates may not berealized inan immediate settlement of the asset or liability.

See Note 19 for additional information regarding fair value.

RecentlyIssuedAccountingStandards Updates

ASU 2014-14, "Receivables - Troubled Debt Restructuring by Creditors (Subtopic 310-40/' - Classification of
Certain Government-Guaranteed Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure which will require creditors to derecognize
certain foreclosed government-guaranteed mortgage loans and to recognize a separate other receivable that is
measured at the amount the creditor expects to recover from the guarantor, and to treat the guarantee and the
receivable as asingle unit of account. ASU 2014-14 is effective for public business entities for annual periods,
and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2014. For entities other than
public business entities, the ASU is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2015, and interim
periods beginning after December 15, 2015. An entity can elect a prospective or a modified retrospective
transition method, but must use the same transition method that it elected under FASB ASU No. 2014-04,
Reclassification ofResidential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure. Early
adoption, including adoption in an interim period, is permitted if the entity already adopted ASU 2014-04. The
Company intends to adopt the accounting standard during the first quarter of 2015, with no material impact on
its financial statements anticipated.
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ASU No. 2014-12, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718) "Accounting for Share-Based Payments
When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite
Service Period (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force)." - The ASU provides explicit guidance
to account for a performance target that could be achieved after the requisite service period as a performance
condition. For awards within the scope of this Update, the Task Force decided that an entity should apply
existing guidance in Topic 718 as it relates to share-based payments with performance conditions that affect
vesting. Consistent with that guidance, performance conditions that affect vesting should not be reflected in
estimating the fair value of an award at the grant date. Compensation cost should be recognized when it is
probable that the performance target will be achieved and should represent the compensation cost attributable to
the period for which the requisite service has already been rendered. If the performance target becomes
probable of being achieved before the end of the requisite service period, the remaining unrecognized
compensation cost should be recognized prospectively over the remaining requisite service period. The total
amount of compensation cost recognized during and after the requisite service period should reflect the number
of awards that are expected to vest and should be adjusted to reflect those awards that ultimately vest. The
amendments are effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company
intends to adopt the accounting standard during the first quarter of 2015, with no material impact on its financial
statements anticipated.

ASU No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)" - which requires an entity to
recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to beentitled for the transfer ofpromised goods orservices
to customers. The ASU will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in GAAP when it becomes
effective. The new standard is effective for the Company on January 1, 2017. Early application is not permitted.
The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. The Company is
evaluating the effect that ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures. The Company has not yet selected a transition method nor has it determined the effect of the
standard on its ongoing financial reporting.

ASU No. 2014-04, "Receivables - Troubled Debt Restructuring by Creditors (Subtopic 310-40):
Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans Upon Foreclosure,'" was
issued to clarify that when an in substance repossession or foreclosure occurs, a creditor is considered to have
received physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, upon
either (1) the creditor obtaining legal title to the residential real estate property upon completion of a foreclosure
or (2) the borrower conveying all interest in the residential real estate property to the creditor to satisfy that loan
through completion of a deed in lieu of foreclosure or through a similar legal agreement. Additionally, the
amendments require interim and annual disclosure of both (1) the amount of foreclosed residential real estate
property held by the creditor and (2) the recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans collateralized by
residential real estate property that are in the process of foreclosure according to local requirements of the
applicable jurisdiction. ASU 2014-04 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2014. The Company intends to adopt the accounting standard during the first quarter of 2015, with no material
impact on its financial statements anticipated.

ASU No. 2014-01, "Accountingfor Investments in Qualified Affordable Housing Projects (Topic 323)"- allows
an entity that invests in low income housing projects and meets all the specified conditions to use the
proportional amortization method to account for the costs of those investments. The effective date is for annual
periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2014. The Company

75



PATRIOT NATIONAL BANCORP, INC. ANDSUBSIDIARY

NOTES TOCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
December31.2014.2013and2012

intends toadopt the accounting standard during the first quarter of2015, with no material impact on its financial
statements anticipated.

Note 2. Restrictions on Cash and Due From Banks

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Companywas required to maintain$25,000 in the FederalReserve Bank
for clearing purposes for its transaction accounts andnon-personal time deposits.

Note 3. Available-for-Sale Securities

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses andapproximate fairvalue of available-for-
sale securities at December 31,2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Gross

(in thousands) Amortized lUnrealized Fair

Cost Losses Value

2014

U. S. Government agency bonds $ 7,500 $ (91) $ 7,409

U. S. Government agency mortgage-backed

securities 17,635 (298) 17,337

Corporate bonds 9,000 (64) 8,936

$ 34,135 $ (453) $ 33,682

2013

U. S. Governmentagency bonds $ 7,500 $ (421) $ 7,079

U. S. Governmentagency mortgage-backed

securities 22,388 (636) 21,752

Corporate bonds 9,000 (130) 8,870

38,888 $ (1,187) $ 37,701
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The following table presents the Company's available for sale securities' gross unrealized losses and fair value,
aggregated by the length oftime the individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, at December
31,2014 and 2013:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

(in thousands) Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

2014

U. S. Government agency bonds $ $ $ 7,409 $ (91) $ 7,409 $ (91)

U. S. Government agency mortgage -

backed securities - 17,337 (298) 17,337 (298)

Corporate bonds - 8,936 (64) 8,936 (64)

Totals $ $ $ 33,682 $ (453) $ 33,682 $ (453)

2013

U. S. Government agency bonds $
U. S. Government agency mortgage -

backed securities

Corporate bonds
Totals

7,079 $ (421) $

8,871 (291) 12,881

8,870

(345)

(130)

$ 7,079 $ (421)

21,752

8,870

(636)

(130)

$ 15,950 $ (712) $ 21,751 $ (475) $ 37,701 $ (1,187)

At December 31, 2014, all eleven available-for-sale securities had unrealized losses with an aggregate
depreciation of 1.3% from the amortized cost. At December 31, 2013, all eleven securities had unrealized
losses with an aggregatedepreciation of 3.2% from the amortizedcost.

The Company performs a quarterly analysis of those securities that are in an unrealized loss position to
determine if those losses qualify as other-than-temporary impairments. This analysis considers the following
criteria in its determination: the ability of the issuer to meet its obligations when the loss position is due to a
deterioration in credit quality, management's plans and ability to maintain its investment in the security, the
length of time and the amount by which the security has been in a loss position, the interest rate environment,
thegeneral economic environment and prospects for improvement or deterioration.

Management believes that none of the unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities noted above are other
than temporary due to the fact that they relate to market interest rate changes on U.S. Government agency debt,
corporate debt and mortgage-backed securities issued by U.S. Government agencies. Management considers
the issuers of the securities to be financially sound, the corporate bonds are investment grade and the Company
expects to receive all contractual principal and interest related to these investments. Because the Company does
not intend to sell the investments, and it is not more-likely-than-not that the Company will be required to sell
the investments before recovery of their amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, the Company does not
consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31,2014.
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At December 31, 2014 and 2013, available-for-sale securities with a carrying value of $4.4 million and $5.8
million, respectively, were pledged to securemunicipal deposits.

The amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale debt securities at December 31, 2014 by contractual
maturity are presented below. Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securities may differ from contractual
maturities because the mortgages underlying the securities may be repaid without any penalties. Because
mortgage-backed securities are not due ata single maturity date, they are not included in the maturity categories
in the following maturity summary.

(in thousands)

Maturity:

Corporate bonds 5 to 10 years
U.S. Government agencybonds < 5 years
U.S. Government agencybonds 5 to 10 years

U.S. Government agencymortgage-backed securities
Total

During 2014 and 2013, there wereno sales of available-for-sale securities. During 2012, sales of available-for-
salesecurities resulted in theCompany recognizing proceeds of $45.2 million andnetgains of $911,000.

Note 4. Loan Receivables and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans receivable,net, consists of the following at December 31,2014 and 2013:

Amortized Cost Fair Value

$ 9,000 $ 8,936
2,500 2,489

5,000 4,920

17,635 17,337

$ 34,135 $ 33,682

(in thousands) December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

Real Estate

Commercial $ 254,505 $ 222,772

Residential 108,543 106,968

Construction 3,096 260

Construction to permanent 10,627 11,372

Commercial 53,973 35,137

Consumer home equity 41,631 44,315

Consumer installment 4,533 3,005

Total Loans 476,908 423,829

Allowance for loan losses (4,924) (5,681)

Loans receivable, net $ 471,984 $ 418,148
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Asummary ofchanges in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2014,2013 and 2012
are as follows:

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Balance, beginning ofperiod $ 5,681 $ 6,016 $ 9,385
Provisionfor loan tosses - 970 (2,379)

Loans charged-off (867) (1,668) (1,070)
Recoveries ofloans previously charged-off 110 363 80
Balance, end ofperiod ~$ 4,924 $ 5,681 $ 6,016

The Company's lending activities are conducted principally in Fairfield and New Haven Counties in
Connecticut and Westchester County in New York. The Company originates commercial real estate loans,
commercial business loans, and a variety of consumer loans. In addition, the Company previously had
originated loans on residential real estate. All residential and commercial mortgage loans are collateralized
primarily by first or second mortgages on real estate. The ability and willingness of borrowers to satisfy their
loan obligations is dependent to some degree on the status of the regional economy as well as upon the regional
real estate market. Accordingly, the ultimate collectability of a substantial portion of the loan portfolio and the
recovery of a substantial portion of any resulting real estate acquired is susceptible to changes in market
conditions.

The Company has established credit policies applicable to each type of lending activity in which it engages,
evaluates the creditworthiness of each customer and, in most cases, extends credit of up to 75% of the market
value of the collateral for commercial real estate at the date of the credit extension depending on the Company's
evaluation of the borrowers' creditworthiness and type of collateral and up to 80% for multi-family real estate.
In the case of construction loans, the maximum loan-to-value is 65% of the "as completed" appraised value.
The appraised value of collateral is monitored on an ongoing basis and additional collateral is requested when
warranted. Real estate is the primary form of collateral. Other important forms of collateral are accounts
receivable, inventory, other businessassets, marketable securities and time deposits.

Risk characteristics of the Company's portfolio classes include the following:

Commercial Real EstateLoans- In underwriting commercial real estate loans, the Company evaluates both the
prospective borrower's ability to make timely payments on the loan and the value of the property securing the
loans. Repayment of such loans may be negatively impacted should the borrower default or should there be a
substantial decline in the value of the property securing the loan or decline in general economic conditions.
Where the owner occupies the property, the Company also evaluates the business ability to repay the loan on a
timely basis. In addition, the Company may require personal guarantees, lease assignments and/or the
guaranteeof the operating company when the property is owner occupied.
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Commercial and Industrial Loans - The Company's commercial and industrial loan portfolio consists primarily
of commercial business loans and lines of credit to businesses and professionals. These loans are usually made
to finance accounts receivable, the purchase of inventory or new or used equipment and for other short or long-
term working capital purposes. These loans are generally secured by business assets, but are also occasionally
offered on an unsecured basis. In granting this type of loan, the Company primarily looks to the borrower's
cash flow as the source of repayment with collateral and personal guarantees, where obtained, as a secondary
source. Payments on such loans are often dependent upon the successful operation of the underlying business
involved. Repayment of such loans may therefore be negatively impacted by adverse changes in economic
conditions, management's inability to effectively manage the business, claims of others against the borrower's
assets which may take priority over the Company's claims against assets, death or disability of the borrower or
loss of markets for the borrower's products or services.

Residential Real Estate Loans - Home equity loans secured by real estate properties are offered by the
Company. The Company no longer offers residential mortgages, having exited this business in 2013.
Repayment of residential real estate loans may be negatively impacted should the borrower have financial
difficulties, should there be a significant decline in the value of the property securing the loan or should there be
decline in general economic conditions.

Construction Loans - Construction loans are short-term loans (generally up to 18 months) secured by land for
both residential and commercial development. The loans are generally made for acquisition and improvements.
Funds are disbursed as phases of construction are completed. Included in this category are loans to construct
single family homes where no contract of saleexists, based upon theexperience and the financial strength of the
builder, the type and location of the property and other factors. Construction loans are generally personally
guaranteed by the principal(s). Repayment of such loans may be negatively impacted by the builders' inability
to complete construction, by a downturn in the new construction market, by a significant increase in interest
rates or by decline in general economic conditions.

Other/Consumer Loans - The Company also offers installment loans, credit cards, consumer overdraft and
reserve lines of credit to individuals. Repayments of such loans are often dependent on the personal income of
the borrower which may be negatively impacted by adverse changes in economic conditions. The Company
does not place a high emphasis on originating these types of loans.

The Company does not have any lending programs commonly referred to as subprime lending. Subprime
lending generally targets borrowers with weakened credit histories typically characterized by payment
delinquencies, previous charge-offs, judgments, bankruptcies, or borrowers with questionable repayment
capacity as evidenced by low credit scores or high debt-burdened ratios.
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The following tables set forth activity inour allowance for loan losses, byloan type, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014. The following
tables also detail the amount of loans receivable, net, that are evaluated individually, and collectively, for impairment, and the related portion of the
allowance for loan losses that is allocated to each loan portfolio segment.

(in thousands)

Twelve months ended

December 31,2014

Allowance for loan losses:

Beginning Balance

Charge-ofls
Recoveries

2 Provis ion

Ending Balance

Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment
Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment

Commercial

Total Allowance for Loan Lo $_

2,285

(49)

6

(324)

1,918

1.918

1.918

Total Loans ending balance $ 53,973

Ending balance: individually

evaluated for impairment 2

Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment $ 53,971

Commercial

Real Estate

1,585

(297)

60

71

1,419

1.419

1,419

$ 254,505

7.398

Cons traction

260

(260)

10

53

$ 63

$

63

$ 63

$ 3,096

$ 3,096

Cons traction

to Permanent

25

190

215

215

215

$ 10,627

$ 10,627

Residential

795

(195)

30

201

$ 831

$

831

$ 831

$ 108,543

3.764

$ 104,779

Cons umer

534

(66)

4

6

s 478

s 7

471

$ 478

$ 46,164

560

$ 45,604

Unallocated

197

(197)

Total

5,681

(867)

110

4,924

7

4.917

S 4,924

S 476,908

S 465,184
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The following tables set forth activity inour allowance for loan losses, by loan type, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013. The following
tables also detail the amount of loans receivable, net, that are evaluated individually, and collectively, for impairment, and the related portion of the
allowance for loan losses that is allocated to each loan portfolio segment.

(in thousands)

Twelve months ended

December 31,2013 Commercial

Commercial

Real Estate Construction

Construction

to Permanent Residential Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan losses:

Beginning Balance

Charge-ofFs
Recoveries

Provision

Ending Balance

$

S

$

$

s

942

(63)

4

1.402

2,285

1,500

785

2,285

35,137

S 3,509

(403)

335

(1.856)

$ 1,585

$

S

$

311

(205)

20

134

260

260

S 19

6

S 25

$

S

897

(919)

1

816

795

S

$

217

(78)

3

392

534

S

S

121

76

197

S

s

6,016

(1,668)
363

970

5,681

n5 Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment
Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment

$ 31

1.554

S 1,585

$

25

$ 25

$

$

98

697

795

$

$

2

532

534

$

$

197

197

$

$

1,891

3.790

5,681Total Allowance for Loan Losses $

$

$

260

260

260

Total Loans ending balance S 222,772 S 11,372

1.189

$ 10,183

$ 106,968 s

s

47,320

594

46,726

$ s 423,829

Ending balance: individually
evaluated for impairment

$

6.152

28.985

7.766

S 215,006 $

6.060

100,908 s

22.021

Ending balance: collectively
evaluated for impairment $ 401,808
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The Company monitors the credit quality of its loans receivable in an ongoing manner. Credit quality is
monitored by reviewing certain credit quality indicators, including loan to value ratios, debt service coverage
ratios and credit scores.

Appraisals on properties securing non-performing loans and Other Real Estate Owned ("OREO") are updated
annually. We update our impairment analysis monthly based on the most recent appraisal as well as other
factors (such as senior lien positions, propertytaxes, etc.).

The majority of the Company's impaired loans have been resolved through courses of action other than via
bank liquidations of real estate collateral through OREO. These include normal loan payoffs, the traditional
workout process, triggering personal guarantee obligations, and troubled debt restructurings. However, as loan
workout efforts progress to a point where the bank's liquidation of real estate collateral is the likely outcome,
the impairment analysis isupdated toreflect actual recent experience with bank sales of OREO properties.

A disposition discount is built into our impairment analysis and reflected in our allowance once a property is
determined to be a likely OREO (e.g. foreclosure is probable). To determine the discount we compare the
average sales prices of our prior OREO properties to the appraised value that was obtained as of the date when
we took title to the property. The difference is the bank-owneddisposition discount.

The Company has a risk rating system as part of the risk assessment of its loan portfolio. The Company's
lending officers are required to assign an Obligor and a Facility risk rating to each loan in their portfolio at
origination, which is ratified or modified by the Committee to which the loan is submitted for approval. When
the lender learns of important financial developments, the risk rating is reviewed accordingly, and adjusted if
necessary. Similarly, the Loan Committee can adjust a riskrating. The Company employs a loan officer whose
responsibility is to independently review the ratings annually for all commercial credits over$250,000.

In addition, the Company engages a third party independent loan reviewer that performs quarterly reviews of a
sample of loans, validating the Bank's risk ratings assigned to such loans. Any upgrades to classified loans
must be approvedby the Management Loan Committee.

When assigning a risk rating to a loan, management utilizes the Bank's internal eleven-point risk rating system.
An asset is considered "special mention" when it has a potential weakness based on objective evidence, but
does not currently expose the Company to sufficient risk to warrant classification in one of the following
categories:

An asset is considered "substandard" if it is not adequately protected by the current net worth and
paying capacity of the obligor or the collateral pledged, if any. Substandard assets have well defined
weaknesses based on objective evidence, and are characterized by the "distinct possibility" that the
Company will sustain"some loss" if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Assets classified as "doubtful" have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified "substandard" with
the added characteristic that the weaknesses presentmake "collection or liquidation in full," on the basis
ofcurrentlyexisting facts, conditions,and values,"highly questionableand improbable."
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Charge-off generally commences after the loan is classified "doubtful" to reduce the loan to its recoverable
balance. If the account is classified as "loss", the full balance is charged off regardless of the potential recovery
from thesale of thecollateral. That amount is recognized as a recovery after thecollateral is sold.

In accordance with FFIEC ("Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council") published policies
establishing uniform criteria for the classification of retail credit based on delinquency status, "Open-end"
credits are charged-off when 180 days delinquent and "Closed-end" credits are charged-off when 120 days
delinquent.
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The following table details thecredit risk exposure of loans receivable, by loan typeand credit quality indicator atDecember 31, 2014:

CREDIT RISK PROFILE BY CREDIT WORTHINESS CATEGORY

CREDITRISK PROFTLEBY CREDITWORTHINESS CATEGORY

(in thousands) Commercial Commercial Real Estate Construction

Construction to

Permanent Residential Real Estate Consumer

LTVs: <7S% >=75% <75% >=75% <7S% >°7S% <75% >°7S% <75% >°75% <75% >°75% Other Total
Internal Risk Rating

Pass S 41,200 S 6,878 S 240,926 S 7,206 S 2,936 S 160 S 10,627 S - S 93,238 S 14,586 S 43,820 S 1,627 S 710 S 463,914
Special Mention 121 - 1,945 1,983 .... .... - 4,049
Substandard 5,774 - 2,445 - .... 339 380 7 - - 8»945

S 47,095 S 6,878 S 245,316 S 9,189 S 2,936 S 160 S 10,627 S S 93,577 S 14,966 S 43,827 S 1,627 S 710 S 476,908

CREDIT RIS K PRO FILE

(in thousands)

ing

Total

Commercial

Commercial

Real Estate Construction

S 3,096

Construction

to Permanent

Residential

Real Estate Consumer Totals

Performing

Non Perform

S 53,971

2

S 254,367

138

$ 10,627 $ 107,824

719

S 46,157

7

S 476,042

866

S 53,973 S 254,505 S 3,096 S 10,627 S 108,543 S 46,164 S 476,908
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The following table details the credit risk exposure of loansreceivable, by loan type and credit quality indicatorat December 31, 2013:

CREDIT RISK PROFILE BY CREDITWORTHINESS CATEGORY

CREDIT RISK PROFILE BY CREDIT WORTHINESS CATEGORY

Construction to

(in thousands) Commercial CommercialReal Estate Construction Permanent ResidentialReal Estate Consumer

LTVs: <7S% >=75% <7S% >=75% <75% >=75% <75% >=75% <75% >=75% <75% >=75% Other Total

Internal RiskRating

Pass S 23,671 S 3,868 S 198,787 $ 7,940 $ - S - $ 10,183 S - S 83,252 $ 20,778 S 42,780 S 3,849 $ 650 $ 395,758
Special Mention 170 - 6,551 2,496 ....... _ ^17

Substandard 7,428 - 3,684 3,314 60 200 1,189 - 1,981 957 10 31 - 18,854oo

S 31,269 S 3,868 S 209,022 S 13,750 S 60 S 200 S 11,372 S - $ 85,233 S 21,735 $ 42,790 S 3,880 $ 650 S 423,829

CREDIT RIS K PROFILE

(in thousands)

Performing

Non Performing

Total

Commercial

Commercial

Real Estate Construction

Construction

to Permanent

Residential

Real Estate Consumer Totals

$ 28,985

6,152

$ 221,007

1,765

$ 222,772

$

260

$

$

10,183

1,189

11,372

$ 104,030

2,938

$ 106,968

$ 47,287

33

$

$

411,492

12,337

$ 35,137 $ 260 $ 47,320 423,829
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Non-accrual and past due loans

Included in loans receivable are loans for which the accrual of interest income has been discontinued due to
deterioration in the financial condition of the borrowers. The recorded balance of these nonaccrual loans was
$866,000 and $12.3 million at December 31, 2014, and December 31, 2013 respectively. Generally, loans are
placed on non-accruing status when they become 90 days or more delinquent, and remain on non-accrual status
until they are brought current, have six months of performance under the loan terms, and factors indicating
reasonable doubt about the timely collection of payments no longer exist. Therefore, loans may be current in
accordance with their loan terms, or may be less than 90 days delinquent and still be on a non-accruing status.
Additionally, certain loans that cannot demonstrate sufficient global cash flow to continue loan payments in the
future and certain troubled debt restructures (TDRs) are placed on non-accrual status.

Loans pastdue ninety days or more, and still accruing interest, were $279,000 and $866,000 at December 31,
2014, and December 31, 2013 respectively. Loans over 90 days past due were comprised of four commercial
loansas of December31, 2014. All four loans were mature lines of credit with acceptable risk ratings awaiting
renewal. These loans were past the loan's maturity date and were current within 60 days as to interest
payments. Loans over 90 days past due were comprised of two loans as of December 31, 2013. One loan for
$841,000 was current and the second loan for $25,000 was current within 60 days as to interest payments, both
werepast the loan's maturitydate and in the processof being renewed.

The following table sets forth the detail, and delinquency status, of non-accrual loans and past due loans at December 31,2014:

Non-Accrual and Past Due Loans

(in thousands) Non-Accrual Loans

2014 >90Days

Past Due Total Non-Accrual

31-60 Days 61-90 Days Greater Than Total Past and and Past Due

Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Accruing Loans

Commercial

Pass

Substandard

Total Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Substandard

Total Commercial Real Estate

Residential Real Estate

Substandard

Total Residential Real Estate

Consumer

Substandard

Total Consumer

Total

2 $

719 $

719

7 $

728 i.

87

138 $

138

719 $

719 $

7 $

728 i. 138 1

279 $

279 $

279 $

279

2

281

138

138

719

719

1.145
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The following table sets forth the detail, and delinquency status, of non-accrual loans and past due loans at December 31,2013:

Non-Accrual and Past Due Loans

(in thousands) Non-Accrual Loans

2013

31-60 Days

Past Due

61-90 Days

Past Due

Greater

Than 90

Days

Total Past

Due Current

>90 Days

Past Due

and

Accruing

Total Non-

Accrual and

Past Due Loans

Commercial

Pass

Substandard

$ $ $ - $

2

- $

2

$ 25 $ 25

6,150 - 6,152

Total Commercial $ $ $ 2 $ 2 $ 6,150 $ 25 $ 6,177
Commercial Real Estate

Substandard $ $ $ 1,765 $ 1,765 $ $ 841 $ 2,606
Total Commercial Real Estate $ $ $ 1,765 $ 1,765 $ - $ 841 $ 2,606
Construction

Substandard $ $ $ 260 $ 260 $ $ - $ 260

Total Construction $ $ $ 260 $ 260 $ - $ $ 260

Construction to Permanent

Substandard $ $ $ - $ - $ 1,189 $ - $ 1,189
Total Construction to Permanent $ $ $ $ - $ 1,189 $ $ 1,189
Residential Real Estate

Substandard $ $ $ 2,553 $ 2,553 $ 385 $ - $ 2.938

Total Residential Real Estate $ $ $ 2,553 $ 2,553 $ 385 $ $ 2,938
Consumer

Substandard $ $ $ 2 $ 2 $ 31 $ - $ 33

Total Consumer $ $ $ 2 $ 2 $ 31 $ $ 33

Total $ $ $ 4,582 $ 4,582 $ 7,755 $ 866 $ 13,203

If non-accrual loans as of December 31 of each year had been performing in accordance with their original
terms, the Company would have recorded $23,000, $310,000 and $1.2 million of additional income during the
yearsended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012, respectively.

During 2014, 2013 and 2012, interest income collected and recognized on non-accrual loans as of December 31
ofeach year was approximately $0, $198,000 and $0 respectively.
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The following table sets forth the detail and delinquency status ofbans receivable, byperforming and non-performing loans at
December 31,2014.

(in thousands) Performing (Accruing) Loans

2014

Total

Total Non-

Accrual and

31-60 Days 61-90 Days Greater Than Total Past Performing Past Due

Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Loans Loans Total Loans

Commercial

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

1,520 $ 1,520 $ 46,279

121

5,772

47,799

121

5,772

$ 279 $

2

48,078

121

5,774

Total Commercial $ 1,520 $ $ $ 1,520 $ 52,172 $ 53,692 $ 281 $ 53,973

Commercial Real Estate

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

1,041

815

1,041

815

$ 248,132

2,887

1,492

$ 248,132

3,928

2,307 138

248,132

3,928

2,445

Total Commercial Real Estate $ 1,041 $ 815 $ - $ 1,856 $ 252,511 S 254,367 $ 138 $ 254,505

Construction

Pass $ $ $ $ $ 3,096 $ 3,096 S $ 3,096

Total Construction $ -
$

-
$

-
$

-
$ 3,096 $ 3,096 $ -

$ 3,096

Construction to Permanent

Pass $ $ $ $ $ 10,627 $ 10,627 s - $ 10,627

Total Construction to Pcrmancrl $
- $ -

$
-

$
-

S 10,627 $ 10,627 $ -
$ 10,627

Residential Real Estate

Pass S 172 $ 87 $ 1,553 $ 1,812 $ 106,012 $ 107,824 $ $ 107,824

Substandard - - - - - -
719 719

Total Residential Real Estate $ 172 $ 87 $ 1,553 $ 1,812 $ 106,012 $ 107,824 $ 719 $ 108,543

Consumer

Pass S $ 2 S S 2 $ 46,155 s 46,157 $ $ 46,157

Substandard - - - - - -
7 7

Total Consumer $ -
$ 2 $

-
$ 2 $ 46,155 $ 46,157 $ 7 $ 46,164

Total

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

Grand Total

1,692 $

1,041

2,733 $

89 $

815

904 $

1,553 $

1,553 $

89

3,334 $ 460,301 $ 463,635 $ 279 $ 463,914

1,041 3,008 4,049
-

4,049

815 7,264 8,079 866 8,945

5,190 470,573 $ 475,763 1,145 S 476,908
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The following table sets forth the detail anddelinquency status of loans receivable, byperforming andnon-performing toans
at December 31,2013.

(in thousands) Performing (Accruing) Loans

2013

31-60 Days

Past Due

61-89

Days Past

Due

Greater

Than 90

Days

Total Past

Due Current

Total Loan

Balances

Total Non-

Accrual and

Past Due

Loans

Total Loans

Receivable

Commercial

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

$ 725 725 $ 26,790 $

170

1,275

25 $ 27,540

170

7,427

27,515 $

170

1,275 6,152

Total Commercial $ 725 $ $ $ 725 $ 28,235 $ 28,960 $ 6,177 $ 35,137

Commercial Real Estate

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

$ 1,845 $ 266 $ $ 2,111 $ 204,615 $ 206,726 $

9,047 9,047

4,394 4,394

$ 206,726

9,047

2,605 6,999

Total Commercial Real Estate $ 1,845 $ 266 $ $ 2,111 $ 218,056 $ 220,167 $ 2,605 $ 222,772

Construction

Substandard $ $ - $ $ - $ $ $ 260 $ 260

Total Construction $ - $ - $ $ - $ - $ - $ 260 $ 260

Construction to Permanent

Pass

Substandard

$ $ S $ $ 10,183 $ 10,183 $ $

1,189

10,183

1,189

Total Construction to Permanent $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 10,183 $ 10,183 $ 1,189 $ 11,372

Residential Real Estate

Pass

Substandard

$ 32 $ $ $ 32 $ 103,998 $ 104,030 $ $

2,938

104,030

2,938

Total Residential Real Estate $ 32 $ - $ - $ 32 $ 103,998 $ 104,030 $ 2,938 $ 106,968

Consumer

Pass

Substandard

$ 350 $

7

561 $ $ 911 $

7

46,368 $ 47,279 $

7

$

34

47,279

41

Total Consumer $ 357 $ 561 $ $ 918 $ 46,368 $ 47,286 $ 34 $ 47,320

Total

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

Grand Total

$ 2,952 $ 827

7

$ 2,959 $ 827 $

$ 3,779 $ 391,954 $ 395,733 $ 25 $ 395,758

9,217 9,217 - 9,217

5,669 5,676 13,178 18,854

$ 3,786 $ 406,840 $ 410,626 $ 13,203 $ 423,829
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Impaired Loans

Impaired loans consist of non-accrual loans, TDRs, and loans previously classified as TDRs that have been
upgraded. The Company's most recent impairment analysis resulted in identification of $11.7 million of
impaired loans, for which specific reserves of $7,000 were required at December 31, 2014, compared to $22.0
million of impaired loans at December 31,2013, for which specific reserves of $1.9 million were required. The
$11.7 million of impaired loans at December 31, 2014 was comprised of exposure to 14 borrowers, compared to
the $22.0 million of impaired loans at December 31, 2013 which was comprised of exposure to 22 borrowers.
In all cases, the Bank has obtained current appraisal reports from independent licensed appraisal firms and
reduced those values for estimated selling expenses to determine estimated impairment. The average recorded
investmentin impaired loans for the years ending December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $20.5 million, $30.8
million and $35.0 million respectively.

The following table summarizes impaired loans as of December 31, 2014:

(in thousands)

With no related allowance recorded:

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Cons miction

Cons traction to Permanent

Res idential

Cons umer

Total:

With an allowance recorded:

Cons umer

Total:

Commercial

Commercial Real Es tate

Cons traction

Cons traction to Permanent

Res idential

Cons umer

Total:

Recorded

Inves tment

Unpaid Principal

Balance

2 $

7,398

104

8,249

732

3,793

633

Related Allowance

3,764

553

$ 11,717 $ 13,511 $ -

$ 7 $ 7 $ 7

$ 7 $ 7 $ 7

2

7,398

3,764

560

11,724 $

91

104

8,249

732

3,793

640

13,518 $
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
December31.2014.2013and2012

The following table summarizes impaired loans as of December 31,2013:

Unpaid

Recorded Principal Related

(in thousands) Investment Balance Allowance

With no related allowance recorded:

Commercial $ 2 $ 151 $ -

Commercial Real Estate 7,596 8,316 -

Construction to Permanent 1,189 1,417 -

Residential 5,103 7,636
-

Consumer 592 671 -

Total: $ 14,482 $ 18,191 $ -

With an allowance recorded:

Commercial $ 6,150 $ 6,150 $ 1,500

Commercial Real Estate 170 214 31

Construction 260 732 260

Residential 957 1,097 98

Consumer 2 2 2

Total: $ 7,539 $ 8,195 $ 1,891

Commercial $ 6,152 $ 6,301 $ 1,500
Commercial Real Estate 7,766 8,530 31

Construction 260 732 260

Construction to Permanent 1,189 1,417 -

Residential 6,060 8,733 98

Consumer 594 673 2

Total: $ 22,021 $ 26,386 $ 1,891

Included in the tables above at December 31, 2014 and 2013, are loans with carrying balances of $11.7 million
and $14.5 million respectively that required no specific reserves in our allowance for loan losses. Loans that
did not require specific reserves have sufficient collateral values, less costs to sell, supporting the carrying
balances of the loans. In some cases, there may beno specific reserves because the Company already charged-
off the specific impairment. Once a borrower is in default, the Company is under no obligation to advance
additional funds on unused commitments.
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Troubled Debt Restructurings

On a case-by-case basis, the Company may agree to modify the contractual terms of a borrower's loan to assist
customers who may be experiencing financial difficulty. If the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties
and a concession has been made, the loan is classified as a troubled debt restructured loan.

At December 31, 2014, there was one loan totaling $1.1 million that was considered a "troubled debt
restructuring", as compared to 2 loans totaling $2.2 million that were considered "troubled debt restructurings"
at December 31, 2013, all of which are included in impaired loans. At December 31, 2014, the one loan was
accruing. At December 31, 2013 one of the two loans for $991,000 was accruing and the other for $1.2 million
was a non-accruing loan. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no commitments to advance additional
funds under troubled debt restructured loans.

The following table presents the total troubled debt restructured loans as of December 31, 2014 which are
included in impaired loans:

Accrual Non-accrual Total

(dollars in thousands) #of #of #of

Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans

Commercial Real Estate 1 $ 1,131 - $ 1

Total Troubled Debt Restructurings 1 $ 1,131 - $ 1

The following table presents the total troubled debt restructured loans as ofDecember 31, 2013:

Amount

1,131

1,131

Accrual Non-accrual Total

(dollars in thousands)

Commercial Real Estate

Construction to Permanent

#of

Loans

1

Amount

$ 991

#of

Loans

1

1

Amount

$

1,197

$ 1,197

#of

Loans

1

1

2

Amount

$ 991

1,197

Total Troubled Debt Restructurings 1 $ 991 $ 2,188
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The following table summarizes loans that were modified in troubled debt restructurings during the twelve
months ended December 31,2014

Twelve months ended December 31, 2014

(dollars in thousands)

Commercial Real Estate

Total Troubled Debt Restructurings

Number of

Relationships

2

Pre-Modification

OutstandingRecorded

Investment

$ 2,439

$ 2,439

Number of

Relationships

2

Post-Modification

Outstanding Recorded

Investment

$ 2,430

$ 2,430

The following table summarizes the two loans that were modified in a troubled debt restructuring during the
year ended December 31, 2013.

Twelve months ended December 31, 2013

(dollars in thousands)
Construction to permanent
Total TroubledDebt Restructurings

Pre-Modification

Number of Outstanding

Relationships Recorded Investment
2 4,730

$ 4,730

Post-Modification

Number of Outstanding

Relationships Recorded Investment
i 99f
1 $ 991

Substantially all ofour troubled debt restructured loan modifications involve lowering the monthly payments on
such loans through either a reduction in interest rate below market rate, an extension ofthe term ofthe loan, ora
combination ofthese two methods. These modifications rarely result in the forgiveness ofprincipal oraccrued
interest. In addition, we frequently obtain additional collateral or guarantor support when modifying
commercial loans. If the borrower had demonstrated performance under the previous terms and our
underwriting process shows the borrower has the capacity to continue to perform under the restructured terms,
the loan will continue to accrue interest. Non-accruing restructured loans may be returned to accrual status
when there has been a sustained period of repayment performance (generally six consecutive months of
payments) and both principal and interest are deemed collectible.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, one loan in amount of $1.2 million was restructured again, and
another loan in the amount of$1.3 million was upgraded topass impaired.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, two construction to permanent loans to one borrower in the amount
of$3.7 million and $1.0 million were downgraded due to the financial hardship of the borrower. The loan for
$3.7 million has since been upgraded as to risk rating. Four troubled debt restructured loans, a commercial loan
for $37,000, a residential real estate loan for $4.4 million and two commercial real estate loans aggregating $3.9
million have since paid off. Two troubled debt restructured loans, a home equity installment loan for $563,000
and a residential real estate loan for $347,000 were upgraded due to the improvement in the borrower's
financial condition. One residential real estate loan for $500,000 was charged off, due to the uncertainty ofthe
collectability of the loan.
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Note 5. Premises and Equipment

At December 31,2014 and2013, premises andequipment consisted of the following:

(in thousands) 2014 2013

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, equipment and software
Land

Buildings

Total Premises and Equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization

Premises and Equipment, net

$ 5,150 $ 6,060

7,216 6,981

10,419 7,341

10,166 4,956

32,951

(10,594)

25,338

(10,277)

$ 22,357 $ 15,061

For the years ended December 31,2014, 2013 and 2012, depreciation and amortization expense related to
premisesand equipment totaled $1.1 million, $1.2 million and $1.2 million respectively.

Note 6. Other Real Estate Operations

At December 31,2014 and 2013, the Company hadno other real estate owned. For the years ended December
31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, amounts charged to operations for other real estate owned totaled $12,000, $212,000
and $(58,000) respectively. A summary ofother real estate operations for the years ended December 31, 2014,
2013 and 2012 is as follows:

(in thousands)

Expenses ofholding other real estate owned
Loss (gain) onsale ofother real estate owned
Expense (income) from other real estate operations

2014

$ 8

4

$ 12

95

2013 2012

326 $ 127

(114) (185)

212 $ (58)
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Note 7. Deposits

At December31,2014 and 2013, depositsconsistedof the following:

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

(in thousands) 2014 Interest Rate 2013 Interest Rate

Non-interest bearing $ 63,398 $ 55,358

Interest bearing

NOW 26,269 0.01% 28,618 0.01%

Savings 93,790 0.48% 80,983 0.30%

Money market 24,650 0.04% 29,310 0.04%

Time certificates, less than $100,000 106340 0.73% 129,548 1.05%

Time certificates, $100,000 or more 97,876 0.87% 106387 1.09%

Brokered Deposits 30,710

379,635

$ 443,033

0.47% -

Total interest bearing 0.59% 374,846

$ 430,204

0.74%

Total Deposits 0.50% 0.65%

Interest expense on deposits consisted of the following:

(in thousands)

Time certificates, less than $100,000

Time certificates, $100,000 or more

Money market

Savings

NOW

Brokered Deposits

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

$ 1,042 $ 1,822 $ 2,706

972 1,601 2,226

15 40 72

330 350 331

3 9 16

2
- -

$ 2,364 $ 3,822 $ 5351
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Contractual maturities of time certificates of deposit excluding brokered deposits as of December 31, 2014 are
summarized below:

Balance ofTime Weighted Average

(dollars in thousands) Certificates ofDeposit InterestRate

Due within:

lyear $ 180,327 0.74%
1-2 years 7,837 1.30%
2-3 years 9,462 1.54%
3-4 years 3,524 0.91%
4-5 years 3,066 0.51%

$ 204,216 0-80%

Note 8. Borrowings

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston ("FHLB"). At December 31,2014, the Bank
has the ability to borrow from the FHLB based on a certain percentage of the value of the Bank's qualified
collateral, as defined in the FHLB Statement of Products Policy, comprised mainly of mortgage-backed
securities' and loans segregated as collateral for the FHLB. The additional amount available under this
agreement as of December 31, 2014 was $27.8 million. In accordance with an agreement with the FHLB, the
qualified collateral must be free and clear of liens, pledges and encumbrances. In addition, the Company has a
$2.0 million available line ofcredit with the FHLB. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, there were no advances
outstanding under this line of credit. During 2014, the Bank took additional FHLB advances to increase
liquidity foranticipated loan growth.

During 2013, $50.0 million of FHLB advances with interest rates ranging from 0.77% to 3.69% were paid off
and a $10.0 million FHLB advance with an interest rate of2.19% was restructured. The restructured advance
allowed the Company to reduce the effective interest rates, from 2.19% to 0.77%, and to extend the maturity for
one year, in accordance with ASC 470-50, "Debt Modifications and Extinguishments ".

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, outstanding advances from the FHLB aggregated $120.0 million and $57.0
million respectively.
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Junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trust

During 2003, the Company formed the Trust of which 100% of the Trust's common securities are owned by the
Company. The Trust has no independent assets, and exists for the sole purpose of issuing trust securities and
investing the proceeds thereof in an equivalent amount of junior subordinated debentures issued by the
Company. The Trust issued $8.0 million of trust preferred securities in 2003.

Trust preferred securities currently qualify for up to 25% of the Company's Tier I Capital, with the excess
qualifying as Tier 2 Capital. On March 1, 2005, the Federal Reserve Board of Governors, which is the banking
regulator for the Holding Company, approved final rules thatallowed for the continued inclusion of outstanding
and prospective issuances of trust preferred securities in regulatory capital, subject to new, stricter limitations,
whichbecame effective March 31,2009 and hadno impact on the Company.

The subordinated debentures of $8.2 million are unsecured obligations of the Company and are subordinate and
junior in right of payment to all present and future senior indebtedness of the Company. The Company has
entered into a guarantee, which together with its obligations under the subordinated debentures and the
declaration of trust governing the Trust provides a full and unconditional guarantee of the capital securities.
The subordinated debentures, which bear interest at three-month LIBOR plus 3.15% (3.40%o at December 31,
2014), mature on March 26, 2033. Beginning in the second quarter of 2009, the Company deferred quarterly
interest payments on the subordinated debentures for 20 consecutive quarters as permitted under the terms of
the debentures. Interest was still being accrued and charged to operations. The Company made a payment of
approximately $1.6 million in June 2014, and brought the debt current as of that date. The Company deferred
interest payments in the subsequent two quarters. As of December 31, 2014, the accrued interest payable was
approximately $147,000.

The duration of the trust is 30 years, with an early redemption feature at the Company's option on aquarterly
basis.
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Maturity ofborrowings

The contractual maturities of the Company's borrowings at December 31, 2014, by year, are as follows:

(in thousands)

2015

2033

Total borrowings

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating leases

The Company has non-cancelable operating leases for seven ofits branch banking offices and for administrative
and operational activities, which expire on various dates through 2023. Most of the leases contain rent
escalation provisions, as well as renewal options for one or more periods. Under these lease agreements, the
Company is required to pay certain operating costs such as insurance and property taxes. The Company also
leases certain equipment under cancelable and non-cancelable arrangements.

Future minimum rental commitments under the terms of these leases by year and in the aggregate, are as
follows:

Fixed

Rate

Floating

Rate Total

$ 120,000 $

8,248

$ 120,000

8,248

$ 120,000 $ 8,248 $ 128,248

Years Ending Aamount

December 31, (in thousands)

2015 $ 1,363

2016 851

2017 344

2018 147

2019 148

Thereafter 324

$ 3,177

Total rental expense, which is charged to operations on astraight line basis, for cancelable and non-cancelable
operating leases was $1.6 million, $2.1 million and $2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012, respectively. During 2014 the Company leased excess space and recognized rental income of
$353,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014. Income from subleases included in non-interest expense was
$71,000 and $55,000 for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Employment Agreements

The Company has one change of control agreement that entitles an officer to receive up to two and one-half
times the greater of the officer's base salary at the time or total compensation for the most recently completed
fiscal year if a change of control occurs while such officer is a full time employee of the Company or within six
months following termination of employment other than for cause or by reason of death or disability.

Legal Matters

Neither the Company nor the Bank has any pending legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation,
incidental to its business, to which the Company or the Bank is a party or any of its property is subject.
Management and its legal counsel are of the opinion that the ultimate disposition of these routine matters will
not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial condition, results of operations or
liquidity.
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Note 10. Income Taxes

The table below presents the components ofour federal and state income tax benefit for 2014,2013, and 2012.

Federal and State Income Tax Benefit

(in thousands) Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Current

Federal $ (15,979) $ - $

State 268 (21)

Total (15,711) (21)

Deferred

Federal 839 (318)

State 122

Total 961 (318)

Benefit forincome taxes $ (14,750) $ (339) $

The income tax benefit for 2014 is due to the release of the valuation allowance against the net deferred tax
assets in September 30,2014.
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The table below presents a reconciliation between our federal statutory income tax rate and our effective tax
rate for 2014, 2013, and 2012.

Reconciliation of Statutory to Effective Tax Rate

Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Income taxes at

statutory Federal rate $ 326 $ (2,593) $ (182)
State taxes, net of Federal benefit

Nondeductible expenses 175 0

Change in cash surrender value of life insurance - (178) nj$\
Taxes on BO LI income

Valuation allowance

Tangible Property Review IRC Sec 481(a)

Current YearChange in valuation allowance (39) 2,447 329
Other 495 24

Total benefit for income taxes

$ 326 $ (2.593)

48 (21)

175 6

- (178)

1,701
-

(16,812)
-

(644)

(39) 2,447

495 -

s (14,750) $ (339)

In 2014, our effective tax rate is (1538) % which isdifferent from the statutory rate of34% due to the release of
the valuation allowance against our net deferred tax assets, hi 2013 and 2012. our effective tax rate differs from
the statutory rate due to the valuation allowance on the entire net deferred tax assets and the recognition of
uncertain tax positions.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

In September 2014, we released our valuation allowance previously recorded on the net deferred tax assei.
Deferred tax assets are created when expenses are recognized for financial reporting purposes prior to the
corresponding recognition of expenses for tax reporting purposes; and/or income is recognized for tax reporting
purposes prior to the corresponding recognition ofincome for financial reporting purposes!
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The table below presents the balance of significant deferred tax assets, liabilities, and the valuation allowance at
December 31,2014,2013 and 2012.

(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Deferred taxassets:

Allowance for loan losses

Nonaccrual interest

Depreciation ofpremisesand equipment

Accrued expenses

Share-based Compensation

OREO Writedowns

Capital loss carryover

State NOLcarryforward benefit

Federal NOLcarryforward benefit

NOLwrite-off for§ 382 Limitation

Federal AMT benefit estimate

Unrealized loss AFS

Other

Gross deferred taxassets

Valuation allowance

Deferred taxassets, net of

valuation allowance 14,926

Gross deferred tax liabilities -

$ 1,918 $ 2,213 $ 2,343

1,508 1,474 1,325

523 1,276 1,074

292 376 225

- -
72

63 - -

572 572 572

3,435 3,613 3,237

17,372 18,427 15,850

(10^82) (10,382) (10,382)

- -
318

176 462 251

21 37 154

15,498 18,068 15,039

(572) (18,068) (15,039)

Deferred taxasset, net $ 14,926 $

At December 31, 2014, the Bank had a net operating loss carry forwards of $10.3 million to offset future
taxable income which will expire over varying periods beginning in2029 through 2032.

Valuation Allowance against net Deferred Tax Assets

The Bank had approximately $18.1 million ofnet deferred tax assets which, prior to 2014, was subject to a
valuation allowance because the realization of the net deferred tax assets was not more likely than not. In light
of the Bank's performance over the previous four quarters, Management determined that it was more likely than
not that the Bank would be able to realize substantially all of its deferred tax assets and, therefore, a valuation
allowance was no longer required. In the third quarter of fiscal year 2014, the Bank released 96.7% of its
valuation allowance previously recorded on its net deferred tax assets which resulted in a credit to income tax
expense, partially offset by the current income tax expense for the year.
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The positive evidence that outweighed the negative evidence in Management's assessment included, but was
not limited to, the following:

Strong positive trend in financial performance over the previous four quarters
Forecasted 2015 and future period taxable income
Net Operating Loss carry-forwardsdo not begin to expire until 2029
A significant improvement in the quality of the loan portfolio
Favorable changes in operations which permanently reduce operating expenses.

The Bank will continue to evaluate its ability to realize its net deferred tax assets. Future evidence may prove
that it is more likely than not that a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized at which point a
valuation allowance may be reestablished.

At December 31, 2014 the Bank had no unrecognized tax benefits. The Bank does not expect the total amount
of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly change over thenext twelve months.

Note 11. Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance

The Bank had an investment in, and was the beneficiary of, life insurance policies. The purpose of these life
insurance investments was to provide income through the appreciation in the cash surrender value of the
policies on the lives of certain officers, directors and employees of the Bank. The Bank's policy was liquidated
and resultant proceeds were used to purchase residential loans. Accordingly, the policy had no cash surrender
value at December 31, 2014 as compared to $22.0 million in 2013. Income earned on these life insurance
policies aggregated $439,000, $523,000 and $517,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and is included in non-interest income. The Bank liquidated its BOLI policies in December 2014
and used the proceeds to purchase residential mortgage loans which had higher yields than those provided by
the BOLI policies. Liquidation of the BOLI policies resulted in one time charges of$455,000 to non-interest
income, $437,000 to non-interest expense and $1.7 million to provision for income taxes.

Note 12. Share-Based Compensation

The Company maintains the Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. 2012 Stock Plan to provide an incentive to directors
and employees of the Company by the grant of options, restricted stock awards or phantom stock units. The
Plan provides for the issuance ofup to 300,000 shares ofthe Company's common stock subject to certain Plan
limitations. As of December 31, 2014 185,212 shares of stock remain available for issuance under the Plan.
The vesting of restricted stock awards and options may be accelerated in accordance with terms of the plan.
The Compensation Committee shall make terms and conditions applicable to the vesting of restricted stock
awards and stock options. Restricted stock grants are available to directors and employees and vest in quarterly
or annual installments over a three, four or five year period from the date of grant. The Compensation
Committee accelerated the vesting of the initial grant of restricted stock in 2012, whereby the first year of the
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tranche vested immediately. The Company is expensing the grant date fair value of all share-based
compensation over the requisite vesting periods on a proratedstraight-line basis.

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded $275,000, $131,000 and
$306,000 of total stock-based compensation, respectively. During 2014, the Company issued 68,814 shares of
restricted stock to employees, 4,744 shares of restricted stock issued to directors and no options were granted or
exercised. In 2013, the Company awarded 32,964 shares of restricted stock to employees, there were no shares
of restricted stock issued to directors and no options were granted or exercised. In 2012, there were no options
exercised and 15,216 shares of restricted stock were issued to directors in payment of directors' fees in the net
amount of $120,000. At the 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Patriot National Bancorp, Inc.
("Patriot"), which was held on December 23, 2014, an amendment to the Patriot National Bancorp, Inc.
Certificate of Incorporation to reflect a reverse stocksplit of the outstanding shares of Patriot's common stockat
aratio of one-for-ten was approved. This reversestock splitwas effective March 4, 2015.

The following is a summary of the status of the Company's restricted shares as of December 31, 2014, and
changes therein during the period then ended.

Non-vested at December 31,2012

2013 Granted

Vested

Non-vested at December 31,2013 28.182
2014 Granted 73-558

Vested (22,532)

Non-vested atDecember 31,2014 79,208

Number of Weighted Average

Shares Grant Date Fair

Awarded (1) Value (1)

4,456 17.30

32,964 12.40

(9,238) 14.10

$ 12.60

13.21

11.76

$ 12.79

(1) On March 4, 2015, the Company affected a 1-for- 10 reverse stock split. All common stock and per share
data included inthese financial statements have been restated to give effect to the reverse stock split.

Expected future stock award expense related to the non-vested restricted awards as of December 31, 2014, is
$1.05million over an averageperiod of2.80 years.
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Note 13. Shareholders' Equity

Common Stock

On December 16, 2009, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "Securities Purchase
Agreement") with the Bank and PNBK Holdings, LLC, a limited liability company controlled by Michael
Carrazza ("Holdings"). Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, on October 15, 2010, the Company
issued and sold to Holdings 3.36 million shares of its common stock at a purchase price of $15.00 per share for
an aggregate purchase price of $50.4 million. The shares sold to Holdings represent 87.6% of the Company's
current issued and outstanding common stock. Also in connection with that sale, certain directors and officers
of both the Company and the Bank resigned and were replaced with nominees of Holdings and Michael
Carrazza became Chairman ofthe Board of the Company.

In connection with that sale, the Company reduced the par value of its common stock to $0.01 per share and
increased the number of its authorized common shares to 100 million. Also in connection with that sale, the
Company entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with Holdings. The Registration Rights Agreement
provides Holdings with customary demand, shelfand piggyback registration rights.

Income (loss) Per Share

The Company is required to present basic income (loss) per share and diluted income (loss) per share in its
consolidated statements of operations. Basic income (loss) per share amounts are computed by dividing net
income (loss) by the weighted average number ofcommon shares outstanding. Diluted income (loss) per share
reflects additional common shares that would have been outstanding if potentially dilutive common shares had
been issued, as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential
common shares that may be issued by the Company relate to outstanding stock options and would be
determined using the treasury stock method. The Company is also required to provide a reconciliation of the
numerator and denominator used inthe computation ofboth basic and diluted income (loss) pershare.
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Non-vested restricted stock awardsdid not have an impact on the diluted earnings per share. The Company had
no outstanding stock options. The following tables represent information about the computation of basic and
diluted loss per share for the years ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012:

Basic and Diluted Income Per Share

Income attributable to common shareholders

Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share

Loss attributable to common shareholders

Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share

Loss attributable to commonshareholders

2014

Net Weighted Average Per Share
Income Common Shares 0/S(l) Amount (1)

$ 15,709,000 3,850,042 4.08

2013

Net

Loss

Weighted Average

Common Shares O/S

Per Share

Amount

$ (7,289,000) 3,842353 $ (L90)

2012

Net

Loss

Weighted Average
Common Shares O/S

Per Share
Amount

$ (536,000) 3,840,189 $ (0.14)

(1) On March 4, 2015, the Company affected al-for-10 reverse stock split. All common stock and per share
data have been restated to give effect to the reverse stock split.

For the years ended December 31, 2014,2013 and 2012, there were no dilutive securities.
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Note 14. 401(k) Savings Plan

The Company offers employees participation in the Patriot National Bank 401(k) Savings Plan (the "401(k)
Plan") under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The 401(k) Plan covers substantially all employees
who have completedsix months of service, are 21 years of age and who elect to participate. Under the terms of
the 401(k) Plan, participants can contribute up to the maximum amount allowed, subject to Federal limitations.
The Company may make discretionary matching contributions of 50% of the first 6% of the participants' salary
to the 401(k) Plan. Participants are immediately vested in their contributions and the Company's contributions.
The Company contributed approximately $132,000, $130,000 and $160,000 to the 401(k) Plan in 2014, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

Note 15. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk

In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk to
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit
andstandby letters of credit and involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of
the amounts recognized in the balance sheet. The contractual amounts of these instruments reflect theextent of
involvement the Company has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The contractual amounts of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit represent the total
amount ofpotential accounting loss should: the contract be fully drawn upon; the customer default; and the
value of any existing collateral becomes worthless. The Company uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments and evaluates each
customer's creditworthiness on acase-by-case basis. Management believes that the Company controls the credit
risk of these financial instruments through credit approval processes, credit limits, monitoring procedures and
the receipt ofcollateral asdeemed necessary.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk are as follows at December 31,2014 and
2013

(in thousands) 2014
Commitments to extend credit:

Future loan commitments

Homeequitylines ofcredit
Unused lines ofcredit

Undisbursed construction loans

Financial standbyletters ofcredit
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Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments to extend credit generally have fixed expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee by the borrower. Since these commitments could
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of
credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies, but may include
residential and commercial property, deposits and securities. The bank has established a reserve of $5,000 and
$12,000 as ofDecember 31,2014 and December 31,2013, respectively.

Standby letters of credit are written commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Guarantees that are not derivative contracts have been
recorded on the Company's consolidated balance sheet at their fair value at inception.
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Note 16. Regulatory and Operational Matters

On September 29, 2014, Patriot National Bancorp, Inc. was notified by the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency (the "OCC") that the formal agreement between Patriot National Bank (the "Bank") and the OCC,
dated February 9, 2009, had been terminated. This action was taken because the OCC no longer considers the
Bank to be in "troubled condition". The decision to terminate the formal agreement was due to, among other
things, the satisfactory ratings of the Bank's assetquality, liquidity, management and regulatory capital position
following the Bank's successful control recapitalizationand turnaround plan.

The Company's and the Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios at December 31,2014 and 2013 were:

Actual

To Be Well

Capitalized Under

Prompt Corrective

Action Provisions

(dollars in thousands)
2014

The Company:

Amount Ratio

For Capital

Adequacy Purposes

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)

The Bank:

,142 14.08% $ 35,884 8.00% N/A N/A

1,218 12.98% 17,942 4.00% N/A N/A

1,218 9.62% 24,210 4.00% N/A N/A

Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) $ 63,151
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) 58,227
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) 58,227

14.08% $ 35,891 8.00% N/A N/A

12.98% 17,946 4.00% N/A N/A

9.63% 24,198 4.00% N/A N/A

2013

The Company:

TotalCapital (to RiskWeighted Assets)

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)

The Bank:

TotalCapital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)

56,060 13.95% $ 32,153 8.00% N/A N/A

51,027 12.70% 16,076 4.00% N/A N/A

51,027 9.33% 21,888 4.00% N/A N/A

55,758 13.86% $ 32,187 8.00% $ 48,280 12.00%

50,730 12.61% 16,093 4.00% 42,245 10.50%

50,730 9.28% 21,872 4.00% 49,212 9.00%
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Note 17. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Company grants loans to executive officers, directors and members of
their immediate families, as defined, and to entities in which these individuals have more than a 10% equity
ownership. Such loans are transacted at terms, including interest rates, similar to those available to unrelated
customers. The loans outstanding to such related parties during 2014 and 2013 were less than $100.

Related party deposits aggregated approximately $2.8 million and $3.0 million as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

During 2014 and 2013, the Company did not lease office space to any directors and there were no legal fees to
any director for legal services. Receivables due from affiliates aggregated less than $500 for rent paid on its
behalf for the year ended 2014 and 2013.

Note 18. Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income, which is comprised solely of the change in unrealized gains and losses on
available for sale securities, was as follows:

(in thousands)

Unrealized holding gains arising during the pe nod

Unrealized holding fosses arising during the period

Unrealized holding tosses arising during the period
Less reclassification adjustment for gains

recognized in income

Unrealized holdinglosses on available for sale securities

Note 19. Fair Value and Interest Rate Risk

2014

Be fore Tax

Amount Tax Effect

Ne t of Tax

Amount

$ 734 $ 176 $ 910

2013

Before Tax

Amount Tax Effect

Net of Tax

Amount

$ (569) $ $ (569)

2012

Before Tax

Amount Tax Effect

Net of Tax

Amount

$ 76

(910)

$ (29)

111

$ 47

$ (799)

$ (834) $ 82 $ (752)
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The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and
to determine fair value disclosures. A fair value hierarchy has been established that prioritizes the inputs used
to measure fair value, requiring entities to maximize the use of observable inputs. Observable inputs reflect
market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs generally require significant
management judgment.

The three levels within the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1- Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entityhas the ability to access at the measurement date (such as active exchange-traded equity securities
and certain U.S. and government agency debt securities).

Level 2- Observable inputsotherthanquoted pricesincluded in Level 1, such as:
© quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets (such as U.S. agency and

governmentsponsoredmortgage-backed securities)
0 quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in less active markets (such as certain

U.S. and government agency debt securities, and corporate and municipal debt securities that
trade infrequently)

© Other inputs that are observable for substantially the full term ofthe asset or liability (i.e. interest
rates, yield curves, prepayment speeds, default rates, etc.)

Level 3- Valuation techniques that require unobservable inputs that are supported by little orno market
activity and are significant to the fair value measurement of the asset or liability (such as pricing and
discounted cash flow models that typically reflect management's estimates of the assumptions a market
participant would usein pricing theasset or liability).

A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value, and for
estimating fair value for financial and non-financial instruments not recorded atfair value, isset forth below.

Cash and due from banks, federal funds sold, short-term investments and accrued interest receivable and
payable: The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value and accordingly these are classified as
Level 1. These financial instruments are not recorded atfair value on a recurring basis.

Available-for-Sale Securities: These financial instruments are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis in the
financial statements. The prices for these instruments are obtained through an independent pricing service or
dealer market participants with whom the Company has historically transacted both purchases and sales of
investment securities. Management reviews the data and assumptions used in pricing the securities by its third
party provider to ensure thehighest level of significant inputs arederived from market observable data.

Other Investments: The Bank's investment portfolio includes the Solomon Hess SBA Loan Fund totaling $4.5
million. This investment is utilized for the purposes ofthe Bank satisfying its CRA lending requirements. As
this fund operates as a private fund, shares in the Fund are not publicly traded and therefore have no readily
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determinable market value. An investment in the Fund is reported in the financial statements at cost, as
adjusted for income, losses, and cash distributions attributable to the investment.

Loans: For variable rate loans, which reprice frequently and have no signi(leant change in credit risk, carrying
values are a reasonable estimate of fair values, adjusted for credit losses inherent in the portfolios. The fair
value of fixed rate loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the period end rates, estimated
by using local market data, at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and
for the same remaining maturities, adjusted for credit losses inherent in the portfolios. As estimates are
dependent on management's observations, loans are classified as Level 3. The Company does not record loans
at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, nonrecurring fair value adjustments to collateral-
dependent impaired loans are recorded to reflect partial write-downs based on the observable market price or
current appraised value ofcollateral. Fair values estimated in this manner do not fully incorporate an exit-price
approach to fair value, but instead are based on acomparison to current market rates for comparable loans.

Other Real Estate Owned: The lair value of OREO properties the Company may obtain is based on the
estimated current property valuations less estimated selling costs. When the fair value is based on current
observable appraised values, OREO is classified within Level 2. The Company classifies the OREO within
Level 3when unobservable adjustments are made to appraised values. The Company does not record other real
estate owned at fair value on a recurring basis.

Deposits- The fair value of demand deposits, regular savings and certain money market deposits is the amount
payable on demand at the reporting date. The (air value of certificates of deposit and other time deposits is
estimated using adiscounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered for deposits
of similar remaining maturities, estimated using local market data, to a schedule of aggregated expected
maturities on such deposits. The Company does not record deposits at fair value on arecurring basis.

Junior Subordinated Debt: Junior subordinated debt reprices quarterly and as a result the carrying amount is
considered a reasonable estimate of fair value. The Company docs not record junior subordinated debt at (air
value on a recurring basis.

Federal Home Loan Bank Borrowings: The fair value of the advances is estimated using adiscounted cash
How calculation that applies current Federal Home Loan Bank interest rates for advances of similar maturity to
aschedule of maturities of such advances. The Company does not record these borrowings at fair value on a
recurring basis.

Off-balance sheet instruments: Fair values for the Company's off-balance-sheet instruments (lending
commitments) are based on interest rate changes and fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements,
taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties' credit standing. The
Company does not record its off-balance-sheet instruments at fair value on arecurring basis.
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The following table details the financial assets measured at fair value on arecurring basis as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, and indicates the fair value hierarchy ofthe valuation techniques utilized by the Company to
determine fair value:

Quoted Prices in Significant

(in thousands) Active Markets Observable
for Identical Assets Inputs

December 31, 2014

U.S. Government agency mortgage-

backed securities

U.S. Government agency bonds

Corporate bonds

Securities available for sale

(Level 1)

$

December 31,2013

U.S. Government agencymortgage-
backed securities

U.S. Government agency bonds

Corporate bonds

Securities available for sale

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets

for Identical Assets

(Level 1)

(Level 2)

5 17,337

7,409

8,936

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Balance

as of

December31,2014

17,337

7,409

8.936

$ 33,682 $ 33,682

Significant

Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)

$ 21,752
7,079

8,870

$ 37,701

Signiticant

Unobservable Balance

Inputs as of
(Level 3) December 31,2013

$

$ $

21,752

7,079

8,870

37,701

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis; that is, the
instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in
certain circumstances (for example, when there isevidence of impairment).
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The following table reflects assets measured at fair value on anon-recurring basis as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair
value:

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant

Active Markets Observable Unobservable

(in thousands) for Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Balance

December 31, 2014

Non-accrual loans $ $ $ 859 $ 859

December 31,2013

Non-accrual loans $ $ $ 10,446 $ 10,446

The Company discloses fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. Certain financial instruments are
excluded from disclosure requirements and, accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not
represent theunderlying value of theCompany.

The estimated fair value amounts have been measured as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and
have not been reevaluated or updated for purposes of these financial statements subsequent to those respective
dates. As such, the estimated fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting
dates may bedifferent than amounts reported on those dates.

The information presented should not be interpreted as an estimate ofthe fair value ofthe Company since afair
value calculation is only required for alimited portion ofthe Company's assets and liabilities. Due to the wide
range ofvaluation techniques and the degree ofsubjectivity used in making the estimates, comparisons between
the Company's disclosures and those ofother bank holding companies may not be meaningful.
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The following is a summary of the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's financial
instruments not measured and not reported at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets at
December 31, 2014 and 2013:

(in thousands)

Financial Assets:

Cash and noninterest bearing balances due from banks

Interest-bearing deposits due from banks

Other investments

Federal Reserve Bank stock

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans receivable, net

Accrued interest receivable

Financial Liabilities:

Demand deposits

Savings deposits

Money market deposits

NOW accounts

Time deposits

FHLB Borrowings

Subordinated debentures

Accrued interest payable

The Company assumes interest rate risk (the risk that general interest rate levels will change) as a result of its
normal operations. As a result, the fair values of the Company's financial instruments will change when
interest rate levels change and that change may be either favorable or unfavorable to the Compai y.
Management attempts to match maturities of assets and liabilities 10 the extent possible to mitigate interest rate
risk. However, borrowers with fixed rate obligations are less likely to prepay in a rising rate environment and
more likely to prepay in a (ailing rate environment. Conversely, depositors who are receiving fixed rates are
more likely to withdraw funds before maturity in a rising rate environment and less likely to do so in a falling
rate environment. Management monitors rates and maturities ofassets and liabilities and attempts to minimize
interest rate risk by adjusting terms of new loans and deposits and by investing in securities with terms that
mitigate the Company's overall interest rate risk.

December 3 1,2014

Cairying Estimated
December 31 ,2013

Fair Carrying Estimated
Value Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Level 1 $ 2,095 $ 2,095 $ 1,570 $ 1,570

Level 1 71,163 71,163 33,296 33,296

Level 2 4,450 4,450 4,450 4,450
Level 2 2,058 2,058 1,444 1,444
Level 2 6,628 6,628 4,143 4,143
Level 3 471,984 476,631 418,148 424,831
Level 1 1,918 1,918 1,566

$ 55,358 $

1,566

Level 1 $ 63,398 S 63,398 55,358
Level 1 93,790 93,790 80,983 80,983
Level 1 24,650 24,650 29,310 29,310
Level 1 26,269 26,269 28,618 28,618
Level 2 234,926 234,972 235,935 236,602
Level 2 120,000 120,000 57,000 57.H00

Level 2 8,248 8,248 8,248 8,248
Level 1 167 167 1,388 1,388
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Off-balance-sheet instruments

Loan commitments on which the committed interest rate is less than the current market rate were insignificant
at December 31,2014 and 2013. The estimated fair value of fee income on letters of credit at
December 31,2014 and 2013 was insignificant.

Note 20. Restructuring Charges and Asset Disposals

The Company recorded no restructuring charges for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014, compared to
$522,000 in the same period as last year. These costs are included in restructuring charges and asset disposals
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The $522,000 of restructuring charges for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2013 consisted of workforce reduction related charges of $643,000 partially offset by
$121,000reduction in existing restructuring reserves related to lease liability costs.

On May 29, 2013, the Company purchased a branch location where the cost of the lease exceeded the cost to
own. Purchase of this branch resulted in a reduction of $121,000 in future lease liability costs which had been
includedas part of a restructuring initiative in 2011.

On June 13, 2013, the Company executed a workforce reduction of the residential lending group and retail
operations to further reduce operating expenses. There were nineteen employees in total affected by this
announcement. Restructuring charges for this initiative resulted in $515,000 in severance expenses. During
July 2013, there was an additional workforce reduction, resulting in restructuring charges of $54,000 in
severance expenses.

There wereno remainingrestructuring reservesat December31,2014.
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Note 21. Condensed Parent Company Only Financial Statements

The following represent the condensed parent company only balance sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
and condensed statements of operations and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and
2012.

CO N D EN S ED BALANCE S H EETS

December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands)

AS S ETS

Cash and due from banks

Investment in subsidiaries

Oilier assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND S HAREHOLDERS' EQ UITY
Borrowings

Accrued cxp enses and oilier liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Total liabi lities and shareholders' equi ty

CONDENS ED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31, 2014,2013 and 2012

(in thousands)

Revenues

Dividends from subsidiary bank

Total revenue

Expenses

Interest on subordinated debt

Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss before equity in undistributed

net loss ofsubsidiaries

Equity in undistributed net income (loss) of subsidiaries

Net Income (loss)

2014 2013

$ 395 S 1,734

67,050 49,93 1

231 201

s 67,676 $ 51,866

8,248 8,248

693 1,777

58,735 41,841

$ 67,676 $ 5 1.866

2014 2013 2012

$ _ $ . S

- - -

438

157

293

395

308

700

595 688 1.008

(595) (688) (1.008)

16,304 (6.601) 472

15,709 S (7.289) $ (536)
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CONDENS ED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,2014,2013 and 2012

(in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash (used in)

operating activities:

Equity in undistributed (income) loss of subsidiaries

Share-based compensation expense

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in other assets

(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash (used in) operating activities

Cash Mows from Investing Activities

Net investment irovided by (used in) bank subsidiary

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear

Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest

Accrued dividends declared on common stock
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2014 2013 2012

15,709 $ (7,289) $ (536)

(16,304) 6,601 (472)

275 131 306

(30) 85 (68)

(1,084) 323 187

(1,434) (149) (583)

95 (500)

95 (500)
-

(1,339)

1,734

(649)

2,383

(583)

2,966

$ 395 $ 1,734 $ 2,383

1,704 $



SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant has caused this report to be signed
on its behalfby the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Patriot National Bancorp, Inc.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Kenneth T. Neilson
Name: Kenneth T. Neilson

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 31,2015

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below bythe following persons onbehalf of
the registrant and in capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Kenneth T. Neilson March 31.2015
Kenneth T. Neilson Date
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

/s/ Christina L. Maier March 31.2015
Christina L. Maier Date
Executive Vice President and

ChiefFinancial Officer

/s/ Michael A. Carrazza March 31.2015
Michael A. Carrazza Date
Chairman of the Board
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Form 10 K- Signatures continued

/s/ Edward Constantino

Edward Constantino

Director

Is/ Raymond Smyth

Raymond Smyth
Director

/s/ Emile Van den Bol

Emile Van den Bol

Director

/s/ Michael Weinbaum

Michael Weinbaum

Director
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March 31.2015

Date

March 31.2015

Date

March 31.2015

Date

March 31.2015

Date
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